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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Leon Valley City Council Chambers 
6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, TX 78238 

Tuesday, April 18, 2023 at 6:00 PM 
 

AGENDA 

The City of Leon Valley City Council Shall Hold an In-Person Meeting with A Quorum of 
Members of City Council to Be Physically Present in The Leon Valley City Council 
Chambers, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238. Some Members of City Council 
May Appear and Participate in The Meeting by Videoconference Pursuant to The 
Requirements Set Forth in The Texas Open Meetings Act.  
  
Citizens May E-Mail Public Comments To citizenstobeheard@leonvalleytexas.gov. All 
Other Citizen Participation May Be Provided In-Person at City Council Chambers.  

 

1. Call to Order; Determine a Quorum is Present, Pledge of Allegiance 

2. The City Council Shall Meet in Executive Session to Discuss the Following: 

1. Section 551.071: Consultation with the Attorney Regarding Pending or Contemplated 
Litigation, or Settlement Offer, or on a Matter in which the Duty of the Attorney to the 
Governmental Body Under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the 
State Bar of Texas Clearly Conflicts with the Texas Open Meetings Act, Re: City of Leon 
Valley v. 5622 Equity DE LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company D/B/A Vista Del 
Rey Apartments Located at 5622 Evers Road 

3. Reconvene into Regular Session 

4. Citizens to be Heard 

5. Possible Action on Issues Discussed in Executive Session If Necessary 

6. Presentations 

1. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action on VIA Ridership and MTA .005 of Sales 
Tax - Councilor Jed Hefner and Councilor Josh Stevens 

2. Presentation, Discussion, and Direction to Staff on Possible Household Hazardous 
Waste Disposal Program - M. Moritz, Public Works Director 

3. Discussion and Possible Action of the Monthly Financial Report for the Month Ended 
March 31, 2023 - C. Goering, Finance Director 
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4. Presentation, Discussion and Possible Direction on the American Rescue Plan Funds - 
Dr. Caldera, City Manager  

7. Announcements by the Mayor and Council Members. At this time, reports about items 
of community interest, which no action will be taken may be given to the public as per 
Chapter 551.0415 of the Government Code, such as: expressions of thanks, congratulations 
or condolence, information regarding holiday schedules, reminders of social, ceremonial, or 
community events organized or sponsored by the governing body or that was or will be 
attended by a member of the Leon Valley City Council or a City official. 

8. City Manager's Report 

1. Upcoming Important Events: 

 Regular City Council Meeting, Tuesday, May 02, 2023, at 6:30 PM, in Council 
Chambers. 
 
Library Volunteer Appreciation Party, Wednesday, April 26, 2023, from 5:00 PM to 7:00 
PM, at the Library. 

 Picnic with the Mayor & City Council, Saturday, April 22, 2023, from 11:00 AM to 1:00 
PM, in the “grassy” area at the Conference Center. 

 Early Voting at the Leon Valley Conference Center, 6421 Evers Road, Texas, 78238, 
Monday, April 24, 2023 through Thursday, April 27, 2023 from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM; 
Friday, April 28, 2023 – Closed; Saturday, April 29, 2023 from 8:00 AM to 8:00 PM; 
Sunday, April 30, 2023 - Closed; and Monday, May 01, 2023 and Tuesday, May 02, 
2023 from 8:00 AM to 8:00 PM. 

 Annual City-Wide Garage Sale, Saturday, May 20, 2023, from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM. 
 
Big Rig Petting Zoo, Monday, June 05, 2023, from 10:30 AM - 12:00 PM, at Raymond 
Rimkus Park. 

 Miscellaneous other events and announcements. 

9. Consent Agenda 

 1. Discussion and Possible Action Approving of the Following City Council Minutes: 
a.  04-04-2023 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

2. Discussion and Possible Action Accepting of the Following Board/Commission Minutes: 
a.  01-30-2023 Economic and Community Development Advisory Committee Meeting 
 Minutes 
b.  02-28-2023 Planning & Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 
c.   03-08-2023 Earthwise Living Committee Meeting Minutes 

3. Discussion and Possible Action of a Resolution of the City Of Leon Valley, TX., City 
Council Appointing Members to the Various City Committees - Mayor Chris Riley 
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4. Discussion and Possible Action on an Ordinance Authorizing a Zoning Change From R-
2 Two Family Dwelling to R-1 Single Family Dwelling District on Two Lots, Being Lots 
19 and 20, Blk 8, CB 4432C, Being 0.266 and 0.2204 Acres of Land, in the Grass Valley 
Subdivision Unit #1, Located at 6602 & 6608 Peachtree (1st Read was Held on 04-04-
2023) - M. Teague, Planning and Zoning Director 

5. Discussion and Possible Action of the Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter 
Ended March  31, 2023 - C. Goering, Finance Director 

6. Presentation, Discussion and Direction on a Possible Ordinance Prescribing Advisory 
Committee Procedures under the Open Meetings Act and providing a provision for 
committee member removal (1st Reading was Held on 4-4-2023) - Dr. Caldera, City 
Manager 

7. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action to Amend the Employee's Mission 
Square 457(b) Deferred Compensation Retirement Plan to Permit Loans (Dr. Caldera, 
City Manager) 

10. Regular Agenda 

1. Presentation and Discussion to Consider Approval of an Ordinance Amending 
Ordinance 2022-51, Which Approved Various Budget Adjustments for FY 2022-23 Carry 
Over Projects, To Clearly Identify the Funding Sources (1st Read as Required by City 
Charter) - M. Moritz, Public Works Director 

2. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action on Selection of an Insurance Agent of 
Record and Authorizing the City Manager to Enter into an Agreement with the Selected 
Agent - L. Hernandez, Human Resources Director 

3. Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action on a Resolution Authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into an Agreement between the City of Leon Valley and Leon Valley 
and Petland of Leon Valley, to Intake, House, and Adopt Dogs  - R. Salinas, Director of 
Economic Development 

11. Citizens to be Heard 

12. Requests from Members of City Council to Add Items to Future Agendas – Per Section 
3.10 (A) of the City of Leon Valley’s Code of Ordinances, at a meeting of City Council, 
a member of City Council may place an item on an agenda by making a motion to 
place the item on a future agenda and receiving a second. No discussion shall occur 
at the meeting regarding the placement of the item on a future agenda. 

13. Adjournment 

 
Executive Session. The City Council of the City of Leon Valley reserves the right to adjourn into 
Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed on 
the posted agenda, above, as authorized by the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071 
(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberations about real property), 551.073 (deliberations about 
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gifts and donations), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberations about security devices), and 
551.087 (economic development). 
 
Sec. 551.0411. MEETING NOTICE REQUIREMENTS IN CERTAIN CIRCUMSTANCES: (a) 
Section  does not require a governmental body that recesses an open meeting to the following regular 
business day to post notice of the continued meeting if the action is taken in good faith and not to 
circumvent this chapter. If an open meeting is continued to the following regular business day and, on 
that following day, the governmental body continues the meeting to another day, the governmental body 
must give written notice as required by this subchapter of the meeting continued to that other day. 
 
Attendance by Other Elected or Appointed Officials: It is anticipated that members other City boards, 
commissions and/or committees may attend the open meeting in numbers that may constitute a quorum. 
Notice is hereby given that the meeting, to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a meeting of any 
other boards, commissions and/or committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance in 
numbers constituting a quorum. These members of other City boards, commissions, and/or committees 
may not deliberate or act on items listed on the agenda. [Attorney General Opinion – No. GA-0957 
(2012)]. 
 
I hereby certify that the above NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING(S) AND AGENDA OF THE LEON 
VALLEY CITY COUNCIL was posted at the Leon Valley City Hall, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, 
Texas, and remained posted until after the meeting(s) hereby posted concluded. This notice is posted on 
the City website at . This building is wheelchair accessible. Any request for sign interpretive or other 
services must be made 48 hours in advance of the meeting. To plan, call (210) 684-1391, Extension 216. 

  
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC  
City Secretary 
April 13, 2023 at 4:31 PM 
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From:                                         Crystal Caldera
Sent:                                           Monday, February 13, 2023 4:35 PM
To:                                               Saundra Passailaigue
Subject:                                     FW: VIA sales tax item for the 21st
 
 
 
From: Josh Stevens <josh.stevens@leonvalleytexas.gov> 

 Sent: Friday, February 10, 2023 8:02 AM
 To: Crystal Caldera <c.caldera@leonvalleytexas.gov>

 Cc: Jed Hefner <jed.hefner@leonvalleytexas.gov>
 Subject: Re: VIA sales tax item for the 21st

 
I’ll second this agenda item for discussion if no one else has seconded.
 
Josh

Sent from my iPhone
 

On Feb 9, 2023, at 5:06 PM, Crystal Caldera <c.caldera@leonvalleytexas.gov> wrote:

Councilor Hefner,
 
I can not find a second on this item. Do you have a second on this item?
 
 
Crystal Caldera, MPA, PhD

 City Manager 
 6400 El Verde Rd

 Leon Valley, Texas 78238
 Tele:210-684-1391 Ext. 219

 Fax: 210-684-1515

The informa�on in this e-mail may be confiden�al and/or privileged. This e-mail is
intended to be reviewed by only the individual or organiza�on named above. If you are
not the intended recipient or an authorized representa�ve of the intended recipient, you
are hereby no�fied that any review, dissemina�on or copying of this e-mail and its
a�achments, if any, or the informa�on contained herein is prohibited. If you have
received the email in error, please immediately no�fy the sender by return email and
delete this email from your system.
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From:                                         Crystal Caldera
Sent:                                           Thursday, April 13, 2023 10:58 AM
To:                                               Saundra Passailaigue
Subject:                                     FW: [EXTERNAL] RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: City Of Leon Valley

Follow-up from 2/21/23 council mee�ng
A�achments:                          VIA_Metropolitan_Transit_ACFR 2022_Final.pdf
 
Saundra can you add this to the e-mail below and the a�achment to the VIA item?
 
From: Marks, Tom <tom.marks@viainfo.net> 

 Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 5:25 PM
 To: Crystal Caldera <c.caldera@leonvalleytexas.gov>

 Cc: Mayor Riley <mayorriley@leonvalleytexas.gov>; Jed Hefner <jed.hefner@leonvalleytexas.gov>;
Herrera, Jon Gary <jongary.herrera@viainfo.net>

 Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: City Of Leon Valley Follow-up from
2/21/23 council mee�ng
 
Good A�ernoon City Manager Caldera,
 
I would like to follow up with you on your email on Wednesday, February 22, 2023, regarding the
items that City Council was inquiring about a�er VIA’s presenta�on to them.
 

Balance sheets and cash flow statements from VIA.
We have our Annual Comprehensive report for FY21 on our website under the Fiscal
Management at h�ps://www.viainfo.net/about-via.
We just got our FY22 annual report back from our Audit. It is not online yet, but I have
a�ached it for your review.
 

The number of VIA trans rides that we have provided within our own city.
The number of VIAtrans trips to the City of Leon Valley in FY22 was 31,649
The number of VIAtrans trips to the City of Leon Valley in FY21 was 28,548
 

A calcula�on of $2537 per VIA trans transport was calculated by a council member at the
mee�ng. Is this correct? If so, why is the cost so high?

VIA misspoke at the February mee�ng. The 31,649 trips in FTY22 were not system wide but only
to Leon Valley. When that number is placed against the VIA Trans expense number of $682,518
from slide 12 ($682,518 / 31,649 trips) that comes out to be $21.57 per trip.

 
 

What is Leon Valley paying for and what services are we ge�ng?
The City of Leon Valley pays $1,663,000.17 in sales tax. VIA does not receive MTA sales tax
receipt details by individual member city from the Texas Comptroller. Gross sales tax
receipts for the MTA are allocated by city based on the ra�o of the MTA sales tax rate to the
total city sales tax rate:

Fare based on August 2022 sign-up ridership annualized;
Fare based on FY21 trips;
Based on January 2023 sign-up scheduled service hours annualized;
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Based on FY21 trips
 
The City of Leon Valley is currently receiving Bus and VIAtrans services. The following
breakdown is the formula for the cost of VIAtrans:
 
VIAtrans revenue = number of annual trips in Leon Valley in 2021 (28,548 trips) * FY 22
revenue per boarding ($1.76):
Revenue per boarding = FY22 passengers / FY 22 revenue
 
VIAtrans expense = number of annual trips in Leon Valley in 2021 (28,548 trips) * FY 22 Cost

per trip ($23.91):
Cost per boarding = (FY22 cost / FY22 boardings)
Cost per trip = Cost per boarding / 2

 
 

    
VIA agreed to look at the economic impact of VIA on the business community.

Please see the businesses which have 85 or more average pickup/drop offs per year. But the
actual number of pick up or drop offs that happened in a span of 4 years (2019-2022) is
shown in the a�ached spread sheet (Sites with 300 or more VIAtrans trips):
 

Site Average per year
Timberhill Commons 87

Texas Department of Public Safety Office 97
United States Postal Service 100
Northside Learning Center 143
John Marshall High School 152

Trinity Grace Fellowship 163
Northside Independent School District 173

San Antonio Aquarium 176
Vista del Rey Apartments 199
Forest Oaks Apartments 218
Leon Trace Apartments 294

Bandera Heights Shopping Center 453
Butter Krust Discount Bread Store 1,135

Christian Village Retirement 1,276
HEB 1,446

Exclusive Adult Daycare 10,517
 
Another thing to consider is the businesses along these corridors that will be affected if the
VIAtrans service is taken away.
 

Corridor Average per Year
Bandera Road 14,035

Evers Road 1,108
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Grissom Road 138
Huebner Road 1,773

 
Just because I know it will be the next ques�on. What would the City of Leon Valley’s debt
obliga�on be, if we decided to end the partnership with VIA?

The current debt obliga�on for the City of Leon Valley would be $2.7 million but may
acquire more debt through November as we are going through the capital budget process.

 
If you have any ques�ons or concerns, I may be reached by phone or email.
 
 
Tom Marks
Chief External and Governmental Affairs Officer
VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, TX
726-228-7909
Tom.Marks@viainfo.net

 
 
 
 
From: Crystal Caldera <c.caldera@leonvalleytexas.gov> 

 Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 2:05 PM
 To: Marks, Tom <tom.marks@viainfo.net>

 Cc: Mayor Riley <mayorriley@leonvalleytexas.gov>; Jed Hefner <jed.hefner@leonvalleytexas.gov>;
Herrera, Jon Gary <jongary.herrera@viainfo.net>

 Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: City Of Leon Valley Follow-up from 2/21/23
council mee�ng
 
Thank You
 

From: Marks, Tom <tom.marks@viainfo.net> 
 Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 1:56 PM

 To: Crystal Caldera <c.caldera@leonvalleytexas.gov>
 Cc: Mayor Riley <mayorriley@leonvalleytexas.gov>; Jed Hefner <jed.hefner@leonvalleytexas.gov>;

Herrera, Jon Gary <jongary.herrera@viainfo.net>
 Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: City Of Leon Valley Follow-up from 2/21/23 council

mee�ng
 
Absolutely, I will be sending you a packet before close of business today. It will include answers to all
the ques�ons and FY 21 & 22 financial documents.
 
From: Crystal Caldera <c.caldera@leonvalleytexas.gov> 

 Sent: Tuesday, April 11, 2023 1:46 PM
 To: Marks, Tom <tom.marks@viainfo.net>
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Cc: Mayor Riley <mayorriley@leonvalleytexas.gov>; Jed Hefner <jed.hefner@leonvalleytexas.gov>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: City Of Leon Valley Follow-up from 2/21/23 council mee�ng
 
Good A�ernoon, Just a Reminder I s�ll need your informa�on for the April 18th City Council Mee�ng.
 
From: Crystal Caldera 

 Sent: Thursday, March 30, 2023 10:31 AM
 To: tom.marks@viainfo.net

 Cc: Mayor Riley <mayorriley@leonvalleytexas.gov>; Jed Hefner <jed.hefner@leonvalleytexas.gov>
 Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] FW: City Of Leon Valley Follow-up from 2/21/23 council mee�ng

 
Good Morning Mr. Marks
 
I just wanted to remind you that the council is expec�ng an update by our April 18th City Council
mee�ng. This means that I would need your informa�on by April 11th.
 
Thank You,
Crystal Caldera, MPA, PhD

 City Manager 
 6400 El Verde Rd

 Leon Valley, Texas 78238
 Tele:210-684-1391 Ext. 219

 Fax: 210-684-1515

The informa�on in this e-mail may be confiden�al and/or privileged. This e-mail is intended to be
reviewed by only the individual or organiza�on named above. If you are not the intended recipient or
an authorized representa�ve of the intended recipient, you are hereby no�fied that any review,
dissemina�on or copying of this e-mail and its a�achments, if any, or the informa�on contained herein
is prohibited. If you have received the email in error, please immediately no�fy the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
 
 
 

From: Marks, Tom <tom.marks@viainfo.net> 
 Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2023 8:54 AM

 To: Crystal Caldera <c.caldera@leonvalleytexas.gov>
 Cc: Mayor Riley <mayorriley@leonvalleytexas.gov>

 Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] FW: City Of Leon Valley Follow-up from 2/21/23 council mee�ng - All council
members have been blind copied
 
Thank you, Manager Caldera,
 
 
We are already pu�ng the necessary documenta�on together. I have a�ached a PDF of the
presenta�on for the Mayor. I believe she wanted it for her newsle�er. We did clarify, and can provide
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the Documenta�on, that on slide 9 the 31, 649 VIATrans trips are just to and from Leon Valley not trips
for the en�re system.
 
Tom Marks
Chief External and Governmental Affairs Officer
VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, TX
C: 726-228-7909
Tom.Marks@viainfo.net

 
 
From: Crystal Caldera <c.caldera@leonvalleytexas.gov> 

 Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2023 10:16 AM
 To: Marks, Tom <tom.marks@viainfo.net>

 Subject: [EXTERNAL] FW: City Of Leon Valley Follow-up from 2/21/23 council mee�ng - All council
members have been blind copied
 
 
 

From: Crystal Caldera 
 Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2023 10:15 AM

 To: tom.marks@viainfor.net; cris�na.bazaldua@viainfo.net; sandip.sen@viainfo.net
 Cc: Mayor Riley <mayorriley@leonvalleytexas.gov>

 Subject: City Of Leon Valley Follow-up from 2/21/23 council mee�ng - All council members have been
blind copied
 
Good Morning everyone,
 
I wanted to thank you all for taking the �me to come and speak with the City yesterday evening. It was
much appreciated. As a follow-up to last night’s mee�ng, the following were items the City Council
would like to see:

Balance sheets and cash flow statements from VIA.
The number of VIA trans rides that we have provided within our own city.
A calcula�on of $2537 per VIA trans transport was calculated by a council member at the
mee�ng. Is this correct? If so, why is the cost so high?
What is Leon Valley paying for and what services are we ge�ng?
VIA agreed to look at the economic impact of VIA on the business community.
Just because I know it will be the next ques�on. What would the City of Leon Valley’s debt
obliga�on be, if we decided to end the partnership with VIA?

 
As always, thank you and have a wonderful day,
Crystal Caldera, MPA, PhD

 City Manager 
 6400 El Verde Rd

 Leon Valley, Texas 78238
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Tele:210-684-1391 Ext. 219
Fax: 210-684-1515

The informa�on in this e-mail may be confiden�al and/or privileged. This e-mail is intended to be
reviewed by only the individual or organiza�on named above. If you are not the intended recipient or
an authorized representa�ve of the intended recipient, you are hereby no�fied that any review,
dissemina�on or copying of this e-mail and its a�achments, if any, or the informa�on contained herein
is prohibited. If you have received the email in error, please immediately no�fy the sender by return
email and delete this email from your system.
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March 16, 2023 

Citizens of the VIA Metropolitan Transit Service Area: 

We are pleased to submit to you the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
(ACFR) of VIA Metropolitan Transit for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2022. 
The  is prepared annually to satisfy Texas statute and Federal Single Audit 
Act requirements to have an annual audit of our basic financial statements. The 
audit is to be performed by an independent certified public accountant or a firm of 
independent certified public accountants. This report is published and respectfully 
submitted to fulfill that requirement. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the 
information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of 
internal control that it has established for this purpose. The internal control is 
designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial 
statements are free of any material misstatements. We believe the data, as 
presented, is accurate in all material respects and that it is presented in a manner 
designed to fairly set forth the financial position and results of operations of VIA in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP) for local government units. All disclosures necessary to enable 
the reader to gain an understanding of VIA’s financial affairs have been included. 

This report is presented in three parts: 

1. The Introductory Section includes this letter of transmittal, the 2021
Government Finance Officers Association’s Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting, an organizational chart and a listing of
the Board of Trustees.

2. The Financial Section presents the Independent Auditor’s Report,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), and the basic financial
statements with accompanying notes.

3. The Statistical Section provides unaudited financial, economic and other
miscellaneous information that is useful for indicating trends for
comparative fiscal periods.

VIA’s independent auditor, Baker Tilly, has rendered an unmodified opinion on 
VIA’s financial statements for the year ended September 30, 2022. The 
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independent auditor’s report is presented as the first item in the financial section 
of this report. 

Management’s discussion and analysis immediately follows the independent 
auditor’s report and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the 
basic financial statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the 
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.  

Profile of the Government 

VIA is a Metropolitan Transit Authority established on March 1, 1978, under the 
provisions prescribed in Article 1118x, Revised Civil Statutes of Texas (now 
codified as Ch. 451, Texas Transportation Code) to provide public transportation 
services for the citizens of Bexar County, which includes the City of San Antonio, 
Texas. The system's legal name is VIA Metropolitan Transit. 

A confirmation election was held in Bexar County in 1977 and voters approved the 
creation and funding of VIA through a one-half cent sales tax levied in San Antonio 
and seven other incorporated municipalities. In March of 1978, VIA purchased 
transit system assets from the City of San Antonio and began operations. Today, 
VIA’s service area consists of the unincorporated area of Bexar County and 13 
municipalities including the City of San Antonio. 

On November 2, 2004, the voters of San Antonio approved the creation of an 
Advanced Transportation District (ATD) for mobility enhancement and advanced 
transportation. The ATD is authorized to impose sales and use tax of one-fourth of 
one percent to be allocated 50% to VIA Metropolitan Transit, 25% to the City of 
San Antonio, and 25% as a local share to be leveraged with state and federal 
grants (the local share has gone to the Texas Department of Transportation and 
Bexar County). The funds are used for “advanced transportation” and “mobility 
enhancement,” which includes items such as transportation services, operations, 
transportation amenities, equipment, construction, improvements to streets and 
sidewalks, and, the local share for state and federal grants for ATD-related capital 
projects, such as improving highways and transportation infrastructure. 

On November 3, 2020, the voters of San Antonio approved a measure that will 
rededicate a 1/8-cent share of local sales tax for public transit, beginning in 2026.   
This is not a new tax.  It reallocates a portion of an existing 1 cent of local sales 
tax made available for transit use by the Texas legislature.  The additional funding 
will be used to fund VIA’s Keep SA Moving Plan, designed to connect more people 
to jobs and economic opportunity through improved and expanded VIA services.   

VIA is governed by an eleven-member Board of Trustees appointed to staggered 
two-year terms.  Five members are appointed by the San Antonio City Council, 
three members are appointed by the Bexar County Commissioners and two are 
named by the Suburban Council of Mayors. The Chair is elected by the VIA Board 
of Trustees.  
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The Board determines policy and directs VIA, with the President serving as the 
Chief Executive Officer. Subject to policy direction from the Board, the President 
is responsible for daily operations of VIA. 

Service 

The service area is comprised of approximately 1,210 square miles, almost all of 
which are in Bexar County.  This represents 97% of Bexar County.  In FY22, VIA 
transported 22.1 million passengers, provided 2.0 million hours of service over 
30.6 million miles, and carried an average of 68,607 passengers on weekdays.  In 
the prior year, VIA transported 20.2 million passengers, provided 2.1 million hours 
of service over 31.8 million miles, and carried an average of 62,046 passengers 
on weekdays. 

Service is currently available seven days a week, from 4:00 a.m. until 1:00 a.m., 
with a fleet of approximately 500 buses and 139 Paratransit vans (excluding 
contract service) maintained by an around-the-clock maintenance department.  

Budget 

The State of Texas requires that transit authorities, such as VIA Metropolitan 
Transit, adopt an annual operating budget before the start of a new fiscal year.  
VIA establishes a budget that is appropriately monitored through the accounting 
system to ensure effective budgetary control and accountability. It is the 
responsibility of each division to administer its operation in such a manner as to 
ensure that the use of funds is consistent with the goals and programs authorized 
by the Board of Trustees and that the total approved budget is not exceeded. The 
Board receives and reviews budget performance reports, in a summarized format, 
at the monthly board meeting.  

Local Economy 

The Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas, in their January 25, 2023 San Antonio 
Economic Indicators publication, noted that the San Antonio Business-Cycle Index 
declined slightly in December, registering a 7.1 percent annualized growth rate.  
The report noted that San Antonio job growth declined in December, while the 
unemployment rate was unchanged.  Restaurant spending and wages increased, 
and home sales continued to fall.   

The business-cycle index produced by the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas is the 
broadest and most current measure of the local economy.  It is a composite index 
consisting of changes in the unemployment rate, nonagricultural employment, 
inflation-adjusted wages, and inflation-adjusted retail sales for the metropolitan 
area. 

In January 2023, Moody’s Analytics reported that the San Antonio-New Braunfels 
economy will outpace the national economy in 2023, and that private services, 
manufacturing and multifamily construction will lead the way.  They also noted that 
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the large military presence will be a stabilizing force.  Moody’s stated that longer 
term, the metro area’s robust population gains and low costs of doing business 
should contribute to above-average overall performance.  

Long-Term Financial Planning 

VIA has a five-year financial and capital plan that is updated annually, as well as 
a VIA Vision 2040 Long-Range Plan that will be updated every five years.  A key 
purpose of these plans is to guide staff and inform the public and other 
stakeholders of the means by which community transit needs will be met. The five-
year financial projections are developed by analyzing historical data, trends, 
planned service changes, known revenue and expense factors, and other pertinent 
information. Some of the key information developed includes five-year schedules 
of annual: 1) revenues and expenses, 2) cash requirements and cash and 
investment balances, 3) disposition/replacement of revenue vehicles, 4) proposed 
expenditures on capital facilities and equipment, 5) projected availability and use 
of federal transit grants, and 6) projected debt financing. 

Relevant Financial Policies 

Basis of Accounting 
VIA prepares its financial statements using the accrual basis of accounting, 
treating VIA Metropolitan Transit as an enterprise fund. The financial statements 
of VIA Metropolitan Transit have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) for local 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is the 
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and 
financial reporting principles. 

Cash and Investments 
State law permits VIA to invest in: fully secured or fully insured certificates of 
deposit (“CDs”) of state and national banks or savings and loan associations 
located within the State of Texas; direct obligations of the United States of America 
and its agencies; obligations of the State of Texas and its municipalities, school 
districts, or other political subdivisions; and, obligations guaranteed as to both 
principal and interest by the United States of America. VIA’s investment policy 
conforms to the regulations of the Texas Public Funds Investment Act. 

Risk Management 
VIA is self-insured and self-administered for public liability and property damage 
claims. Claims are paid from general operating revenues. Extensive cost 
containment efforts, such as an aggressive subrogation recovery program and 
medical invoice audits, are employed to help minimize the cost of these programs. 

VIA has fire and extended coverage on scheduled buildings, contents, buses and 
vans. The purchased coverage is to cover catastrophic losses in excess of the 
$500,000 deductible carried. Contractors who perform services for VIA are 
required to carry adequate insurance coverage and to add VIA as an additional 
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insured. These requirements are monitored carefully to protect VIA’s insurable 
interests. 

Healthcare costs are a significant expense for VIA, and to limit exposure to large-
dollar medical claims, VIA has contracted with a stop-loss insurer.  The cap on 
claims for any one individual per year is $175,000 (this also includes pharmacy 
claims).  VIA does not incur any expense in connection with claims above the cap. 

Key Budget Objectives 
Focus areas for the FY23 budget are guided by the Keep SA Moving Plan goals 
and include ongoing employee/rider health and safety initiatives, as well as 
projects in progress, such as the Scobey Redevelopment, system rebalancing, and 
service delivery improvements to retain and recover ridership.  

VIA will be accelerating key elements of the KSAM plan, particularly those that 
enhance mobility for economic opportunity, provide diverse, high-quality transit 
options, and improve the customer experience.  Federal funding and additional 
ATD sales tax revenue beginning in January 2026 have made funding of the KSAM 
program possible.  

Looking ahead, VIA will be making a variety of strategic investments to help better 
meet the transit needs of the community. 

Enhanced revenue vehicle fleet
Purchase of 120 buses in FY23-27 (this includes 17 Primo buses for ART
N/S)
Purchase of 154 new paratransit vans (15 in FY23, 62 in FY26, and 77 in
FY27)

Pursue Advanced Rapid Transit funding and begin design
Begin Preliminary Engineering and NEPA for N/S Corridor
Pursue FTA Capital Investment Grants Program
Advanced project definition and FTA Project Development for E/W Corridor
o Corridor schematic development
o Environmental Fatal Flaw Analysis
o Ridership Model + Service Plans

Move Projects into Final Design & Construction
Randolph Transit Center
I-10 Park & Pool (construction began September 2022)
Alamo Ranch Park & Ride
Eastside Mobility Hub

Advance Programming and Conceptual Design
Second Maintenance/Operations Facility
Site Selection/Acquisition

Other Planning Initiatives
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Mobility-on-Demand Expansion
Facility Master Planning
Update of Long-Range Plan

Development Initiatives
Scobey Complex

For the past several years, VIA has engaged the community in developing a plan 
to provide the San Antonio region a truly multimodal transit system.  VIA has asked 
for the public to imagine a different VIA, a VIA that offers a greater variety of 
transportation choices, a VIA that invests in technology and infrastructure to bring 
transit into the 21st century. Acceleration of the KSAM plan and a budget that helps 
build on a more mobile future puts us on that path.  

Progress on Key Projects Underway 
VIA will make significant progress on new facilities and other projects in FY23.  Key 
projects underway are noted in the section below, and the transit technologies 
included in VIA’s Long-Range Comprehensive Transportation Plan will continue to 
be explored, even as that plan undergoes an update in the coming year. 

Randolph Transit Center – The reconstruction of the Randolph Transit Center is 
currently in the solicitation stage as interested construction teams review the final 
design plans and submit a proposal to execute the project. The existing facility is 
located at the interchange of Loop 410 and I-35.  A brand-new Transit Center will 
be constructed on site to replacing this 20-year-old facility. Improvements include 
new boarding platform and exterior waiting areas, interior customer lobby and 
waiting area, restrooms, customer service, real-time arrival information, public art, 
landscaping, passenger pick up/drop off and overall improved site circulation. 

Naco Pass Mobility Hub – The Naco Pass Mobility Hub project is under 
construction, but nearing completion in December 2022. The location serves three 
bus routes and is a hub for the northeast VIA Link service. This project will modify 
and improve the on-street passenger amenities for passengers transferring at this 
location. 

I-10 Park & Pool – This project is in the far edge of northwest Bexar County and is
in partnership with Alamo College District. Once complete it will provide a parking
and a meet-up area for car/vanpool users with direct connection to I-10 HOV lanes.
Bus service is planned to be introduced in future years. Construction activities
began in August 2022, and it is anticipated to be operational in spring 2023.

Alamo Ranch Park and Ride – VIA has identified the need for Park & Ride in the 
far-West Side of the service area. The facility will have parking, shelters, and other 
improvements to ensure sufficient access and circulation for multiple transportation 
routes. It will include enhanced pedestrian access, lighting, security camera, wi-fi 
and real-time bus arrival information. This project is in the design stage with 
property acquisition happening concurrently. 
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Eastside Mobility Hub – This project includes an off-street layover and transfer 
area for two eastside routes as well as future VIA Link services. This project is at 
60% of final design with property acquisition expected by the end of the calendar 
year. 

Advanced Rapid Transit (ART) – VIA is currently working to develop and construct 
a Bus Rapid Transit Project (locally referred to as Advanced Rapid Transit) along 
the North/South corridor, with capital limits from the San Antonio Airport to Steves 
via the San Pedro and St. Mary's/Roosevelt Corridors. The project will include 
dedicated transit lanes, uniquely branded stations, off-board fare collection, transit 
signal priority, and frequent service. The project was accepted into the Project 
Development phase of the Federal Transit Administration’s Capital Investment 
Grant program. Concurrently, VIA will continue utilizing Alamo Area Metropolitan 
Planning Organization funds to continue Advanced Project Definition activities for a 
second ART line along the East/West corridor, with capital limits from the General 
McMullen and W. Commerce intersection to the Coca Cola Place and E. Houston 
intersection via the Commerce, Buena Vista/Dolorosa/Market Corridors. 

Second Operations and Maintenance Facility – VIA is beginning the development 
of a new operations and maintenance facility to address growth constraints and 
challenges at the current facility as well as prepare VIA for emerging propulsion 
technologies and VIA’s Advanced Rapid Transit system. Over the next fiscal year, 
sites will be identified for evaluation and selection which will lead to NEPA study 
prior to the acquisition of land. The facility will be planned for full-build out however 
it will be broken into several phases of construction to address need over the next 
10-15 years. The first phase is expected to open by 2027 and will accommodate a
portion of the existing fleet as well as new Advanced Rapid Transit vehicles.

In summary, FY23 will be a year of significant progress for VIA, as the vision of a 
multimodal transit system for the San Antonio region continues to develop, and 
investments are made in transit system assets and improvements throughout the 
region. VIA remains fiscally sound with Stabilization Fund (“Rainy Day” Fund) and 
working capital balances at Board policy levels (60 days each). 
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For bus service efficiency measures, VIA’s cost per hour is within $2 of being the
lowest of the peer group of the largest Texas agencies, and VIA’s operating 
expenses per vehicle revenue mile are by far the lowest of the peer group of the 
largest Texas agencies (at $8.76 for VIA, compared to a range of $10.48 to $11.89 
for the other largest Texas transit agencies).  Against that peer group, VIA also 
has the best performance for bus service effectiveness measures, with the most 
unlinked trips per revenue vehicle mile and per revenue vehicle hour, and the 
lowest operating expenses per unlinked passenger trip and passenger mile.  VIA 
receives fewer operating dollars than those other agencies. Houston, Dallas and 
Austin all have a full one-cent sales tax available to support operations, while VIA 
has 5/8ths of one cent.   Additionally, Austin receives funding through property tax 
dedicated to Project Connect.  In FY21, sales tax revenues for the peer group of 
large Texas agencies were the following:  Houston (METRO), $843.4M; Dallas 
(DART), $683.2M; Austin (Cap Metro), $301.4M; and San Antonio (VIA), $220.3M. 
As VIA grows into a larger system of transit choices, the organization must 
constantly seek out ways to do even more with less, enabling investment in new 
and enhanced services.

VIA is in currently in sound financial position, and some noteworthy items that will 
help ensure VIA’s continued fiscal sustainability in the future include:

Additional Sales Tax.  San Antonio voters said “yes” to a ballot measure that will 
rededicate a 1/8-cent share of local sales tax for public transit, beginning in 2026.  
The funds will be used to fund VIA’s Keep SA Moving Plan (KSAM), designed to 
connect people to jobs and economic opportunity through improved and expanded 
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VIA services.  VIA is now working to accelerate certain elements of the KSAM plan 
and will explore a variety of funding and financing options. 

Fixed Route Service Refinements.  VIA continues to evaluate opportunities for 
improvements in service efficiency and effectiveness. VIA evaluates its bus 
network by analyzing ridership and service levels to ensure it is providing service 
that meets productivity standards.  VIA performs detailed service analysis, using 
its route performance index, to identify opportunities to match service levels with 
ridership. 

Federal Grant Awards.  In addition to building new facilities and introducing new 
transit services, VIA has pursued federal grants to help modernize the system and 
expand current services.  In the past five years, VIA has been awarded an average 
of $18.6M per year in discretionary grant awards.  Examples of funds awarded 
include $9.8M in Volkswagen settlement funds for vehicle replacements; an $8M 
Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) for the Rapid Transit Corridor Study; 
$58.6M of Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) funds for compressed 
natural gas (CNG) vehicles and operating assistance to increase frequency 
(Routes 552/7); and $35M in CMAQ/STBG funds for CNG vehicles, frequency 
increase (Rigsby), and a Mobility Hubs planning study.  VIA currently is also 
pursuing Capital Investment Grants for both the ART North-South Corridor Project 
and ART East-West Corridor Project. 

Revenue Fleet Vehicles – Over the past seven years, VIA has replaced more than 
80% of its fleet with new CNG buses – approximately 400 new vehicles.  Replacing 
diesel-powered buses with CNG vehicles has resulted in significant fuel savings.  
VIA will continue to seek grant funding opportunities that can be used to replace 
additional diesel-powered buses with CNG buses.   

Business Process Improvements – VIA is currently working on implementation of 
a new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) System.  The new ERP system is 
expected to result in significantly improved processes and automation.  

Cost Reviews – VIA will continue to monitor key cost drivers and seek to take 
prudent measures to improve financial sustainability.  Some of VIA’s significant 
costs include wages, fuel, healthcare, pension and workers compensation. Over 
the past decade, VIA has taken various actions to control these key costs and has 
been able to operate very cost efficiently.  VIA’s exceptional performance in this 
area is reflected in the above chart showing cost efficiency compared to peer 
transit agencies. 

Awards 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to VIA Metropolitan Transit 
Authority for its annual comprehensive financial report (ACFR) for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2021. This was the thirty-second consecutive year that VIA 
Metropolitan Transit has received this award. In order to be awarded a Certificate 
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of Achievement, VIA is required to publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized FR that satisfies both generally accepted accounting principles and 
applicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. VIA’s Fiscal 
Management Division prepares that report in conformity with the Certificate of 
Achievement Program requirements and submits it to the GFOA on an annual 
basis, no later than March 31st of each year. 

VIA’s efforts have earned welcome recognition from local, state, and national 
organizations who have commended the dedication and commitment of VIA 
employees. Recent commendations include: 

Above and Beyond Workplace Well-being Award, Gold-level – Aetna (for VIA’s 
comprehensive wellness strategy) 

Supplier Diversity Champion - Subcontractors USA, Texas (for efforts to foster 
business growth in minority communities by supporting small business enterprise 
diversity initiatives) 

AdWheel Award, First Place Comprehensive Campaign: Best Marketing and 
Communications to Support Ridership - American Public Transportation 
Association (for “It’s So Easy Campaign”) 

Pinnacle Certified Recycler – ReWorksSA (for VIA’s commitment to sustainability, 
waste reduction, emissions reduction, water conservation and, recycling) 

Above and Beyond Workplace Well-being Award, Silver-level – Aetna (for VIA’s 
comprehensive wellness strategy) 

AdWheel Award, First Place Special Event:  Best Marketing and Communications 
to Highlight Transit Needs/Funding - American Public Transportation Association 
(for Keep SA Moving Tele-Town Hall events) 

AdWheel Award, First Place Print Media:  Best Marketing and Communications 
to Highlight Transit Needs/Funding - American Public Transportation Association 
(for Keep SA Moving Summary Brochure) 

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the 
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for our Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for fiscal year 2021. 

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from the GFOA 
for the financial report for VIA’s Retirement Plan for fiscal year 2021. 
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Independent Auditors' Report

To the Board of Trustees of
VIA Metropolitan Transit

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities, and fiduciary activities of VIA
Metropolitan Transit (VIA), as of and for the years ended September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise VIA's basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the business-type activities, and fiduciary activities of VIA as of 
September 30, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards) Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of VIA and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, VIA adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, effective October 1,
2021. Accordingly, the accounting changes have been retroactively applied to the prior period presented. Our
opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about VIA's ability to continue as a going
concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information
that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which 
are separate and independent legal entities. © 202  Baker Tilly US, LLP
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of VIA's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about VIA's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required
supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements as a whole. The
supplementary informationas listed in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis
and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements
as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the introductory and statistical information as identified in the table of contents but does not include
the basic financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements
do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic
financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we
are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 9, 2023 on
our consideration of VIA's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of VIA's internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering VIA's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Austin, Texas
March 9, 2023
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Required Supplementary Information
Unaudited

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Highlights
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Overview of the Financial Statements

Required Financial Statements
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Financial Analysis

Restated
2022 2021 2020

Current assets $ 496.2 $ 390.9 $ 239.3
Capital assets 377.7 380.0 384.8
Other noncurrent assets 37.7 65.3 60.3
Total assets $ 911.6 $ 836.2 $ 684.4

Deferred outflows of resources 42.8  49.3   49.7    
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 954.4 $ 885.5 $ 734.1

Current liabilities $ 60.3 $ 63.8 $ 48.4
Long-term liabilities 256.7 332.1 346.9
Total liabilities $ 317.0 $ 395.9 $ 395.3

Deferred inflows of resources 54.5  17.4   4.0   
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources $ 371.5   $ 413.3    $ 399.3  

Net position
  Net investment in capital assets $ 246.7   $ 240.5    $ 232.5  
  Restricted 29.5  45.5   51.7    
  Unrestricted 306.7   186.2    50.6    
   Total net position $ 582.9   $ 472.2    $ 334.8  
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position Information

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Restated
2022 2021 2020

Operating revenues:
  Passenger revenues $ 13.0 $ 11.4 $ 13.0
  Bus advertising and other 2.3 2.3 1.9
     Total operating revenues 15.3 13.7 14.9

Operating expenses:
  Line service 180.0 188.4 188.5
  Line disaster relief 0.0 0.5 0.0
  Robert Thompson Terminal 0.4 0.0 0.3
  Other special events 0.3 0.1 0.1
  VIAtrans 29.5 27.4 39.8
  VIAtrans disaster relief 0.0 0.7 0.0
  VIA Link 1.8 0.2 1.0
  Vanpool 0.4 0.3 0.7
  Promotional service 0.0 0.1 0.0
  Business development and planning 10.0 6.5 6.3
  Real estate development 0.0 0.0 0.0
  Depreciation 40.4 39.0 39.9
  Lease amortization expense 11.8 11.5 0.0

     Total operating expenses 274.6 274.7 276.6

     Operating loss (259.3) (261.0) (261.7)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
  Sales taxes 297.1 261.0 230.6
  CARES Act revenue - VIA 0.0 0.0 90.4
  CRRSAA revenue - VIA 0.0 61.2 0.0
  ARP revenue - VIA 57.9 57.9 0.0
  CARES, CRRSAA, ARP - pass-through 1.1 1.1 0.3
  CARES, CRRSAA, ARP - pass-through remitted to subrecipients (1.1) (1.1) (0.3)
  Grants revenue - VIA 36.1 40.7 25.8
  Grants revenue - pass-through 0.9 0.9 1.3
  Less pass-though funds remitted to subrecipients (0.9) (0.9) (1.3)
  Investment income/(loss) 0.2 0.1 2.9
  CoSA intergovernmental revenue 10.0 10.0 7.0
  TxDOT Intergovernmental agreements expense (1.7) 0.0 0.0
  Intergovernmental expense 0.0 0.0 (0.6)
  Bond interest and issuance costs (3.5) (4.0) (5.4)
  Lease interest expense (0.3) (0.6) 0.0
  Gain/(loss) on sale of assets 4.6 (6.5) 0.0
  Less amounts remitted to CoSA and Bexar County (46.2) (40.7) (35.8)

     Total nonoperating revenues/(expenses) 354.2 379.1 314.9

      Gain before capital contributions 94.9 118.1 53.2

Capital contributions 15.8 19.3 11.2

Change in net position 110.7 137.4 64.4

Net position at beginning of year 472.2 334.8 270.4

Net position at end of year $ 582.9 $ 472.2 $ 334.8
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Operating Revenues

Net Nonoperating Revenues/(Expenses)

Operating Expenses
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Long Term Debt

Capital Assets
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Capital Assets

2022 2021 2020

Land $ 35.2 $ 33.5 $ 33.5
Buildings and shelters 288.5 270.4 305.6
Revenue vehicles 294.7 309.8 300.1
Service vehicles 7.3 7.0 7.3
Equipment 61.6 59.9 66.3

Subtotal 687.3 680.6 712.8

Less accumulated depreciation and
  allowance for capital projects 367.8 356.2 382.2

Net capital assets before
  construction in progress 319.5 324.4 330.6

Construction in progress:
Buildings and improvements 45.7 48.0 35.6
Revenue and service vehicles 4.7 0.4 12.0
Equipment 7.8 7.2 6.6

Total constuction in progress 58.2 55.6 54.2

Net capital assets $ 377.7 $ 380.0 $ 384.8
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas
September 30, 2022 and 2021 – unaudited

Lease Assets

At the end of FY22, VIA has $5.8M of net right to use lease assets, a decrease of $9.5M (37.9%) compared to the
balance at the end of FY21. FY21 results were restated for implementation for GASB 87, which was implemented
in FY22. The decrease is primarily attributable to VIA’s current contract for purchased VIAtrans service nearing its
December 31, 2022 expiration date. As of fiscal year end 2022, a new procurement for those services was
underway.

A comparison of FY21 to FY20 is not available since FY20 results were not restated. The software that VIA uses
for GASB 87 accounting only provides for restatement of one year prior to the year of implementation.

Lease Assets 
(in Millions of Dollars) 

2022 2021
Gross right-to-use lease assets:
  Land $ 0.4 $ 0.4
 Buildings and shelters 2.3 1.5

  Revenue and service vehicles 21.5 21.5
  Equipment 4.5 3.3

Subtotal 28.7 26.7

Accumulated amortization:
  Land 0.2 0.1
 Buildings and shelters 0.4 0.2

  Revenue and service vehicles 19.1 9.5
  Equipment 3.2 1.6

   Subtotal 22.9 11.4

Net right-to-use lease assets:
  Land 0.2 0.3
 Buildings and shelters 1.9 1.3

  Revenue and service vehicles 2.4 12.0
  Equipment 1.3 1.7

Net right-to-use lease assets $ 5.8 $ 15.3

Readers of this document that desire a more detailed overview of lease asset activity should refer to the notes to
the financial statements section of this report. Note 1 provides information on lease accounting and note 13E
provides details on lease commitments.
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Economic Factors and Outlook for Fiscal Year 2022

Economic Factors

FY23 Initiatives
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Requests for Information
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Basic Financial Statements
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

VIA Metropolitan Transit

Statements of Net Position
Restated

2022 2021
Assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

VIA Metropolitan Transit

Restated
2022 2021

Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

Net Position

Total Net Position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

VIA Metropolitan Transit

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Restated
2022 2021

Operating revenues:

Operating expenses:

Depreciation on capital assets:

Amortization on right of use lease assets:

Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Gain before capital contributions

Change in net position

Note: 2021 has been restated for VIA's implementation ofGASB 87, Leases, in 2022.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

VIA Metropolitan Transit

Statements of Cash Flows

Restated
2022 2021

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the statements of net position

Noncash Investing and Financing Activities

Note: 2021 has been restated for VIA's implementation ofGASB 87, Leases, in 2022.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

VIA Metropolitan Transit

Statements of Fiduciary Net Position

2022 2021
Assets

Liabilities

Net position

Total Fiduciary Funds
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

VIA Metropolitan Transit

Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

2022 2021
Total Fiduciary Funds
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

VIA Metropolitan Transit Authority (MTA)

Defining the Financial Reporting Entity

Advanced Transportation District (ATD) Operations

“Advanced transportation” means light rail, commuter rail, fixed guideways, traffic management systems, bus
ways, bus lanes, technologically advanced bus transit vehicles and systems, bus rapid transit vehicles and systems,
passenger amenities, transit centers, stations, electronic transit related information, fare and operating systems,
high occupancy vehicle lanes, traffic signal prioritization and coordination systems, monitoring systems, and other
advanced transportation facilities, equipment, operations, systems, and services, including planning, feasibility
studies, operations, and professional and other services in connection with such facilities, equipment, operation,
systems, and services.
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Condensed Statements of Net Position

2022 2021

Total assets and deferred outlfows of resources

Liabilities

Total liabilities
Net position:

Total net position

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

2022 2021

Operating loss

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) net
Change in net position

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
2022 2021
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Fiduciary Funds

B. Basis of Accounting, Measurement Focus, and Financial Statement Presentation

Leases

Future GASB Statements

Conduit Debt Obligations

61 76

{Section}.61.



VIA Metropolitan Transit

Public Public/Private partnerships (PPP) and availability
payment arrangements

Subscription based Information Technology Arrangements

Omnibus 2022

Accounting Changes and Error Corrections

Compensated Absences

C. Use of Estimates
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

D. Accounts Receivable

E. Sales Tax

F. Inventory

G. Capital Assets

Asset Class Estimated Useful Lives
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

H. Leases

I. Compensated Absences

J. Estimated Liabilities

K. Unearned Revenues
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

L. Long Term Liabilities

M. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

deferred outflows of resources

deferred inflows of resources

N. Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses

O. Operating Revenues
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

P. Operating Expenses
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Q. Statements of Cash Flows

R. Reclassifications

S. Pension

T. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

Note 2 – Budget
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Note 3 – Cash and Investments

VIA Cash and Investments (Exclusive of the Fiduciary Funds)

Deposits

Investments
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Custodial Credit Risk on Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk on Investments –

Interest Rate Risk –
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Credit Risk –

Concentration of Credit Risk

71 86

{Section}.61.



VIA Metropolitan Transit

Fiduciary Fund Investments

72 87

{Section}.61.



VIA Metropolitan Transit
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Investment Policies

Cash and Investments

74 89

{Section}.61.



VIA Metropolitan Transit

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Credit Risk

Interest Rate Risk
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Pension Plan

OPEB Plan

Note: The fair values shown here do not include accrued income, pending cash, or uninvested cash.

Pension Plan

OPEB Plan

Note: The fair values shown here do not include accrued income, pending cash, or uninvested cash.
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Foreign Currency Risk

Note 4 – Restricted and Unrestricted Cash and Investments

Restricted

Bond Construction Fund

Bond Fund

Bond Reserve Fund

TxDOT Grant

Unrestricted

Stabilization Fund

Working Capital

Keep San Antonio Moving (KSAM) Reserve

Unrestricted Cash Reserve
Retainage
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Capital Grant Local Share

Cash & Cash
Equivalents Investments 2022 Total 2021 Total

Restricted deposits and investments

Unrestricted deposits and investments

Note 5 – Capital Contributions
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Note 6 – Capital Assets

Balance at
September 30,

2021 Additions Deletions Transfers

Balance at
September 30,

2022

*Capital assets not being depreciated.

Balance at
September 30,

2020 Additions Deletions Transfers

Balance at
September 30,

2021

*Capital assets not being depreciated.
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Description

Years Ended
September 30,

Note 7 – Sales Taxes

Years Ended
September 30,

Years Ended
September 30,
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Note 8 – Defined Benefit Retirement Plan

A. Plan Description

B. Benefits Provided
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

C. Disability Benefits

D. Pre Retirement Death Benefits

E. Early Retirement Benefits

F. Pension Supplement

Service at Retirement Supplement (One Time)

G. Retiree Health Benefits
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

H. Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

FY2022 FY2021
Inactive Plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive Plan members entitled to, but not yet receiving, benefits
Active Plan members
Total Plan members

I. Contributions

J. Net Pension Liability
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Changes in Net Pension Liability

2022 2021
Total Pension Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

K. Actuarial Assumptions

L. Discount Rate
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

M. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Discount Rate Sensitivity September 30, 2021

Discount Rate Sensitivity September 30, 2022

N. Long Term Expected Rate of Return

Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2022

Asset Class

Long Term Expected
Arithmetic Real Rate of

Return
Target Asset
Allocation

Development of Long Term
Arithmetic Return for
Investment Portfolio
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Fiscal Year ended September 30, 2021

Asset Class

Long Term Expected
Arithmetic Real Rate of

Return
Target Asset
Allocation

Development of Long Term
Arithmetic Return for
Investment Portfolio

O. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

Pension Expense
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Schedule of Pension Expense

2022 2021

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2022
Outflows of
Resources

Inflows of
Resources

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2021
Outflows of
Resources

Inflows of
Resources

Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Net Deferred
Outflows/ Inflows

of Resources
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

P. Pension Plan Components of Net Pension Liability

2022 2021
September 30,

Discount Rate Sensitivity September 30, 2022

Discount Rate Sensitivity September 30, 2021
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Note 9 – Defined Contribution Retirement Plan

A. Plan Description

B. Eligibility and Benefits

C. Funding Policy

Note 10 – Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension

General Information about the OPEB Plan

A. Plan Description and Benefits Provided
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Employees covered by benefit terms. Employees are eligible for OPEBs if they fall into one of the two groups noted
below:

B. Funding Policy
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Net OPEB Liability

Actuarial assumptions.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 3.75% to 5.75%, including inflation, plus an overtime adjustment varying from

1.25% of pay for office workers to 17.50% for operators
Demographic Assumptions Based on VIA's experience study for the Retirement Plan for the six-year

period ending on September 30, 2016
Mortality Assumptions For healthy retirees, the gender-distinct RP 2000 Combined Health Mortality

Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109%
and female rates multiplied by 103%.  The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis by a scale to BB to account for future mortality improvements.

Healthcare Trend Rates Initial trend rate of 6.75% for pre-65 retirees and 6.10% for post-65 retirees,
declining to ultimate rates of 4.25% for both pre-65 retirees and post-65 retirees 
after 11 years

Participation Rates Rates of 40% for pre-65 retirees and 20% for post-65 retirees, with 50.0% assumed
to discontinue at age 65

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 3.75% to 5.75%, including inflation, plus an overtime adjustment varying from

1.25% of pay for office workers to 17.50% for operators
Investment Rate of Return 7.25%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation
Demographic Assumptions Based on VIA's experience study for the Retirement Plan for the six-year

period ending on September 30, 2016
Mortality Assumptions For healthy retirees, the gender-distinct RP 2000 Combined Health Mortality

Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates multiplied by 109%
and female rates multiplied by 103%.  The rates are projected on a fully
generational basis by a scale to BB to account for future mortality improvements.

Healthcare Trend Rates Initial trend rate of 7.00% for pre-65 retirees and 6.20% for post-65 retirees,
declining to ultimate rates of 4.25% for pre-65 retirees after 11 years and post-65
retirees after 12 years

Participation Rates Rates of 40% for pre-65 retirees and 25% for post-65 retirees, with 37.5% assumed
to discontinue at age 65
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Long Term Mean Long Term Mean
Asset Class Target Allocation Benchmark Nominal Return Real Rate of Return

Long Term Mean Long Term Mean
Asset Class Target Allocation Benchmark Nominal Return Real Rate of Return
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability

Balances at 9/30/21 (*)

Net changes

Balances at 9/30/22 (*)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability

Balances at 9/30/20 (*)

Net changes

Balances at 9/30/21 (*)
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate.

1% Decrease Current Single Discount 1% Increase
6.25% Rate Assumption 8.25%

50,351,347$     42,319,219$   35,751,675$     

1% Decrease Current Single Discount 1% Increase
6.25% Rate Assumption 8.25%

57,662,140$                 49,030,735$         41,978,187$        

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates.

Current Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate Assumption 1% Increase

37,392,078$    42,319,219$     48,441,023$      
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Current Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate Assumption 1% Increase

43,564,409$    49,030,735$     55,835,691$      

OPEB plan fiduciary net position.

OPEB Expense andDeferred Outflows of Resources andDeferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

Net Deferred
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Outflows/(Inflows)

of Resources of Resources of Resources

Total

Net Deferred
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Outflows/(Inflows)

of Resources of Resources of Resources

Total
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Year Ending Net Deferred Outflows
September 30 (Inflows)

Total

OPEB Plan

2022 2021
September 30,
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

1% Decrease Current Single Discount 1% Increase
6.25% Rate Assumption 8.25%

50,977,892$   42,829,046$  36,156,763$    

Current Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rate Assumption 1% Increase

37,107,122$       42,829,046$       49,947,293$       

Note 11 – Risk Management

A. Property and Casualty Coverage
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

B. Public Liability Coverage

C. Workers’ Compensation

D. Employee Health Coverage

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related
Insurance Issues

Property and
Casualty and
Public Liability

Workers'
Compensation

Employee Health
Coverage Total
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Note 12 – Long Term Debt

A. MTA Farebox Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2013

B. ATD Sales Tax Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2014
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

C. MTA Contractual Obligation Bonds, Series 2017

D. MTA Contractual Obligation Bonds, Series 2020

E. MTA Farebox Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2020
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F. ATD Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2020
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Interest
Rate

Payable Original Issue Beginning Balance Additions Retired Ending Balance
Amounts Due

within One Year
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Interest
Rate

Payable Original Issue
Beginning
Balance Additions Retired EndingBalance

Note 13 – Commitments and Contingencies

A. Grants
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

B. Public Injury Lawsuits

C. Pending Claims and Litigation

D. Construction Commitments

Note 14 – Leases

106 121

{Section}.61.



VIA Metropolitan Transit

107 122

{Section}.61.



VIA Metropolitan Transit

Balance at
September 30,

2021 Additions Deletions

Balance at
September 30,

2022

Balance at
September 30,

2020 Additions Deletions

Balance at
September 30,

2021
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Total
Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Requirements
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Required Supplementary Information Unaudited
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
Schedules of Changes in Net Position Liability and Related Ratios

For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30
(Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2022 2021 2020 2019

Total pension liability

Service cost  $     6,585,062  $      6,879,319  $     7,521,860  $       7,956,865 

Interest    33,788,803   33,317,752     32,461,552    31,348,296 

Changes of benefit terms   -  -    -  - 

Differences between expected and actual experience   1,107,215    (3,484,862)    (903,472)   896,495 

Changes of assumptions   -  -    -  - 

Benefit payments   (30,115,982)     (28,800,748)    (24,111,522)   (24,572,598)

Refunds   (568,955)    (649,986)    (335,774)     (237,912)

Net change in total pension liability    10,796,143   7,261,475     14,632,644    15,391,146 

Total pension liability—beginning   478,102,378    470,840,903   456,208,259    440,817,113 

Total pension liability—ending (a)  $     488,898,521  $     478,102,378  $   470,840,903  $   456,208,259 

Plan fiduciary net position 

Contributions—employer  $     13,549,455  $     14,253,181  $     14,346,139  $     14,729,284 

Contributions—member   3,748,353   3,824,273    4,101,795     4,257,833 

Net investment income   (57,018,394)   73,736,180     33,587,049    10,587,602 

Benefit payments   (30,115,982)     (28,800,748)    (24,111,522)   (24,572,598)

Refunds   (568,955)    (649,986)    (335,774)     (237,912)

Administrative expense   (162,762)    (137,671)    (137,824)     (145,051)

Other   -  -    -  - 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position   (70,568,285)   62,225,229     27,449,863     4,619,158 

Plan fiduciary net position—beginning   392,688,048    330,462,819   303,012,956    298,393,798 

Plan fiduciary net position—ending (b)  $     322,119,763  $     392,688,048  $   330,462,819  $   303,012,956 

Net pension liability—ending (a) – (b)  $     166,778,758  $     85,414,330  $   140,378,084  $   153,195,303 
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 65.9% 82.1% 70.2% 66.4%

Covered payroll  $     52,515,461  $    54,786,319  $     59,888,154  $     63,152,166 
Employer's net pension liability as a percentage of 
covered payroll 317.6% 155.9% 234.4% 242.6%
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 Fiscal Year Ending September 30,

Total pension liability

 $       7,308,154  $     7,611,616  $     7,905,267  $     7,885,706  $     8,053,350 Service cost

   29,771,656    28,782,752   27,529,518    26,126,424   25,024,697 Interest

   -   -   -    2,722,757  - Changes of benefit terms

   638,833   (687,692)    2,205,382    1,469,523  - Differences between expected and actual experience

   21,277,913   - -    -  - Changes of assumptions

  (22,706,442)   (21,397,792)    (19,443,391)    (19,222,937)    (17,386,120) Benefit payments

   (255,118)   (379,738)   (346,216)    -  - Refunds

   36,034,996    13,929,146   17,850,560    18,981,473   15,691,927 Net change in total pension liability

   404,782,117     390,852,971   373,002,411   354,020,938    338,329,011 Total pension liability—beginning

 $   440,817,113  $   404,782,117  $   390,852,971  $ 373,002,411  $   354,020,938 Total pension liability—ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position 

 $     12,480,240  $     13,308,001  $     12,907,774  $   12,143,694  $     9,798,508 Contributions—employer

   4,420,649    4,486,984   4,121,628   4,236,620   4,227,570 Contributions—member

   29,240,374    33,570,332   21,792,138    2,675,221   22,741,162 Net investment income

  (22,706,442)   (21,397,792)    (19,443,391)    (19,222,937)    (17,386,120) Benefit payments

   (255,118)   (379,738)   (346,216)    -  - Refunds

   (120,506)   (255,612)   (143,808)    (236,158)    (215,172) Administrative expense

   -   -   -  - - Other

   23,059,197    29,332,175   18,888,125    (403,560)   19,165,948 Net change in plan fiduciary net position

   275,334,600     246,002,425   227,114,300   227,517,860    208,351,912 Plan fiduciary net position—beginning

 $   298,393,797  $   275,334,600  $   246,002,425  $ 227,114,300  $   227,517,860 Plan fiduciary net position—ending (b)

 $   142,423,316  $   129,447,517  $   144,850,546  $ 145,888,111  $   126,503,078 Net pension liability—ending (a) – (b)

67.7% 68.0% 62.9% 60.9% 64.3%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 
pension liability 

 $     65,166,072  $     67,512,908  $     69,482,896  $   70,477,214  $     71,690,366 Covered payroll 

218.6% 191.7% 208.5% 207.0% 176.5%
Employer's net pension liability as a percentage of 
covered payroll
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

Actuarially Contribution  Actual Contribution
FY Ending Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as a % of Covered

September 30 Contribution Contribution (Excess) Employee Payroll Employee Payroll

2022 13,555,325$      13,549,455$      5,870$      52,515,461$   25.80%
2021 14,253,181   14,253,181  - 54,786,319 26.02%
2020 14,346,139   14,346,139  - 59,888,154 23.95%
2019 14,729,284   14,729,284  - 63,152,166 23.32%
2018 12,480,239   12,480,240  (1) 65,166,072 19.15%
2017 13,307,801   13,308,001  (200) 67,512,908 19.71%
2016 12,907,775   12,907,774  1  69,482,896  18.58%
2015 11,901,186   12,143,694  (242,508)    70,477,214  17.23%
2014 13,555,866   9,798,508    3,757,358    71,690,366  13.67%
2013 11,498,776   10,639,132  859,644    74,276,531  14.32%
2012 8,185,552  8,258,760    (73,208)  69,947,664  11.81%
2011 7,320,891  7,320,891    - 69,772,318 10.49%

Valuation Date The actuarially-determined contribution for plan year ending September 30,
2022 was developed in the October 1, 2020 valuation.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization Period 20 years as of September 30, 2022
Asset Valuation Method 5-year smoothed market
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 3.75% to 5.75%, including inflation
Investment Rate of Return 7.25%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation
Retirement Age Experience-based table of rates that are specific to the type of eligibility

condition.  Last updated for the October 1, 2017 funding valuation
pursuant to a five-year experience study through 2016.

Mortality Assumptions For healthy retirees, the gender-distinct RP-2000 Combined Healthy
Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%.  The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future
mortality improvements.

Other Information VIA's funding policy is to contribute the plan's normal cost and an
amortization payment to fund the unfunded actuarially accrued liability.
The amortization payment is determined as a level percentage of payroll
(assuming a 3.25% payroll growth), which included the payroll of
employees who earn benefits in the defined contribution plan.

Notes to Schedule of Employer's Contributions
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information

FY Ending Annual 
September 30 Return

2022 -14.66%
2021 22.53%
2020 11.75%
2019 3.17%
2018 10.48%
2017 13.66%
2016 9.53%
2015 1.23%

10.99%
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Actuarially Contribution Actual Contribution
FY Ending Determined Actual Deficiency Covered as a % of Covered

September 30 Contribution Contribution (Excess) Employee Payroll Employee Payroll

2022 4,745,409$   4,745,409$   -$  122,831,631$       3.86%
2021 4,930,564  4,930,564  - 120,098,452 4.11%
2020 3,313,597  3,313,597  - 123,774,622 2.68%
2019 3,209,295  3,209,295  - 119,344,686 2.69%
2018 2,302,233  2,302,233  - 112,718,602 2.04%
2017 2,224,380  2,139,796  84,584  104,967,899 2.04%

Valuation Date The actuarially-determined contribution for plan year ending September 30,
2022 was developed in the October 1, 2019 valuation.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Amortization Method Level Percentage of Payroll, Closed
Remaining Amortization Period 24 years as of the calculation of the FY22 ADC
Asset Valuation Method Market value
Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increases 3.75% to 5.75%, including inflation, plus an overtime adjustment

varying from 1.25% of pay for office workers to 17.50% for operators
Investment Rate of Return 7.25%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation
Demographic Assumptions Based on VIA's experience study for the Retirement Plan for the six-year

period ending on September 30, 2016
Mortality Assumptions For healthy retirees, the gender-distinct RP-2000 Combined Healthy 

Mortality Tables with Blue Collar Adjustment are used with male rates
multiplied by 109% and female rates multiplied by 103%.  The rates are
projected on a fully generational basis by scale BB to account for future
mortality improvements.

Health Care Trend Rates Pre-65 retirees:  initial rate of 7.25% declining to an ultimate rate of 
4.25% after 12 years.  Post-65 retirees:  initial rate of 6.20% declining
to an ultimate rate of 4.25% after 12 years.

Participation Rates Rates of 40% for pre-65 retirees and 25% for post-65 retirees, with 37.5%
assumed to discontinue at age 65.

Notes to Schedule of Employer's Contributions
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Schedules of Required Supplementary Information
Return on OPEB Plan Investments (Net of Investment Fees)

(Unaudited)

FY Ending Annual 
September 30 Return

2022 -15.28%
2021 14.10%
2020 6.66%
2019 5.12%
2018 7.52%
2017 11.03%

Notes to Schedules of Required Supplementary Information

Note 1 – Trend Information

GASB Statement No. 67 (Financial Reporting for Pension Plans) requires that schedules in the RSI section be presented for a
ten year period. The plan adopted GASB Statement No. 74 in fiscal year 2014, therefore, only nine years are presented. The
full trend information will be accumulated over the next year.

GASB Statement No. 74 (Financial Reporting for Post Employment Benefits Other than Pension) requires that the schedules
in the RSI section be presented for a ten year period. The Plan adopted GASB Statement No. 74 in the fiscal year 2017,
therefore, only six years are presented. The full trend information will be accumulated over the next four years.
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Combining Statements of Net Position – Fiscal Year 2022

Assets

Deferred outflows of resources

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

Net Position

Total Net Position

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and net position

121 136

{Section}.61.



VIA Metropolitan Transit

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Fiscal Year 2022

MTA ATD Total
Operating revenues:

Operating expenses:

Depreciation on capital assets:

Amortization expense:

Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Income before capital contributions

Change in net position
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Combining Statement of Cash Flows – Fiscal Year 2022

MTA ATD Total
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the statements of net position

Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Budget to Actual (GAAP Basis) – MTA 2022

Budget Actual Variance
MTA
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Budget to Actual (GAAP Basis) – ATD 2022

Budget Actual Variance
ATD
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas
As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Schedule of Operating Expenses by Expense Category and Cost Center
Metropolitan Transit Authority

11 16 17 13 20 25 21 31 35
Robert Other

Line Thompson Special Purchased Van Disaster Promotional
Service Terminal Event VIA Link VIAtrans Transportation Disaster Relief Relief-Bus Service 

Labor 67,885,757  152,865  138,090  - 10,369,459 1,390,278      -     -  10,638    
Fringe Benefits 141     -   -     - - -    -     -   -     
Services 5,300,318  13,936  4,061  398,825  320,936  341,057     -     -  (14,393)   
Materials & Supplies 15,984,450  23,778  20,338    - 1,295,291 1,045,338      -     -  2,865  
Utilities 1,618,749  19,622  496     - 315,021 46,793   -     -  157     
Casualty & Liability 891,265  483  976     - 141,077 -    -     -  98  
Taxes 101,254  53    76  - 8,129 94,278   -     -  36  
Purchased Transportation -      -   -  1,453,211     - 5,262,779  -     -   -     
Miscellaneous Expenses 131,999  58    75  (34,231)   10,665 11,434 -     -   7    
Leases & Rentals 69,025  (112) 99 - 316 (316)       -     -  17  
Expense Transfer to Capital -      -   -     -   - -    -     -   -     
Fringe Dist. Other 23,682,657   69,462  63,488    - 3,518,368 474,120     -     -  3,299  
Expense Transfers 28,626,520  75,749  59,101    - 4,267,207 593,373     -     -  4,191  

Sub-Total 144,292,135  355,894  286,800  1,817,805  20,246,469  9,259,134      -     -  6,915  

Sub-Total less Indirect/Fringe 
Lease Amort. Expense 143,728,622  354,399  285,627  1,817,805  20,162,480  9,247,461      -     -  6,833  

Depreciation on capital assets:
Direct Depreciation 28,675,153   15,035  17,515    - 2,921,873 -    -     -  2,968  
Indirect Depreciation 3,031,547  1,480  1,875  - 309,023 -    -     -  315     
Fringe Depreciation -      -   -     -   -    -    -     -   -     

Sub-Total Depreciation 31,706,700  16,515  19,390    - 3,230,896 -    -     -  3,283  

Amortization expense:
Lease Amortization Indirect Allocation 548,770  1,452  1,133  - 81,799 11,378   -     -  80  
Lease Amortization Fringe Allocation 14,743  43    40  - 2,190 295   -     -   2    
Lease Amortization 34,997  (17) - 1,128,116  28,974 9,592,638      -     -   2    

Sub-Total Amorization Expense 598,510  1,478  1,173  1,128,116  112,963  9,604,311      -     -  84  

Total Operating Expenses 176,033,832  372,392  306,190  2,945,921  23,506,339  18,851,772    -     -  10,200    

Note: The Fringe Dist. Other and Expense Transfers expense categories includes the Indirect and Fringe cost center lease amoritization expense.
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas
As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2022

Metropolitan Transit Authority
55 65 12 14 70 72 81-89*

Business Combined
Real Estate Development Line MTA ATD MTA & ATD

Development and Planning Service Vanpool Sub-Total Indirect Indirect Fringe Total

- 2,240,943 16,917,980  54,782   99,160,792   23,214,527         - 1,477,380 123,852,699          Labor
- - 42   -   183   11,135 - 32,258,505 32,269,823   Fringe Benefits

175  5,578,028   1,121,919  1,200   13,066,062   11,849,134   (9,899)      889,973 25,795,270   Services
- 4,579 4,942,154           - 23,318,793 2,085,739           - 2,081 25,406,613   Materials & Supplies

492  - 391,919 - 2,393,249 1,327,590           - - 3,720,839   Utilities
502  - 273,507 136,969   1,444,877 130,262              - - 1,575,139   Casualty & Liability

-       -   31,134 - 234,960 3,087 - - 238,047   Taxes
-       -   -  207,797   6,923,787 -     - -   6,923,787   Purchased Transportation
- 460,728 20,417 - 601,152 2,088,247           - 8,791 2,698,190   Miscellaneous Expenses
- - 20,354 - 89,383 84,320 - - 173,703   Leases & Rentals
- - -      -             -        -     - (249,382) (249,382) Expense Transfer to Capital
- 748,387 5,828,832  20,156   34,408,769            -     - (34,408,769)          - Fringe Dist. Other
- 918,585 7,012,172  24,548   41,581,446   (41,591,345)   9,899       -           - Expense Transfers

1,169 9,951,250   36,560,430  445,452   223,223,453   (797,304)             - (21,421) 222,404,728   Sub-Total

Sub-Total less Indirect/Fringe 
1,169 9,933,176   36,422,189  444,968   222,404,729          (1) - -   222,404,728          Lease Amort. Expense 

Depreciation on capital assets:
-       -   4,921,351           - 36,553,895 3,864,521           - -   40,418,416            Direct Depreciation
-       -   520,281              - 3,864,521 (3,864,521)          - -           -   Indirect Depreciation
-       -   -      -             -        -     - -           - Fringe Depreciation
-       -   5,441,632           - 40,418,416 -     - -   40,418,416   Sub-Total Depreciation

Amortization expense:
- 17,608 134,612  471   797,303 (797,303)             - -           -           Lease Amortization Indirect Allocation
- 466 3,629 13   21,421 -     - (21,421) - Lease Amortization Fringe Allocation
- - 148,677              - 10,933,387 797,303              - 21,421 11,752,111   Lease Amortization
- 18,074 286,918  484   11,752,111            -     - -   11,752,111            Sub-Total Amorization Expense

1,169 9,951,250 42,150,739  445,452   274,575,256          (1) - -   274,575,255   Total Operating Expenses

CombinedAdvanced Transportation District
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Combining Statements of Fiduciary Net Position

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Assets

Liabilities

Retirement Plan OPEB Plan Total Fiduciary Funds
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas
As of and for the Year Ended September 30, 2022 and 2021

Combining Statements of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

Additions:
Contributions:
Employee 3,748,353$ 3,824,273$ $ $ 3,748,353$ 3,824,273$
Employer 13,549,455 14,253,181 4,745,409 4,930,564 18,294,864 19,183,745
Total contributions 17,297,808 18,077,454 4,745,409 4,930,564 22,043,217 23,008,018

Investment income (loss):
Interest and dividend income 2,264,117 2,438,853 136,761 64,700 2,400,878 2,503,553
Net appreciation in fair value of investments (57,687,333) 73,152,877 (2,280,294) 1,457,395 (59,967,627) 74,610,272
Investment expenses (1,595,178) (1,855,550) (1,595,178) (1,855,550)
Total investment income (57,018,394) 73,736,180 (2,143,533) 1,522,095 (59,161,927) 75,258,275

Total additions net (39,720,586) 91,813,634 2,601,876 6,452,659 (37,118,710) 98,266,293

Deductions:
Benefit payments 30,684,937 29,450,734 2,294,821 2,876,295 32,979,758 32,327,029
Administrative expenses 160,773 137,671 23,556 39,766 184,329 177,437
Total deductions 30,845,710 29,588,405 2,318,377 2,916,061 33,164,087 32,504,466

Change in net position (70,566,296) 62,225,229 283,499 3,536,598 (70,282,797) 65,761,827

Net position held in trust for retiree
benefits: restricted, at beginning of year 392,688,048 330,462,819 14,791,259 11,254,661 407,479,307 341,717,480

Net position held in trust for retiree
benefits: restricted, at end of year 322,121,752$ 392,688,048$ 15,074,758$ 14,791,259$ 337,196,510$ 407,479,307$

Retirement Plan OPEB Plan Total Fiduciary Funds
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This part of VIA’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report presents detailed information as a 

context for understanding what the information in the fi nancial statements, note disclosures, 

and required supplementary information says about VIA’s overall fi nancial health. 

Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how VIA’s fi nancial 

performance and well-being have change over time.

Net Position ...............................................................................................................................................132

Changes in Net Position .........................................................................................................................133

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader asses VIA’s most signifi cant local 

revenue source, the sales tax.

Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates ............................................................................................136

Estimated MTA/ATD Sales Tax Receipts by City .............................................................................137

Debt Capacity

Schedule of Outstanding Debt and Public Debt Coverage Ratios .............................................140

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 

the environment within which VIA’s fi nancial activities take place.

Demographic and Economic Statistics ..............................................................................................142

Principal Employers .................................................................................................................................143

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the 

information in VIA’s fi nancial report as it relates to the services VIA provides and the activities 

it performs.

Full Time Equivalents ..............................................................................................................................145

Fare History ...............................................................................................................................................146

Line Service Statistics .............................................................................................................................147

VIAtrans Service Statistics .....................................................................................................................148

Line Service Recovery Rate ...................................................................................................................149
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Service Hours by Cost Center ...............................................................................................................150

Revenues by Source ................................................................................................................................151

Operating Expenses by Cost Center ...................................................................................................151
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Capital Assets ...........................................................................................................................................154
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Benefi t and Refund Deductions from Net Position by Type ........................................................155

Retired Members by Type of Benefi t ..................................................................................................156
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2021 2

(Restated) 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 1 (Restated) 2022 3

Net Investment in Capital Assets $175,033,075 $171,241,292 $177,325,265 $181,356,296 $211,516,797 $245,849,541 $252,726,157 $232,554,048 $240,550,347 $246,694,042
Restricted 105,420,435 101,174,318 100,721,318 102,233,683 91,923,793 78,585,541 55,148,690 51,659,833 45,468,715 29,513,232
Unrestricted 109,393,508 123,167,778 2,428,152 (6,471,436) (13,328,420) (48,258,266) (37,510,764) 50,627,119 186,196,271 306,702,337

Total Net Position $389,847,018 $395,583,388 $280,474,735 $277,118,543 $290,112,170 $276,176,816 $270,364,083 $334,841,000 $472,215,333 $582,909,611

Source: VIA's Annual Audited Financial Statements

Notes:

1 VIA’s FY20 net position increase of $64.4M was driven by $90.4M of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) revenue that VIA recognized in FY20 
(excluding amount that went to a subrecipient).  CARES Act funds were drawn down based on the cost of service provided, which freed up local funds. 

2 VIA’s FY21 net position increase of $137.4M was driven by $61.2M of Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA) and $57.9M of 
American Rescue Plan (ARP) revenue that VIA recognized in FY21 (excluding amount that went to a subrecipient). CRRSAA Act and ARP funds were drawn down based on 
the cost of service provided, which freed up local funds.

3 VIA's FY23 net position increase of $110.7M was driven by $57.9M of ARP revenue, and higher sales tax revenue, up $30.6M.
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013
(Restated) 2014 2015 2016 2017

Operating Revenues
Line Service 23,001,057$    22,103,715$    20,880,726$    20,051,622$    18,980,613$    
Starlight Service - - - - -
Robert Thompson Terminal 195,549  187,785  145,337           94,787             82,050             
Other Special Events 166,560  181,786  169,079  144,402  140,491           
VIAtrans 1,821,640  1,882,687  1,899,614  1,996,240  2,033,653        
VIA Link - - - - -
Charter 230,308  195,052           86,526             - -
Promotional - - - - -
Real Estate Development 277,714  263,360  281,072  330,799  446,352           
Parking Lot Revenue 10,290             6,491 23,918             12,582             10,201             
Bus Advertising 714,530  749,530  814,530  894,530  939,642           
Miscellaneous 783,235  759,723  436,382  441,677  473,160           

Total Operating Revenues 27,200,883 26,330,129 24,737,184 23,966,639 23,106,162

Operating Expenses
Line Service 140,264,400  147,478,417  161,181,992  167,351,942  165,746,945    
Bus Disaster Relief1 - - - - 163,268           
Robert Thompson Terminal 707,542  733,305  657,286  630,944  465,271           
Other Special Events 584,044  592,886  618,448  552,244  534,207           
VIAtrans 33,147,022  34,330,772  37,375,783  40,922,470  40,055,752      
VIA Link - - - - -
Van Disaster Relief1 - - - - 2,685
Vanpool 534,322  547,806  558,689  608,055  611,149           
Bus Rapid Transit - - - - -
Starlight Service - - - - -
Charter 252,832  239,325  175,609           - -
Promotional - - - 99,753             89,541             
Real Estate Development 857 4,334 613 1,678 539
Business Development and Planning 4,745,443  5,858,692  6,588,687  6,453,239  6,685,076        
Transit Technology 715,552  694,331  685,274  637,751  492,167           

Total Operating Expenses before Depreciation, Amortization 
and Asset Impairment 180,952,014 190,479,868 207,842,381 217,258,076 214,846,600

Depreciation on capital assets 20,933,451  22,804,973  22,275,368  22,200,678  24,012,602      
Amortization of intangible right-of-use lease assets2 - - - - -
Loss on asset impairment - 4,882,000 4,918,000  8,579,632        -

Total operating expenses 201,885,465  218,166,841  235,035,749  248,038,386  238,859,202    
Operating loss (174,684,582)  (191,836,712)  (210,298,565)  (224,071,747)  (215,753,040)   

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Sales Taxes 173,776,660  189,964,334  197,645,249  201,407,198  207,873,339    
Grants Reimbursement 25,145,760  26,045,513  27,047,155  28,773,370  29,032,637      
Grants Revenue - Pass-Through 212,062  1,327,755  1,463,234  1,553,833        
Investment Income (18,870)  577,720  853,433  1,839,616  1,357,966        
CARES Act - VIA - - - - -
CRRSA Act - VIA - - - - -
ARP Act - VIA - - - - -
CoSA Intergovernmental Revenue - - - - -
TXDOT Intergovernmental Agreement - - - -
Lease Interest Expense - - - - -
Bond Interest and Amortization (63,884)  (3,542,815)  (3,000,034)  (3,237,107)  (5,619,099)       
Net Gain(Loss) on Sale of Assets 73,893             40,839  (1,252)  (117,056)  2,633,990        
Less Pass-Through Funds to Subrecipients - (212,062) (1,327,755)  (1,400,626)  (1,452,788)       
Less amount remitted to ATD, CoSA, TxDOT, and Bexar Co. (27,138,822)  (29,541,042)  (30,637,238)  (31,427,566)  (32,413,170)     
Local Assistance - - - (461,513)  (40,000)            

Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses) 171,774,737  183,544,549  191,907,313  196,839,550  202,926,708    

Capital Contributions 117,491,316  14,028,533  21,974,093  23,876,005  25,819,959      

Change in Net Position 114,581,471$  5,736,370$      3,582,841$      (3,356,192)$     12,993,627$    

Source: VIA's Annual Audited Financial Statements

2 Reflects implementation of GASB 87, Leases, in 2022, and restatement of the prior year results (2021) for this new lease accounting 
standard.

1 VIA is occasionally asked to provide transportation services for communities that are impacted by hurricanes.  These citizens are 
transported from the coastal areas to relief centers in San Antonio.
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Changes in Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2021
2018 2019 2020 (Restated) 2022

Operating Revenues
18,369,534$     18,096,588$     11,740,521$     10,291,078$     11,398,655$     Line Service

- - - - - Starlight Service
77,468             71,168             28,569             2,734 26,534 Robert Thompson Terminal

178,001  106,386           15,897             10,336 58,647 Other Special Events
1,999,596  1,912,340  1,175,591  1,091,265  1,448,826          VIAtrans

- 11,869 28,171             14,977 21,099 VIA Link
- - - - - Charter
- - - - - Promotional

577,989  557,273  269,407  362,449  232,099             Real Estate Development
7,752 13,805             4,839 57,650 90,521 Parking Lot Revenue

950,635  1,021,564  1,313,119  1,560,834  1,591,811          Bus Advertising
416,518  455,673  334,719  353,757  392,289  Miscellaneous

22,577,493 22,246,666 14,910,833 13,745,080 15,260,481 Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
165,548,929   179,874,538   188,445,007   188,396,245   180,150,811       Line Service

- - 13,660  506,119             - Bus Disaster Relief1

499,523  710,668  305,276           47,296 354,399  Robert Thompson Terminal
670,088  495,404  131,703           60,972 285,627             Other Special Events

42,097,730  45,611,738  39,832,398  27,415,583   29,409,941         VIAtrans
- 375,020 995,067  221,936  1,817,805          VIA Link
- - - 695,355             - Van Disaster Relief1

597,442  604,486 641,848  317,352  444,968  Vanpool
- - - - - Bus Rapid Transit
- - - - - Starlight Service
- - - - - Charter

65,106             70,002             25,597             63,171 6,833 Promotional 
801 1,051 892 954 1,169 Real Estate Development

6,468,225  6,598,704  6,305,032  6,464,140  9,933,175  Business Development and Planning
- - - - - Transit Technology

215,947,845 234,341,611 236,696,480 224,189,123 222,404,728
Total Operating Expenses before Depreciation,
Amortization and Asset Impairment

34,362,524  36,702,975  39,884,886  38,979,912   40,418,416         Depreciation on capital assets
- - - 11,516,051   11,752,111         Amortization of intangible right-of-use lease assets2

- - - - - Loss on asset impairment
250,310,369   271,044,586   276,581,366   274,685,086   274,575,255       Total operating expenses

(227,732,876)  (248,797,920)  (261,670,533)  (260,940,006)  (259,314,774)     Operating loss

Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
220,294,591   232,542,350   230,619,498   260,964,006   297,129,934       Sales Taxes
30,500,898  39,285,411  25,794,461  40,663,346   36,145,744   Grants Reimbursement

815,948  2,071,336  1,569,027  1,960,357  2,007,449  Grants Revenue - pass through
1,861,966  4,008,706  2,919,432  128,528  183,540             Investment Income

- - 90,437,617      - 10,989 CARES Act - VIA
- - - 61,224,865         - CRRSA Act - VIA
- - - 57,918,494   57,941,080         ARP Act - VIA

4,300,000  10,000,000  7,000,000  10,000,000   10,000,000   CoSA Intergovernmental Revenue
- - - - (1,700,000)  TXDOT Intergovernmental Agreement
- - - (588,697)  (310,096)     Lease Interest Expense

(5,774,084)  (5,539,802)  (5,429,955)  (4,028,879)  (3,500,049)  Bond Interest and Amortization
218,743  (912,121)          4,412 (6,494,550)  4,553,165          Net Gain(Loss) on Sale of Assets

(897,060)  (2,071,336)  (1,569,027)  (1,960,357)  (2,007,449)  Less pass-through funds to subrecipients
(34,311,703)  (36,224,798)  (35,790,181)  (40,711,427)  (46,246,506)  Less amount remitted to ATD, CoSA, TxDOT, and Bexar 

- - (568,301)          - - Local Assistance
217,009,299   243,159,746   314,986,983   379,075,686   354,207,801       Net Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

24,967,580  (174,559)  11,160,467  19,238,653   15,801,251   Capital Contributions

14,244,003$     (5,812,733)$    64,476,917$     137,374,333$    110,694,278$    Change in Net Position

Source: VIA's Annual Audited Financial Statements
1 VIA is occasionally asked to provide transportation services for communities that are impacted by 
hurricanes.  These citizens are transported from the coastal areas to relief centers in San Antonio.
2 Reflects implementation of GASB 87, Leases, in 2022, and restatement of the prior year results (2021) 
for this new lease accounting standard.
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates
As of September 30, 2022

Metropolitan Advanced
Transit Transportation Total Special Total

Authority District Direct Purpose Sales Tax
City (MTA) (ATD) Rate State City District Rate

Alamo Heights 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.500% 8.25%

Balcones Heights 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.000% 0.500% 8.25%

Castle Hills 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.250% 0.250% 8.25%

China Grove 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.250% 8.00%

Converse 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.500% 8.25%

Elmendorf 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.500% 8.25%

Kirby 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.250% 0.250% 8.25%

Leon Valley 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.375% 0.125% 8.25%

Olmos Park 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.500% 8.25%

Saint Hedwig 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.500% 8.25%

Sandy Oaks 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.500% 8.25%

Shavano Park 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.250% 0.250% 8.25%

Terrell Hills 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 1.250% 8.00%

San Antonio 0.50% 0.25%2 0.75% 6.25% 1.250% 8.25%

Unincorporated 0.50% 0.50% 6.25% 6.75%
    (Bexar County)

Source: State of Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts

Note: The Texas state sales and use tax rate is 6.25%. Local taxing jurisdictions (cities, counties, special purpose districts, and
transit authorities) may also impose sales and use tax up to 2% for a total maximum combined rate of 8.25%. Transit authority 
rates are limited to between 0.25% and 1% and may be increased only by a majority vote of the city's residents.

1Overlapping rates are other state and local rates that apply to taxable sales in cities with direct MTA and ATD rates.

2VIA Metropolitan Transit retains 1/2 of the 0.25% ATD tax collected and remits 1/4 to the City of San Antonio and 
1/4 to the Texas Department of Transportation.

Direct Rates Overlapping Rates1

Local
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Estimated MTA/ATD Sales Tax Receipts by City
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Alamo Heights 445,742$  473,443$  471,080$  505,166$  509,808$  
Balcones Heights 702,293 701,787 732,556 716,374 703,907 
Castle Hills 459,610 458,501 491,947 508,528 516,192 
China Grove 57,159 77,598 83,033 74,519 69,503 
Converse 856,192 906,675 984,923 1,039,386 1,050,920 
Elmendorf 40,532 54,865 87,361 196,823 260,351 
Kirby 108,265 115,451 132,692 153,993 147,530 
Leon Valley 933,280 1,084,454 1,102,355 1,139,132 1,132,195 
Olmos Park 232,007 224,911 235,966 226,460 239,283 
Saint Hedwig 30,063 36,134 33,307 35,461 40,060 
San Antonio (MTA) 112,728,315           123,682,950           128,985,691           130,857,440           135,134,156           
San Antonio (ATD)1 27,138,822            29,541,044            30,637,237            31,427,566            32,413,171 
Sandy Oaks - - 3,057 16,611 18,845 
Shavano Park 407,841 334,104 189,886 194,475 218,223 
Terrell Hills 107,737 113,730 109,504 116,658 145,085 
Other2 2,389,980 2,617,645 2,727,415 2,771,040 2,860,940 

Total Sales Tax Receipts 146,637,838$         160,423,292$         167,008,010$         169,979,632$         175,460,169$         

Source: VIA's Fiscal Management Department

Note:  VIA does not receive MTA sales tax receipt details by individual member city from the 
Texas Comptroller. Gross sales tax receipts for the MTA are allocated by city based on the 
ratio of the MTA sales tax rate to the total city sales tax rate. Cities within Bexar County, 
Texas can elect to join or leave the metropolitan transit authority by majority vote.   

On November 2, 2004, voters in San Antonio approved the formation of the Advanced 
Transportation District (ATD). The ATD provides funding for transportation projects carried out 
by VIA, the City of San Antonio, and the Texas Department of Transportation. The ATD sales 
tax are not allocated as they are collected from a single city.

1This amount does not include the portion of ATD sales tax receipts that VIA remits to the City 
of San Antonio and the Texas Department of Transportation.

2This line represents the unincorporated areas within Bexar County, as well as those 
communities that have withdrawn from the MTA.  
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Estimated MTA/ATD Sales Tax Receipts by City
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

562,564$  595,886$  647,129$  727,434$  849,100$  Alamo Heights
750,609 820,950 753,216 905,955 921,534 Balcones Heights
515,510 556,900 598,266 667,844 699,643 Castle Hills
68,974 71,545 68,126 92,296 110,076 China Grove

1,206,952 1,255,494 1,428,587 1,666,940 1,906,638 Converse
428,878 272,902 179,560 138,171 117,517 Elmendorf
154,672 155,040 177,426 228,743 253,637 Kirby

1,190,943 1,210,371 1,209,876 1,430,494 1,599,586 Leon Valley
244,562 259,704 239,594 288,600 333,659 Olmos Park
24,393 42,256 70,994 98,762 134,877 Saint Hedwig

143,122,099           151,238,207           150,006,728           169,136,996           192,988,093           San Antonio (MTA)
34,311,703            36,224,798            35,790,181            40,711,426            46,246,507 San Antonio (ATD)1

26,839 38,606 45,217 51,675 52,304 Sandy Oaks
206,614 229,318 259,494 309,008 330,884 Shavano Park
134,152 143,720 174,140 207,412 246,635 Terrell Hills

3,033,424 3,201,855 3,180,783 3,590,823 4,092,738 Other2

185,982,888$         196,317,552$         194,829,317$         220,252,579$         250,883,428$         Total Sales Tax Receipts

Source: VIA's Fiscal Management Department

Note:  VIA does not receive MTA sales tax receipt details by individual member city from the Texas 
Comptroller. Gross sales tax receipts for the MTA are allocated by city based on the ratio of the MTA 
sales tax rate to the total city sales tax rate. Cities within Bexar County, Texas can elect to join or leave 
the metropolitan transit authority by majority vote.   

On November 2, 2004, voters in San Antonio approved the formation of the Advanced Transportation 
District (ATD). The ATD provides funding for transportation projects carried out by VIA, the City of San 
Antonio, and the Texas Department of Transportation. The ATD sales tax are not allocated as they are 
collected from a single city.

1This amount does not include the portion of ATD sales tax receipts that VIA remits to the City of San 
Antonio and the Texas Department of Transportation.

2This line represents the unincorporated areas within Bexar County, as well as those communities that 
have withdrawn from the MTA.  
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
Schedule of Outstanding Debt and Coverage Ratios

Restated
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

OUTSTANDING DEBT

Private Placement Bond Issues:
  MTA Farebox Revenue Bonds Series 2012 5,100,000$       -$   -$   -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$   
  MTA Contractual Obligations Series 2012 2,765,000         2,325,000         1,880,000           1,425,000          960,000             485,000             - - - -  
  ATD Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2012 5,100,000         -  -  - - - - - - -  
  MTA Contract Revenue Bonds Series 2012 -  -  -  - - - - - - -  
  MTA Contractual Obligations Series 2020 -  -  -  - - - - 11,000,000        8,845,000          6,670,000       
Public Bond Issues:
  MTA Farebox Revenue Bonds Series 2013 -  38,860,000 37,955,000         37,010,000        36,030,000        35,010,000        33,950,000        32,835,000        6,790,000          5,560,000       
  ATD Sales Tax Revenue Bonds Series 2014 -  32,925,000 32,140,000         31,335,000        30,495,000        29,625,000        28,710,000        27,755,000        7,055,000          6,005,000       
  MTA Contractual Obligations Series 2017 -  - -  - 81,995,000        76,835,000        70,730,000        66,410,000        59,370,000        55,465,000    
  MTA Farebox Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2020 -  - -  - - - - - 28,295,000        27,905,000    
  ATD Sales Tax Revenue Refunding Bonds, Taxable Series 2020 -  - -  - - - - - 23,250,000        22,910,000    
Total Bonds 12,965,000       74,110,000       71,975,000         69,770,000        149,480,000      141,955,000      133,390,000      138,000,000      133,605,000      124,515,000  
Bond Premium 6,358,751         6,051,227           5,832,883          18,258,044        16,922,920        15,587,796        14,252,672        11,403,251        9,783,451       
Total Debt Outstanding 12,965,000       80,468,751       78,026,227         75,602,883        167,738,044      158,877,920      148,977,796      152,252,672      145,008,251      134,298,451  
Gross Revenues (a) 199,039,504    213,417,493    219,645,783       224,621,865      231,691,969      241,060,876      261,858,335      328,896,072      393,797,214      364,978,427  
Ratio of Total Debt to Gross Revenues 0.07 0.38 0.36  0.34 0.72 0.66 0.57 0.46 0.37 0.37 
# of Riders (b) 45,894,417       44,346,565       42,218,985         39,635,173        37,807,626        36,276,136        36,147,067        27,961,018        20,175,672        22,094,252    
Debt Per Rider 0.28 1.81 1.85  1.91 4.44 4.38 4.12 5.45 7.19 6.08 

COVERAGE RATIOS FOR DEBT OUTSTANDING AS OF 9/30/20

MTA Contractual Obligations
MTA Sales Tax Revenue 119,047,377    128,894,914    136,251,947       136,634,249      142,993,108      150,703,656      158,791,830      158,643,607      174,560,863      201,408,316  
Less: Obligations Similarly Secured Debt Service (c) (490,335)          (494,471)          (490,803)             (492,036)            (2,132,865)         (9,589,412)         (10,380,255)       (7,878,317)         (12,631,000)       (9,141,373)     
Net Sales Tax Revenues Available for Authority 118,557,042    128,400,443    135,761,144       136,142,213      140,860,243      141,114,244      148,411,575      150,765,290      161,929,863      192,266,943  
Debt Service Coverage Ratio on Obligations Similarly Secured (d) 242.8x 260.7x 277.6x 277.7x 67.0x 15.7x 15.3x 20.1x 13.8x 22.0x

MTA Farebox Revenue Bonds
Maintenance & Operating (M&O) Expenses (170,674,123)   (185,886,928)   (208,843,385)      (212,471,574)     (212,330,576)     (223,841,761)     (237,526,334)     (229,243,988)     (235,235,783)     (251,363,772) 
Net Sales Tax Revenues (Per Above) 118,557,042    128,400,443    135,761,144       136,142,213      140,860,243      141,114,244      148,411,575      150,765,290      161,929,863      192,266,943  
Available ATD Sales Tax (e) 26,923,159       29,108,126       28,249,607         28,593,844        29,976,854        31,756,920        33,528,663        33,309,756        37,406,528        43,340,006    
Grants Available to Pay Maintenance and Operating Expenses (f) 18,229,255       34,590,137       22,376,436         32,448,605        27,041,045        30,087,557        43,338,067        110,112,747      98,148,293        132,830,395  
Contributions Available to Pay Maintenance and Operating Expenses (g) -  -  -  (461,513)            (40,000)              4,300,000          10,000,000        6,531,785          10,000,000        10,000,000    
Net M&O Expenses Remaining Before Application of Operating Revenues (6,964,667)       6,211,778         (22,456,198)        (15,748,425)       (14,492,434)       (16,583,040)       (2,248,029)         71,475,590        72,248,901        127,073,572  

Operating Revenue 26,885,148       26,444,828       25,002,383         24,880,247        23,272,287        23,143,989        22,338,868        15,226,712        13,512,708        14,979,650    
Less: Remaining Maintenance and Operating Expenses (6,964,667)       6,211,778         (22,456,198)        (15,748,425)       (14,492,434)       (16,583,040)       (2,248,029)         71,475,590        72,248,901        127,073,572  
Net Operating Revenue Available for Farebox Revenue Bonds 19,920,481       32,656,606       2,546,185           9,131,822          8,779,853          6,560,949          20,090,839        86,702,302        85,761,609        142,053,222  

Debt Service on Farebox Revenue Bonds 58,197              2,480,104         2,812,700           2,816,500          2,813,700          2,814,500          2,813,700          2,815,700          2,566,162          2,566,672       
Farebox Revenue Bond Debt Service Coverage Ratio (d) 342.3x 13.2x 0.9x 3.2x 3.1x 2.3x 7.1x 30.8x 33.4x 55.3x

ATD Sales Tax Revenue Bonds
ATD Sales Tax Revenue 27,138,822       29,541,043       30,637,238         31,427,566        32,413,171        34,311,703        36,224,798        35,790,181        40,711,426        46,246,507    
  Less District Debt Service (55,958)             (63,750)             (2,370,743)          (2,370,650)         (2,373,450)         (2,369,850)         (2,371,350)         (2,374,750)         (2,216,377)         (2,216,510)     
Net ATD Sales Tax Revenue 27,082,864       29,477,293       28,266,495         29,056,916        30,039,721        31,941,853        33,853,448        33,415,431        38,495,049        44,029,997    
Debt Service Coverage Ratio (d) 485.0x 463.4x 12.9x 13.3x 13.7x 14.5x 15.3x 15.1x 18.4x 20.9x

Note:  VIA implemented GASB 87 in FY22 and restated FY21 for comparative purposes (net position impact was -$179,504; refer to Note 14 in FY22 Audit Report).
          For a description of pledged revenues associated with the above bonds, please refer to the Long-Term Debt footnote in VIA's audited financial statements.

(a) Total operating revenue, plus nonoperating revenue from sales taxes, grants reimbursement, investment income and asset sales.
(b) Total systemwide passengers (includes all bus service and paratransit service).
(c) This reflects debt service on MTA contractual obligations (Series 2020, 2017, and 2012). 
(d) Coverage ratios shown are slightly different than those in VIA's public debt continuing disclosure documents due to rounding (the latter ratios are based on figures rounded to $0.01 million).
(e) ATD sales taxes less debt service on ATD bonds.
(f) Available to the extent permitted by the applicable grant agreement.
(g) In FY18-FY20, the City of San Antonio provided VIA funding for bus service improvements.  Contributions out are for local assistance that VIA has provided (such as to TxDOT's Transportation Alternatives Program).
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Demographic and Economic Statistics for the City of San Antonio
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Per Population 25
Personal Capita Years and over - Average Yearly

Fiscal Income Personal Median Percent high school School Unemployment 
Year Population (in thousands) Income Age Graduate or Higher Enrollment Rate

2012 1,359,730 29,038,394 21,356 32.7 80.7 396,718 6.4%
2013 1,383,194 30,752,552 22,233 33.2 80.8 397,500 5.8%
2014 1,409,019 31,581,326 22,414 33.0 80.7 407,047 4.8%
2015 1,436,697 32,790,329 22,823 33.2 * 401,771 3.7%
2016 1,469,824 34,905,380 23,748 33.1 81.0 403,558 3.8%
2017 1,492,494 35,701,948 23,921 33.5 80.9 401,867 3.2%
2018 1,511,913 37,230,858 24,625 33.6 83.3 410,625 3.3%
2019 1,532,212 37,821,121 24,684 33.7 82.3 411,539 3.1%
2020 1,547,250 41,506,529 26,826 34.4 82.7 411,357 7.3%
2021 1,529,133 40,259,014 26,328 33.8 82.7 410,917 5.3%
2022 1,451,863 41,900,766 28,860 34.1 83.4 372,075 3.6%

* Data unavailable.

Population, personal income, per capita income, median age and school enrollment information provided by the 
U.S. Census Bureau (https://data.census.gov).
Unemployment rate provided by the San Antonio Bureau of Labor Statistics.

Sources:
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Principal Employers

Employees Rank

Joint Base San Antonio (JBSA) - Lackland, Fort Sam & Randolph 74,289 1
H.E.B. Food Stores 20,000 2
United Services Automobile Association 19,000 3
Northside Independent School District 13,644 4
Methodist Health Care System 12,500 5
City of San Antonio 11,042 6
North East Independent School District 8,600 7
San Antonio Independent School District 7,410 8
Baptist Health Systems 6,162 9
Wells Fargo 5,152 10

Source: https://www.sanantonio.gov/Portals/0/Files/Finance/FY2021-ComprehensiveAnnualFinancialReport.pdf.

Employer

2021
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Full-Time Equivalents
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Full-Time Employees

Bus Operator 742        795        943        882        876        954        966        906        816        767        
Van Operator 143        140        150        156        158        164        153        142        140        154        

Fleet & Facility Shops 334        345        344        368        366        332        384        405        392        383        
Transportation/Fleet & Facility (Salaried) 195        201        191        195        197        202        209        191        193        209        

Administration(Salaried) 249        244        278        286        309        320        330        326        320        351        
Subtotal 1,663     1,725     1,906     1,887     1,906     1,972     2,042     1,970     1,861     1,864     

Part-Time (Full-Time Equivalents)
Bus Operator 131.6     107.6     77.9       111.7     74.0       97.4       58.7       49.5       45.4       41.3       
Van Operator 2.4         4.2         0.6         0.6         -           -           -           -           -           -           

Fleet & Facility Shops -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           -           
Transportation/Fleet & Facility (Salaried) 15.0       15.0       12.9       11.0       9.0         9.0         10.5       8.3         8.3         2.3         

Administration(Salaried) 12.0       11.3       11.3       13.5       14.3       4.5         6.0         4.5         3.8         3.0         
Subtotal 161.0     138.1     102.7     136.8     97.2       110.9     75.2       62.2       57.4       46.6       

Grand Total
Bus Operator 873.6     902.6     1,020.9  993.7     950.0     1,051.4  1,024.7  955.5     861.4     808.3     
Van Operator 145.4     144.2     150.6     156.6     158.0     164.0     153.0     142.0     140.0     154.0     

Fleet & Facility Shops 334.0     345.0     344.0     368.0     366.0     332.0     384.0     405.0     392.0     383.0     
Transportation/Fleet & Facility (Salaried) 210.0     216.0     203.9     206.0     206.0     211.0     219.5     199.3     201.3     211.3     

Administration(Salaried) 261.0     255.3     289.3     299.5     323.3     324.5     336.0     330.5     323.8     354.0     
Grand Total 1,824.0  1,863.1  2,008.7  2,023.8  2,003.2  2,082.9  2,117.2  2,032.2  1,918.4  1,910.6  

Source: VIA's Monthly Personnel Report
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Category 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Bus Service1

Regular Bus Service 1.20$    1.20$    1.20$    1.30$    1.30$    1.30$    1.30$  1.30$  1.30$  1.30$  
Regular Half Fare 0.60 0.60 0.60 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65
Express Bus Service 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60 2.60
Express Half Fare 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30
Bus Transfer 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 0.15 - - -
Bus Transfer Half Fare 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 - - -

VIA Link Service
VIA Link Service - - - - - - 1.30 1.30 1.30 1.30
VIA Link Service Half Fare - - - - - - 0.65 0.65 0.65 0.65
VIA Link Transfer - - - - - - 0.15 - - -
VIA Link Transfer Half Fare - - - - - - 0.07 - - -

VIAtrans Service2

VIAtrans Service 1.95 1.95 1.95 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
VIAtrans Taxi Subsidy 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00

Special Event Service 5.00 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 2.50 1.30
Special Event Half Fare 2.50 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25 0.65

Passes
31-Day Pass 35.00 35.00 35.00 38.00 38.00 38.00 38.00 38.00 38.00 38.00
31-Day Half Fare 17.50 17.50 17.50 19.00 19.00 19.00 19.00 19.00 19.00 19.00
Semester Pass 35.00 35.00 35.00 38.00 38.00 38.00 38.00 38.00 38.00 38.00
7-Day Pass - - - 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00 12.00
7-Day Pass Half Fare - - - 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00 6.00
Day Pass 4.00 4.00 4.00 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75
Day Pass Half Fare - - - 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35 1.35

Source: VIA's Fiscal Management Division

Note: 

2 Occasionally, due to community or emergency needs, provisions noted above (in Note 1) apply to paratransit services also.

San Antonio, Texas

Fare History
Last Ten Fiscal Years

1 Limited additional service without charge to the service recipient is provided to identified categories of riders, including 
(but not limited to) VIA employees/board members and spouses, police and fire personnel in uniform, VIAtrans patrons 
and one companion/attendant, and senior citizens within specific timeframes, for which VIA realizes operational value or
expense offset. VIA has also, due to community or emergency needs (including in response to natural catastrophe, 
pandemic, and civil unrest and social justice), provided limited, periodic ridership service where the charges were
satisfied from other sources (such as disaster recovery funding, COVID-19 federal relief funding, advertising revenue and
investment income that were undesignated and otherwise uncommitted) and whose impact was determined to not be 
financially material to VIA's operations or its ability to meet its debt service obligations or satisfy its related debt service
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VIA Metropolitan Transit

Fiscal Passengers
Year Passengers Hours Miles Per Hour
2013 44,635,608 1,618,364 22,520,641 27.58
2014 43,085,594 1,629,262 22,877,589 26.44
2015 40,938,967 1,678,728 23,654,868 24.39
2016 38,334,650 1,718,037 24,097,912 22.31
2017 36,493,890 1,747,733 24,351,329 20.88
2018 34,984,740 1,804,870 25,153,738 19.38
2019 34,864,333 1,877,679 26,214,747 18.57
2020 27,020,133 1,727,776 24,603,469 15.64
2021 19,449,634 1,595,112 23,079,355 12.19
2022 21,100,561 1,436,158 20,793,937 14.69

Source: VIA's Revenue Accounting Statistical Records
VIA's Miles and Hours Report

(1) Results impacted by COVID-19

San Antonio, Texas

Line Service Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

VIAtrans Service Statistics

Fiscal
Year

Directly 
Operated Purchased

Directly 
Operated Purchased

Directly 
Operated Purchased

Directly 
Operated Purchased, , , , , , , ,

2013 488,752 557,800 265,249 300,535 4,480,271 6,404,527 1.84 1.86
2014 443,678 609,869 251,695 340,939 4,269,252 6,709,623 1.76 1.79
2015 458,282 650,131 263,343 368,139 4,620,731 7,152,795 1.74 1.77
2016 505,815 668,289 281,861 376,680 5,018,275 7,405,518 1.79 1.77
2017 535,285 665,547 288,551 368,234 5,062,700 7,199,213 1.86 1.81
2018 520,167 634,589 280,663 368,708 4,900,387 6,983,577 1.85 1.72
2019 518,184 623,135 286,328 369,238 5,085,099 7,112,376 1.81 1.69
2020 (1) 292,783 493,446 189,732 322,244 3,573,238 5,921,147 1.54 1.53
2021 (1) 237,471 403,332 170,463 286,577 3,019,230 5,360,790 1.39 1.41
2022 (1) 308,316 515,981 194,587 339,897 3,286,255 5,906,495 1.58 1.52

Source: VIA's Revenue Accounting Statistical Records.
VIA's Miles and Hours Report and Procurement's Contract Administrator for purchased service contracts.

(1) Results impacted by COVID-19

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Line and VIAtrans Service Recovery Rate

Fiscal Recovery
Year Rate
2013 16.4%
2014 15.0%
2015 13.0%
2016 12.0%
2017 11.5%
2018 11.1%
2019 10.1%
2020 6.2%
2021 5.4%
2022 6.3%

Fiscal Recovery
Year Rate
2013 5.5%
2014 5.5%
2015 5.1%
2016 4.9%
2017 5.1%
2018 4.7%
2019 4.2%
2020 3.0%
2021 2.9%
2022 3.7%

Source: VIA's Annual Audited Financial Statements.

Note: Recovery rate is fare revenue divided by total expenses excluding depreciation.

Last Ten Fiscal Years
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Service Miles by Cost Center Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Charter/
Year Line Service Special Event Promotional Service Disaster Relief VIA Link Direct Purchased Total
2013 22,520,641 153,521 30,137 - - 4,480,271 6,404,527 33,589,097
2014 22,877,589 143,754 27,242 - - 4,269,252 6,709,623 34,027,460
2015 23,654,868 129,111 15,225 - - 4,620,731 7,152,795 35,572,730
2016 24,097,912 115,500 8,151 - - 5,018,275 7,405,518 36,645,356
2017 24,351,329 92,095 6,752 9,219 - 5,062,700 7,199,213 36,721,308
2018 25,153,738 114,367 4,718 - - 4,900,387 6,983,577 37,156,787
2019 26,214,747 91,572 4,523 - 132,697 5,085,099 7,112,376 38,641,014
2020 24,603,469 34,793 10,131 3,921 395,377 3,573,238 5,921,147 34,542,076
2021 23,079,355 3,384 21,097 - 317,784 3,019,230 5,360,790 31,801,640
2022 20,793,937 29,215 3,025 - 613,799 3,286,255 5,906,495 30,632,726

Fiscal Charter/
Year Line Service Special Event Promotional Service Disaster Relief VIA Link Direct Purchased Total
2013 1,618,364 12,234 3,232 - - 265,249 300,535 2,199,614
2014 1,629,262 10,996 2,906 - - 251,695 340,939 2,235,798
2015 1,678,728 10,093 1,930 - - 263,343 368,139 2,322,233
2016 1,718,037 8,602 1,322 - - 281,861 376,680 2,386,502
2017 1,747,733 7,067 1,179 1,797 - 288,551 368,234 2,414,561
2018 1,804,870 9,079 877 - - 280,663 368,708 2,464,197
2019 1,877,679 8,153 903 - 12,388 286,328 369,238 2,554,689
2020 1,727,776 2,818 2,590 630 29,455 189,732 322,244 2,275,245
2021 1,595,112 324 6,117 - 24,322 170,463 286,577 2,082,915
2022 1,436,158 3,553 1,140 - 52,307 194,587 339,897 2,027,642

Source: VIA's Miles and Hours Report and Procurement's Contract Administrator for purchased service contracts.

Service Hours by Cost Center Last Ten Fiscal Years

VIAtrans

VIAtrans
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Revenues by Source Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Operating Grant Investment Federal Stimulus Misc Contributed
Year Revenues Sales Tax1 Revenues Income/(Loss) Funds3 Income Capital Total

2013 27,200,883   146,637,838  25,145,760  (18,870)          - 73,893 117,491,316  316,530,820  
2014 26,330,129   160,423,292  26,045,513  577,720         - 40,839 14,028,533   227,446,026  
2015 24,737,184   167,008,011  27,047,155  853,433         - - 21,974,093   241,619,876  
2016 23,966,639   169,979,632  28,835,978  1,839,616      - - 23,876,005   248,497,870  
2017 23,106,162   175,460,169  29,133,682  1,357,966      - 2,633,990 25,819,959   257,511,928  
2018 22,577,493   185,982,888  30,419,786  1,861,966      - 4,518,743 24,967,580   270,328,456  
2019 22,246,666   196,317,552  39,285,411  4,008,706      - 10,000,000  (174,559)       271,683,776  
2020 14,910,833   194,829,317  25,794,461  2,919,432      90,437,617            7,004,413   11,160,467   347,056,540  
20214 13,745,080   220,252,579  40,663,346  128,528         119,143,359          10,000,000  19,238,653   423,171,545  
2022 15,260,481   250,883,427  36,145,744  183,540         57,952,069            14,553,165  15,801,251   390,779,677  

Expenses by Cost Center (Including Depreciation and Lease Amortization)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Charter/ Other Disaster Total Non-
Fiscal Line Special Promotional Operating Relief Lease Operating Operating Total
Year Service2 Event Service VIAtrans VIA Link Vanpool Expenses Van/Bus Amortization Expenses Expenses Expenses

2013 159,497,124 1,962,959 275,894 34,095,208 - 537,595 5,516,685 - - 201,885,465 63,884 201,949,349
2014 167,004,628 1,807,553 162,317 36,908,809 - 551,133 11,732,401 - - 218,166,841 3,542,815 221,709,656
2015 180,567,404 1,365,037 187,014 40,040,010 - 561,930 12,314,354 - - 235,035,749 3,001,286 238,037,035
2016 186,842,126 1,258,534 105,340 43,478,439 - 608,055 15,745,892 - - 248,038,386 3,815,676 251,854,062
2017 187,217,217 1,067,195 94,276 42,443,538 - 612,716 7,248,400 175,859 - 238,859,202 5,659,099 244,518,301
2018 197,334,643 1,289,167 70,183 42,378,161 - 599,124 8,639,091 - - 250,310,369 5,774,085 256,084,454
2019 215,355,760 1,312,152 75,339 46,644,213 375,020 606,633 6,675,470 - - 271,044,586 6,451,923 277,496,510
2020 227,328,045 478,094 34,327 40,718,761 995,067 643,780 6,364,934 18,358 - 276,581,366 5,998,256 282,579,623
20214 226,530,565 115,119 86,243 28,231,251 221,936 317,352 6,465,094 1,201,474 11,516,051 274,685,086 11,112,126 285,797,212
2022 217,299,143 675,931 10,115 32,640,837 1,817,805 444,968 9,934,344 - 11,752,111 274,575,255 5,510,145 280,085,399

Source:    VIA's Annual Audited Financial Statements.

Notes: 1.  Sales tax includes amounts remitted to CoSA, TxDOT, and Bexar County.
2. FY2008 through FY2013 Bus Rapid Transit Expense has been moved to Line Service Expense due to MAP21 (Sec. 5302)

requirements which requires a dedicated lane for rapid transit buses during peak periods.
3. Includes VIA's portion of funds from: Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act); Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act

(CRRSA Act); and, American Rescue Plan (ARP).
4. FY2021 results were restated for implementation for GASB 87, which was implemented in FY2022 (see Lease Amortization column).

Non-Operating Revenues
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Operating Expenses by Object Class
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013
Restated 2014 2015 2016 2017

 Operator 41,573,464$   42,947,778$   47,142,668$   48,017,399$   51,056,596          
 Garage 12,741,074  13,435,740  14,443,230  15,426,170  16,309,026          

 Salaried 20,927,964  22,054,983  24,170,612  26,825,279  27,795,474          
Total Labor 75,242,502  78,438,501  85,756,510  90,268,847  95,161,096          

Fringe Benefits 44,339,708  49,087,760  55,068,428  61,828,682  59,108,167          
Total Labor and Fringe Benefits 119,582,210  127,526,261  140,824,938  152,097,529  154,269,263        

  Advertising Fees 834,106  868,797  590,285 202,540 344,039 
  Prof. & Tech Fees 5,012,806  5,575,998  6,487,853  5,994,215  6,712,151            

  Temporary Help - - - 52,107 166,871 
  Contract Maintenance 2,304,871  2,727,184  2,917,234  3,283,320  3,341,287            

  Custodial Services - - - - - 
  Security Services 1,576,519   1,668,227  2,019,443  2,107,951  2,023,186            

  Other Services 571,305   545,909  722,178 770,920 1,022,580            
IT Licenses & Subscription Services - - - - - 

Total Services 10,299,607  11,386,115  12,736,993  12,411,053  13,610,114          

  Fuel & Lubricants 23,177,525  22,148,972  21,327,903  18,039,638  12,151,290          
  Tires & Tubes 1,374,880  1,200,905  1,226,545  1,367,306  1,489,717            

 Other Materials & Supplies 9,725,894   9,478,859  10,679,662  11,425,533  10,299,360          
Total Materials & Supplies 34,278,299  32,828,736  33,234,110  30,832,477  23,940,367          

Utilities 2,006,016   2,223,969  2,432,041  2,792,929  3,019,717            

Casualty & Liability 1,243,807   885,038  1,706,027  1,015,344  2,549,143            

Taxes 1,573,900  1,480,347  1,497,985  1,389,149  1,225,911            

Purchased Transportation 10,410,650  12,405,128  13,630,089  14,800,400  14,798,855          

  Dues & Subscriptions 379,151  405,648  382,293 473,051 405,119 
  Training & Meetings 487,004  494,390  528,531 482,994 446,958 

Fines & Penalties - 294 - 33,342 - 
  Bad Debt Expense 2,635 8,858 1,040 148,593 17,962 

  Advertising/Promotion Media 514,553   929,762  477,899 329,205 233,129 
Miscellaneous Expense 783,941  727,381  873,733 896,811 806,063 

Total Miscellaneous Expense 2,167,284  2,566,333  2,263,496  2,363,996  1,909,231            

Interest Expense - - - - - 

Leases & Rentals 296,882  247,471  445,654 258,837 334,583 

Expense transfer to Capital Program (906,641)  (1,069,530)  (928,952)  (703,638)  (810,585)              

Total Operating Expense Before
 Depreciation & Capitalized Amounts 180,952,014  190,479,868  207,842,381  217,258,076  214,846,599        

Depreciation 20,933,451  22,804,973  22,275,368  22,200,678  24,012,603          

Lease Amortization - - - - - 

Allowance - 4,882,000 4,918,000  8,579,632            - 

Indirect Expense (Capitalized) - - - - - 

Fringe Expense (Capitalized) - - - - - 

 Total Operating Expenses 201,885,465$    218,166,841$    235,035,749$   248,038,386$   238,859,202$   

Source: VIA's Annual Audited Financial Statements

Fiscal Year
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2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

55,778,595$        58,805,412$        56,730,903$        55,662,531$        53,803,109$        Operator
16,469,534          17,896,920          20,010,861          19,555,124          19,487,267          Garage
29,373,615          31,572,377          33,218,343          32,283,105          34,155,190          Salaried

101,621,745        108,274,710        109,960,107        107,500,760        107,445,566        Total Labor

56,583,203          60,002,531          69,290,179          66,585,307          48,676,953          Fringe Benefits
158,204,948        168,277,241        179,250,286        174,086,066        156,122,519        Total Labor and Fringe Benefits

559,265 1,898,900            568,222 1,357,971            2,551,878            Advertising Fees
6,382,451            7,011,781            5,020,618            5,628,032            10,380,476          Prof. & Tech Fees

150,390 135,056 95,810 176,662 403,805 Temporary Help
3,989,942            4,473,270            4,925,465            7,049,972            7,595,636            Contract Maintenance

- - - - - Custodial Services
2,311,541            2,959,408            3,066,466            3,209,261            2,812,648            Security Services
1,109,390            1,671,749            1,982,807            2,032,028            2,030,426            Other Services

- - - - 20,400 IT Licenses & Subscription Services
14,502,979          18,150,164          15,659,388          19,453,927          25,795,269          Total Services

7,302,290            7,606,705            (189,760)              4,535,097            8,481,913            Fuel & Lubricants
1,702,636            1,795,781            1,591,270            1,174,646            1,147,368            Tires & Tubes
9,839,658            11,448,235          13,268,207          14,145,567          15,777,332          Other Materials & Supplies

18,844,584          20,850,721          14,669,717          19,855,310          25,406,613          Total Materials & Supplies

3,305,183            3,601,087            3,387,453            3,509,978            3,720,840            Utilities

2,388,207            2,377,519            1,660,606            1,347,707            1,575,140            Casualty & Liability 

584,150 436,838 383,939 273,847 238,047 Taxes

15,622,172          17,631,858          15,356,298          14,057,322          6,923,788            Purchased Transportation

511,733 381,458 380,603 361,726 389,026 Dues & Subscriptions
353,685 471,756 313,217 331,763 344,615 Training & Meetings

- 60 - 67 - Fines & Penalties
30,255 (1,549) 148,799 (44,565) (15,631) Bad Debt Expense

721,060 1,105,256            4,611,323            1,766,904            658,760 Advertising/Promotion Media
1,068,144            1,068,656            841,016 1,008,190            1,321,420            Miscellaneous Expense
2,684,877            3,025,637            6,294,958            3,424,085            2,698,191            Total Miscellaneous Expense

- - - - - Interest Expense

324,013 352,449 374,082 282,950 173,704 Leases & Rentals

(513,269)              (361,903)              (340,247)              (337,258)              (249,382)              Expense transfer to Capital Program

Total Operating Expense Before
215,947,844        234,341,611        236,696,480        235,953,934        222,404,728        Depreciation & Capitalized Amounts

34,362,525          36,702,975          39,884,886          38,979,912          40,418,416          Depreciation

- - - - 11,752,111          Lease Amortization

- - - - - Allowance

- - - - - Indirect Expense (Capitalized)

- - - - - Fringe Expense (Capitalized)

250,310,369$      271,044,586$      276,581,366$      274,933,846$      274,575,255$      Total Operating Expenses

Fiscal Year
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VIA Metropolitan Transit
San Antonio, Texas

Capital Assets
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Land 31,729,733$      31,812,673$  32,841,276$  33,891,182$  33,094,493$  33,334,256$  33,334,256$  33,522,689$  33,514,806$  35,214,548$  

Revenue Vehicles
Bus 156,393,853 161,102,879 163,792,050 165,240,017 282,101,388 278,303,551 285,554,230 285,750,606 283,072,418 271,856,830 
Van 16,177,015 13,062,931 12,390,028 12,531,053 12,560,208 14,250,641 14,349,729 14,349,729 26,676,910 22,867,281 

Total Revenue Vehicles 172,570,868 174,165,810 176,182,078 177,771,070 294,661,596 292,554,191 299,903,960 300,100,336 309,749,328 294,724,111 

Service Vehicles
Trucks 2,397,254 2,500,468 3,007,261 3,073,640 3,073,640 4,181,082 4,225,311 5,514,895 5,595,934 5,933,692 
Automobiles 939,038 897,848 990,916 1,033,832 1,033,832 1,005,447 1,005,447 1,005,447 702,647 680,379 
Other Service Vehicles 592,318 701,175 714,009 730,539 730,537 735,839 735,839 735,839 684,361 648,133 

Total Service Vehicles 3,928,610 4,099,491 4,712,186 4,838,011 4,838,009 5,922,368 5,966,597 7,256,181 6,982,942 7,262,204 

Buildings and Structures
Transit Way Facilities 38,962,046 38,948,550 39,422,162 39,487,969 44,458,346 45,543,988 45,557,046 46,178,140 12,651,134 12,651,134 
Passenger Stations 69,465,333 71,174,228 80,689,459 82,536,760 113,333,160 123,384,288 126,659,333 148,971,336 146,612,078 163,438,962 
Passenger Parking Stations 2,618,686 2,618,686 2,618,686 2,618,686 2,618,686 22,237,701 23,427,785 23,454,947 23,364,714 23,387,814 
Operating Yards and Stations 17,783,579 18,010,568 18,131,642 18,226,057 18,410,821 31,558,093 31,669,509 32,507,576 32,631,210 32,777,814 
Vehicle Maintenance Shops and Garages 18,562,713 18,623,635 18,805,095 19,024,906 20,018,060 20,602,770 20,878,169 20,967,357 20,885,177 21,374,482 
Other General Administration Facilities 18,536,882 18,953,212 21,551,971 21,714,105 23,704,819 25,166,015 25,804,447 27,137,747 27,798,936 28,489,972 
Stadium/Depot Complex 6,437,115 6,437,115 6,437,115 6,437,115 6,437,115 6,437,115 6,437,115 6,437,115 6,430,804 6,430,804 

Total Buildings and Structures 172,366,354 174,765,995 187,656,130 190,045,598 228,981,007 274,929,969 280,433,405 305,654,219 270,374,054 288,550,982 

Equipment
Passenger Stations 3,249,984 3,249,984 3,258,088 3,258,088 3,290,084 3,290,084 3,280,374 3,280,374 3,280,374 3,393,105 
Operating Yards and Stations 199,938 323,809 436,506 462,309 510,985 1,940,144 1,951,561 2,540,490 2,529,051 2,859,984 
Vehicle Maintenance Shops and Garages 2,704,444 3,088,946 3,342,263 3,499,320 3,508,734 3,623,239 3,616,680 3,606,840 2,933,313 4,260,783 
Other General Administration Facilities 594,149 611,740 651,360 652,535 607,566 660,345 571,884 723,233 584,375 640,429 
Revenue Vehicle Movement Control 15,363,365 15,493,408 15,244,418 15,206,752 15,206,752 15,202,277 15,162,593 15,162,593 14,916,567 14,961,065 
Revenue Collection and Processing 341,679 340,268 9,244,995 9,330,962 9,415,460 10,826,024 13,025,244 13,059,507 13,056,051 12,279,051 
Data Processing 16,437,124 17,455,993 17,996,076 17,965,381 18,654,577 21,858,449 13,350,840 14,601,978 9,328,113 9,765,455 
Communication 4,124,438 4,152,708 4,188,880 4,748,407 5,229,837 6,920,625 7,979,783 11,868,910 11,856,099 11,945,113 
Office Equipment 190,677 396,880 495,958 578,918 576,352 1,720,123 1,434,339 1,456,967 1,451,967 1,451,967 

Total Equipment 43,205,798 45,113,736 54,858,544 55,702,672 57,000,347 66,041,310 60,373,297 66,300,892 59,935,911 61,556,952 

Total Capital Assets Before Depreciation 423,801,363 429,957,705 456,250,214 462,248,533 618,575,452 672,782,095 680,011,514 712,834,317 680,557,041 687,308,798 

Accumulated Depreciation
Revenue Vehicles (110,594,492)  (116,038,273)  (125,114,295)  (134,259,461)  (146,152,107)  (106,564,215)  (123,737,826)  (143,944,953)  (144,715,047)  (138,757,852)  
Service Vehicles (3,087,851)      (3,393,392)      (3,735,614)      (4,079,811)      (4,427,497)      (4,660,131)      (4,738,987)      (5,513,218)      (5,679,217)      (5,764,179)      
Buildings and Structures (121,292,354)  (129,193,302)  (136,386,968)  (144,210,994)  (151,740,938)  (159,559,202)  (168,709,647)  (181,206,243)  (157,601,886)  (171,429,690)  
Equipment (31,326,126)    (35,130,813)    (38,909,956)    (42,886,132)    (46,638,339)    (50,307,622)    (45,239,527)    (51,602,759)    (48,180,486)    (51,820,430)    

Total Accumulated Depreciation (266,300,823)  (283,755,779)  (304,146,833)  (325,436,398)  (348,958,881)  (321,091,169)  (342,425,987)  (382,267,173)  (356,176,635)  (367,772,151)  

Allowance for Capital Projects
Allowance for Capital Projects (4,882,000)  (9,800,000)  - - - - - - - - 

Total Allowance for Capital Projects (4,882,000)  (9,800,000)  - - - - - - - - 

Work In Progress
Revenue Vehicles 1,965,827 2,279,032 108,277 8,983,042 16,479,450 1,847,937 131,013 12,029,674 302,008 4,680,768 
Service Vehicles - - 116,670 - - 119,625 48,043 17,410 119,602 19,866 
Buildings and Structures 20,766,453 42,838,973 55,874,682 53,233,428 63,447,824 41,618,794 55,378,986 35,553,055 48,028,456 45,713,449 
Equipment 7,765,256 9,687,289 2,721,347 4,740,012 12,499,858 9,450,179 8,560,384 6,639,438 7,177,310 7,766,781 

Total Work In Progress 30,497,535 54,805,294 58,820,976 66,956,482 92,427,132 53,036,535 64,118,426 54,239,577 55,627,376 58,180,864 

Net Capital Assets 183,116,076$    191,207,221$  210,924,358$  203,768,618$    362,043,704$    404,727,462$    401,703,954$    384,806,721$    380,007,782$    377,717,511$    

Source: VIA's Annual Audited Financial Statements
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VIA Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan
Changes in Retirement Plan Net Position
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands) Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Additions
Member Contributions 3,703$   4,227$   4,236$    4,122$     4,487$     4,421$     4,258$     4,102$     3,824$     3,748$     
Employer Contributions 10,639   9,799     12,144    12,908 13,308 12,480 14,729 14,346 14,253 13,549 
Investment Income (net of expenses) 25,017   22,741   2,675      21,792 33,716 29,240 10,588 33,587 73,736 (57,018)    

Total additions to plan net position 39,359   36,767   19,055    38,822 51,511 46,141 29,575 52,035 91,813 (39,721)    

Deductions
Benefit Payments 16,093   17,168   18,877    19,424 21,398 22,706 24,573 24,111 28,800 30,115 
Refunds 461        218        346         366 380 255 238 336 650 569 
Administrative Expenses 241        215        236         144 255 121 145 138 138 163 

Total Deductions from plan net position 16,795   17,601   19,459    19,934 22,033 23,082 24,956 24,585 29,588 30,847 

Change in net position 22,564$ 19,166$ (404)$     18,888$   29,478$   23,059$   4,619$     27,450$   62,225$   (70,568)$  

Benefit and Refund Deductions from Net Position by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(dollars in thousands) Fiscal Year

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Type of Benefit
Age and service benefits 13,572$ 14,630$ 16,049$  16,330$   18,060$   19,254$   20,676$   20,395$   24,854$   26,034$   

Disability benefits 996        1,076     1,233      1,346 1,470 1,625 1,655 1,692 1,698 1,733 

Beneficiaries 1,525     1,462     1,595      1,748 1,868 1,827 1,839 2,024 2,248 2,348 

Total benefits 16,093   17,168   18,877    19,424 21,398 22,706 24,170 24,111 28,800 30,115 

Type of Refund
Separation 461        218        346         366 380 255 238 336 650 569 
Death

Total refunds 461$      218$      346$       366$        380$        255$        238$        336$        650$        569$        

VIA Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan
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Retired Members by Type of Benefit
As of September 30, 2022

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 6

Amount of Monthly 
Benefit

Number 
of Retired 
Members

$1 - $500 141          5 60 36 19 19 2 32         3           5           23         25         53         
501 - 1,000 248          19 124 49 37 12 7 59         20         9           18         48         94         

1,001 - 1,500 182          24 82 22 38 4 12 46         8           5           10         40         73         
1,501 - 2,000 112          35 39 10 20 5 3 25         7           4           8           27         41         
2,001 - 2,500 139          79 30 11 16 2 1 30         6           5           11         42         45         
2,501 - 3,000 119          82 18 8 11 0 0 23         3           5           8           38         42         
Over 3,000 251          191 9 12 37 0 2 62         6           11         14         70         88         

Total 1,192       435       362       148       178       42         27         277       53         44         92         290       436       1,192    
Deferred 78            Deferred 78         

Total w/Deferred 1,270       Total 1,270    

¹ Type of retirement: ² Option Selected:

1 - Normal Retirement for age and service Option 1 - Life only
2 - Early Retirement Option 2 - 5 year certain and life
3 - Disability Retirement Option 3 - 10 year certain and life
4 - Late Retirement Option 4 - 15 year certain and life
5 - Vested Termination Retirement Option 5 - Joint and 50% survivor
6 - Beneficiary, all types except death in service plus alternate payees Option 6 - Joint and 100% survivor

(Excludes 3 death in service term certain options)

VIA Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan

Option Selected²Type of Retirement¹
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VIA Metropolitan Transit Retirement Plan
Average Benefit Payments
Last Ten Years

 Years Credited Service

Retirement Effective Dates 0-5 5-10 10-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-35 35-40+

2012 - 2013
  Average Monthly Benefit -$             430$   718$    982$    1,156$    2,516$    2,731$    4,226$    
  Average Final Average Salary -$             40,461$       39,314$    38,714$    43,209$    58,176$    56,142$    72,406$    
  Number of Active Retirants - 10 6 7 6 6 17 14 

2013 - 2014
  Average Monthly Benefit -$             425$   562$    1,040$    1,657$    2,865$    3,246$    3,771$    
  Average Final Average Salary -$             35,020$       29,016$    40,021$    48,571$    62,333$    60,134$    61,360$    
  Number of Active Retirants -               5 4 5 7 12 15 10 

2014 - 2015
  Average Monthly Benefit -$             445$   983$    1,045$    1,249$    2,454$    3,282$    4,081$    
  Average Final Average Salary -$             45,108$       45,206$    48,027$    45,431$    58,958$    64,250$    62,905$    
  Number of Active Retirants -               9 4 8 6 12 11 5 

2015 - 2016
  Average Monthly Benefit -$             508$   602$    1,489$    1,310$    2,779$    2,875$    3,253$    
  Average Final Average Salary -$             48,569$       41,885$    69,995$    48,461$    64,777$    60,476$    85,724$     
  Number of Active Retirants -               2 7 9 4 11 10 4 

2016 - 2017
  Average Monthly Benefit -$             529$   862$    1,300$    1,880$    2,734$    3,472$    3,621$    
  Average Final Average Salary -$             47,126$       50,559$    64,050$    56,463$    68,405$    70,017$    65,143$    
  Number of Active Retirants -               6 12 5 8 9 12 11 

2017 - 2018
  Average Monthly Benefit -$             635$   889$    1,065$    1,923$    2,943$    4,025$    5,049$    
  Average Final Average Salary -$             67,963$       55,617$    42,716$    56,179$    64,458$    76,753$    89,949$    
  Number of Active Retirants -               4 5 10 9 12 10 12 

2018 - 2019
  Average Monthly Benefit -$             470$   766$    1,315$    2,017$    2,904$    3,812$    4,384$    
  Average Final Average Salary -$             40,259$       51,425$    56,105$    66,431$    66,787$    71,995$    75,274$    
  Number of Active Retirants -               6 10 11 7 11 9 7 

2019 - 2020
  Average Monthly Benefit -$             763$   1,510$    1,025$    1,703$    2,553$    3,452$    4,670$    
  Average Final Average Salary -$             52,262$       85,313$    49,289$    56,169$    62,137$    66,501$    78,237$    
  Number of Active Retirants -               1 12 9 8 16 22 10 

2020 - 2021
  Average Monthly Benefit -$             -$  1,025$   1,126$    1,759$    2,989$    4,561$    5,350$    
  Average Final Average Salary -$             -$  52,218$       54,273$    60,422$    71,650$    81,392$    86,590$    
  Number of Active Retirants - -  12 6 9 13 8 16 

2021 - 2022
  Average Monthly Benefit -$             -$  976$   1,261$    1,753$    3,199$    3,496$    4,079$    
  Average Final Average Salary -$             -$  58,094$       57,298$    61,374$    73,218$    72,810$    72,915$    
  Number of Active Retirants - -  18 4 12 16 7 7 
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ADMINISTRATIVE 
FAX (210) 362-2570

PROCUREMENT 
FAX (210) 362-2586

FISCAL MANAGEMENT 
FAX (210) 362-2571

800 WEST MYRTLE, P.O. BOX 12489
SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS 78212

(210) 362-2000
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Melinda Moritz
Public Works Director
City Council Meeting

April 18, 2023

Household Hazardous 
Waste Disposal

Direction from Council
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Summary
• Question

– Direction to Staff - Consider solutions for removal of
public & private Household Hazardous Waste (HHW)

• Options

1. Partner with San Antonio River Authority

2. Wait for possible grant from Alamo Area Council of
Governments (AACOG)

3. Advertise Requests for Proposals (RFP’s) from
HHW disposal companies

4. Other
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Background

• Citizens have been asking for a place to dispose of 
household hazardous waste (HHW)

• Bexar County used to offer a free service to suburban 
cities through a grant they received

– Waste Management’s “At Your Door” program

• County no longer accepts HHW from suburban cities 
– only from unincorporated areas in county 

• To further our environmental stewardship goals, we 
should strive to provide this service
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Possible Solutions
• San Antonio River Authority (SARA) has offered to assist in 

holding one day event
– They pay $15,000 or 1/3 of cost of event, whichever is lower

– Last event they sponsored was in Wilson County and it cost over 
$40,000 total, but they accepted e-waste and other nondisposables, 
along with HHW – event had approximately 429 vehicles 

– They contract with Heritage Waste Solutions for disposal

– We provide the space & advertisement, & contractor takes care of the 
rest

– Contractors must notify TCEQ 45 days prior to the event

– We could ask Tiger Sanitation to also sponsor event

• Would require a budget adjustment from the General Fund
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Possible Solutions

• Alamo Area Council of Governments (AACOG) does have a 
grant program that includes HHW
– Comes up in fall time frame – no guarantee we’d get it, but we’ve 

obtained grants from them before ($30,000 woodchipper) – no match 
required, but more points for matching

• Long term solution is to advertise RFP’s from HHW companies 
& pay each year until we find a solid waste company that will 
provide HHW disposal along with garbage service
– Will increase costs to solid waste customers

• SARA is sending a Request for Proposal template for these 
services for our future use
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Fiscal Impact

• Unknown at this time

• Should plan on $20,000 to $30,000

• Hold one event, then evaluate
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Recommendation

• None – at Council discretion
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S.E.E. 
Statement

Social Equity:  Removing HHW from our 
environment protects the health, safety, and 
welfare of all citizens. 

Economic Development: Removing HHW 
responsibly may reduce the need for 
expensive environmental studies in creeks 
and on vacant land

Environmental Stewardship:  Protecting our 
creeks and other waterways from 
contamination protects people and wildlife 
from potential water contamination hazards
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 4/07/2023  7:08 AM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  999 - Pooled Cash                                                               CHECK DATE:      3/01/2023 THRU  3/31/2023

ACCOUNT:  112010          Pooled Cash                                                     CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     Check                                                                           STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    A                                                                               AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098823  JOHN T RUTKOSKI JR                     479.76CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098824  AC TECHNICAL SERVICES                  606.25CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098825  ADVANCE AUTO PARTS INC                 164.80CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098826  AFFORDABLE TRAILERS & ULTIMATE         560.00CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098827  AGENCY 405                               7.00CR   POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098828  AMAZON.COM LLC                          13.39CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098829  AMERICAN LEAK DETECTION              1,700.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098830  ANGEL FIRE & SAFETY, LLC             1,833.00CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098831  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098832  AT&T                                   107.91CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098833  AT&T LONG DISTANCE                       1.53CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098834  AT&T UVERSE                            330.86CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098835  AT&T UVERSE                            258.24CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098836  AUTOWORKS, INC.                         58.66CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098837  FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE                 541.59CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098838  MARTHA VON NIMITZ                    1,523.57CR   POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098839  BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF TX        91,374.73CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098840  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098841  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC                 21.98CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098842  BUCKHORN SOIL & STONE LLC              287.00CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098843  CANDIDO PEREZ                          120.00CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098844  CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING       1,476.15CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098845  DAVID LEVY                               5.00CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098846  DEWINNE EQUIPMENT CO, INC               43.42CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098847  DSHS CENTRAL LAB MC1982                113.54CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098848  GALLS, LLC                             186.98CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098849  GREATER:SATX                         2,500.00CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098850  HEAT SAFETY EQUIPMENT, LLC.            178.76CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098851  HIGH SIERRA ELECTRONICS, INC         1,152.26CR   POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098852  IAPE                                   395.00CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098853  INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES LLC            576.89CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098854  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098855  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098856  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098857  JORGE BRETON                            90.00CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098858  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               156.67CR   POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098859  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               800.47CR   POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098860  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               211.53CR   POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098861  MATTHEW GRUBER                          75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098862  MEDPRO WASTE DISPOSAL, LLC.            841.42CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098863  LAWRENCE G MORALES                   2,550.00CR   POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098864  NARDIS PUBLIC SAFETY                   262.94CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098865  NinjaRMM, LLC           VOIDED       5,210.40CR   VOIDED    A    3/02/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098866  NSTS LLC                             2,062.81CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000
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 4/07/2023  7:08 AM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   2

COMPANY:  999 - Pooled Cash                                                               CHECK DATE:      3/01/2023 THRU  3/31/2023

ACCOUNT:  112010          Pooled Cash                                                     CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     Check                                                                           STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    A                                                                               AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098867  ORKIN COMMERCIAL SERVICES               75.00CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098868  PETROLEUM TRADERS                    3,976.86CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098869  PPG ARCHITECTURAL FINISHES             156.24CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098870  QUADIENT INC                           856.53CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098871  SAN ANTONIO WATER SYSTEM               422.14CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098872  SAECO ELECTRIC & UTILITY,              483.75CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098873  SAWS                               125,792.11CR   POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098874  SIMPLIFILE, LC                          28.75CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098875  SWAGIT PRODUCTIONS, LLC              9,830.00CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098876  T-MOBILE USA                           146.30CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098877  TCOLE                                   35.00CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098878  TECHLEAD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         576.00CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098879  TMC PROVIDER GROUP, PLLC               354.00CR   POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098880  TEXAS MUNICIPAL EQUIPMENT LLC        3,429.92CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098881  TIGER SANITATION                       691.61CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098882  TIME WARNER CABLE                      281.76CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098883  TMHRA                                   75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098884  TOTAL MAINTENANCE SOLUTIONS SO         169.75CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098885  TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC              3,067.47CR   POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/02/2023 CHECK     098886  VALLANCE SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC          95.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098887  6ETTERS ACE KEY SERVICE INC             11.97CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098888  ADVANCE AUTO PARTS INC                  84.71CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098889  AMAZON.COM LLC                         561.42CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098890  AMERICAN HERITAGE LIFE INSURAN         962.94CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098891  AMERICAN TRAFFIC SOLUTIONS, IN      66,500.00CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098892  ANGEL FIRE & SAFETY, LLC               510.50CR   POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098893  AT&T                                 1,300.20CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098894  AUTOWORKS, INC.                         57.52CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098895  BANIS TOWING SERVICE                 3,545.00CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098896  BATTERIES + BULBS SA                    14.99CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098897  BEXAR APPRAISAL DISTRICT             7,206.00CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098898  WORLD TIRE UNLIMITED INC.            1,031.96CR   POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098899  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC                923.39CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098900  BUCKHORN SOIL & STONE LLC              248.50CR   POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098901  CIVIC PLUS, LLC                      5,000.00CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098902  CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING OF         130.50CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098903  DAVID K YOUNG CONSULTING, LLC          209.00CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098904  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098905  ELAINE VALDEZ                           35.76CR   POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098906  GEAR CLEANING SOLUTIONS, LLC           172.00CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098907  GRAINGER INC                           217.86CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098908  GULF COAST PAPER CO INC              1,392.38CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098909  iHEARTMEDIA ENTERTAINMENT, INC       3,375.00CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098910  ISAAC CARDENAS                          30.00CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023
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COMPANY:  999 - Pooled Cash                                                               CHECK DATE:      3/01/2023 THRU  3/31/2023

ACCOUNT:  112010          Pooled Cash                                                     CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     Check                                                                           STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    A                                                                               AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098911  JIMMY GARCIA                            64.99CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098912  JOEL URDIALES                           83.99CR   POSTED    A    3/09/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098913  JOSEPH PEREZ                           120.00CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098914  KARLA AGUILAR                          250.00CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098915  LESLIE ANN KASSAHN                   2,400.00CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098916  LISA HERNANDEZ                          95.98CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098917  MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS              685.75CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098918  NAPA SAN ANTONIO AUTO & TRUCK          363.76CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098919  NARDIS PUBLIC SAFETY                   541.40CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098920  NEXUS HOLDING, LLC                     763.30CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098921  PPG ARCHITECTURAL FINISHES             190.39CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098922  RAFAEL DIAZ                             75.00CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098923  REGIONAL WATER RESOURCES DEV G         100.00CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098924  SAN ANTONIO WATER SYSTEM               469.09CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098925  SAFESITE, INC                          354.50CR   POSTED    A    3/13/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098926  SERVICE UNIFORM RENTAL                 409.91CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098927  SHARP ELECTRONICS                       28.00CR   POSTED    A    3/16/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098928  SOUTH TEXAS BLOOD & TISSUE CEN         500.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098929  TECHLEAD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES       6,000.00CR   POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098930  TEXAS LAWMAN SECURITY & TRAFFI       4,510.00CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098931  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/14/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098932  TEXAS POLICE TRAINERS                  160.00CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098933  TIME WARNER CABLE                      111.73CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098934  WELDERS SUPPLY CO INC                   97.50CR   POSTED    A    3/15/2023

     112010           3/09/2023 CHECK     098935  WESLEY PARKS                            25.00CR   POSTED    A    3/20/2023

***  112010           3/10/2023 CHECK     098938  LEON VALLEY FD HOUSE FUND              210.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098939  ADVANCE AUTO PARTS INC                  28.29CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098940  AIR RELIEF TECHNOLOGIES, INC           436.94CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098941  ALTAWORX, LLC                        2,198.75CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098942  AMAZON.COM LLC                       1,991.92CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098943  ANGEL FIRE & SAFETY, LLC             2,769.34CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098944  AT&T MOBILITY                        1,621.32CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098945  AUTOWORKS, INC.                         69.29CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098946  BB INSPECTION SERVICES, LLC          5,985.00CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098947  BLACKSTONE AUDIO, INC.                  64.00CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098948  BOBBY G. MCMILLAN                    1,200.00CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098949  BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC              1,002.19CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098950  CITIBANK                            10,300.94CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098951  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098952  CORE & MAIN LP                       2,114.69CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098953  CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING OF          55.25CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098954  DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURAN         856.98CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098955  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098956  DEWINNE EQUIPMENT CO, INC               84.95CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023
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COMPANY:  999 - Pooled Cash                                                               CHECK DATE:      3/01/2023 THRU  3/31/2023

ACCOUNT:  112010          Pooled Cash                                                     CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     Check                                                                           STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999
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                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999
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CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098957  DPC INDUSTRIES, INC                     80.00CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098958  GALLS, LLC                           1,011.04CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098959  HANJAK INDUSTRIES, LLC               3,336.29CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098960  HEAT SAFETY EQUIPMENT, LLC.            125.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098961  HELOTES ECHO                           475.00CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098962  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES           1,213.89CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098963  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098964  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098965  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098966  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098967  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/20/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098968  INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES LLC             65.14CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098969  JOHNSTONE SUPPLY OF SAN ANTONI          49.03CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098970  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM                41.41CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098971  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM                23.05CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098972  LYRASIS                              2,480.00CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098973  MANSFIELD OIL COMPANY                1,984.97CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098974  MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS              750.06CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098975  MINER, LTD.                          1,698.00CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098976  NSTS LLC                             1,193.58CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098977  ORKIN COMMERCIAL SERVICES               91.00CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098978  RIVER CITY BOLT & SCREW                 14.89CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098979  SERVICE UNIFORM RENTAL                 409.91CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098980  SPOK, INC                                9.78CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098981  TAYLOR MADE HOSE INC                    11.25CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098982  THOMSON REUTERS WEST                   484.31CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098983  TIME WARNER CABLE                      120.61CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098984  TML INTERGOVERNMENTAL RISK POO       1,624.00CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098985  WEX HEALTH                              66.75CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098986  ZOLL MEDICAL CORP                      294.92CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098987  AMANDA VARGAS                           75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098988  BENNY MARTINEZ                          55.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098989  BP LIGHTING, SOUND & VIDEO, LL       4,720.00CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098990  CHRIS RILEY                             71.83CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098991  CRYSTAL MIRANDA                        203.83CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098992  DANNY HERNANDEZ                         59.67CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098993  DEMCO, INC                              79.87CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098994  ERIC BURNSIDE                        1,548.75CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098995  ERIKA V. RIVERA                        406.90CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098996  HEATHER RODRIGUEZ                      198.45CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098997  HILARY VASQUEZ                          39.87CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098998  JENNIFER MAGALLANES                      4.24CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     098999  JIM ORTIZ                              312.20CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099000  JOEL URDIALES                          478.10CR   POSTED    A    3/20/2023
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COMPANY:  999 - Pooled Cash                                                               CHECK DATE:      3/01/2023 THRU  3/31/2023

ACCOUNT:  112010          Pooled Cash                                                     CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     Check                                                                           STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999
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CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099001  JOHN SUHR                              724.50CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099002  JORDAN GARCIA                           13.14CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099003  JORGE RODRIGUEZ                         61.95CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099004  JOSEPH VALADEZ                          84.60CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099005  JUAN ANTONIO RAMIREZ                    25.00CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099006  LAURA PEREZ                             75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099007  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM                73.76CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099008  MARITES SANCHEZ                        192.20CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099009  MAYRA GUEL                             400.00CR   POSTED    A    3/22/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099010  MELISSA LOPEZ                          400.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099011  MICHAEL BANKS                           75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099012  NAYELI DEBOLT                           75.00CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099013  NEW HORIZON PRINTING                   362.19CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099014  ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC            212.38CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099015  RODOLFO MARTINEZ                     1,256.50CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099016  ROSE WANI                              400.00CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099017  SAMS CLUB BRC PLCC                     284.11CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099018  SARAH SCHNEUKER                        120.00CR   POSTED    A    3/21/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099019  SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE                   277.90CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099020  TONY CUSMANO                           120.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/16/2023 CHECK     099021  WRIGHT EXPRESS FSC                   6,764.02CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099022  6ETTERS ACE KEY SERVICE INC              6.25CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099023  ADIOS PEST CONTROL, LLC                149.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099024  ADVANCE AUTO PARTS INC                  22.98CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099025  AGENCY 405                               5.00CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099026  AIR RELIEF TECHNOLOGIES, INC            32.18CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099027  ALEXANDER M. AMBROZAITIS, SR.          450.00CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099028  ANGEL FIRE & SAFETY, LLC               332.00CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099029  ARDURRA GROUP                       36,570.90CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099030  AT&T                                   602.05CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099031  AT&T UVERSE                            258.92CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099032  AT&T UVERSE                            257.56CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099033  AUTOWORKS, INC.                      4,174.29CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099034  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099035  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099036  BERRY, JACQUELINE OSBURN                25.00CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099037  BILLY RAY SHEPPARD, JR.                450.00CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099038  BRITTNEY CHATMAN                        25.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099039  CAPITAL ONE, N.A.                      419.90CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099040  CARMEN CASTILLO                         75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099041  CENTRAL ELECTRIC ENT. & CO.            288.75CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099042  CENTURY PEST CONTROL INC                95.00CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099043  CLEANVIEW RESOURCES LLC              2,791.02CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099044  CODE BLUE POLICE SUPPLY                 40.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000
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COMPANY:  999 - Pooled Cash                                                               CHECK DATE:      3/01/2023 THRU  3/31/2023

ACCOUNT:  112010          Pooled Cash                                                     CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     Check                                                                           STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    A                                                                               AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099045  CITY PUBLIC SERVICE BOARD           21,863.87CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099046  CUMMINS SOUTHERN PLAINS LLC             83.62CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099047  DAN GOMEZ                              525.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099048  DAVID MUNOZ                            350.00CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099049  DAVILA ELECTRIC CO INC:                505.00CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099050  DEWINNE EQUIPMENT CO, INC              100.00CR   POSTED    A    3/27/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099051  DOLORES ARISPE                          75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099052  ERIC BURNSIDE                            9.50CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099053  GALLS, LLC                              43.43CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099054  GULF COAST PAPER CO INC                349.60CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099055  HERC RENTALS INC                     6,554.00CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099056  INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES LLC            154.73CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099057  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099058  JOHN MEJIA                              75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099059  JONATHAN GONZALEZ                       75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099060  KATJA PIERCE                            75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099061  KEITH MECUM                             75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099062  KURT R. ALI                             60.00CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099063  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               806.89CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099064  LOGICAL MGMT SOLUTIONS, INC.           382.05CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099065  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099066  MAGNUM TRAILER PARTS & EQUIPME      30,633.00CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099067  MARIA ELENA ELIZONDO                 6,000.00CR   POSTED    A    3/23/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099068  MARTIN MARIETTA MATERIALS              388.53CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099069  NAPA SAN ANTONIO AUTO & TRUCK          248.88CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099070  ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC            795.17CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099071  PITNEY BOWES                           225.00CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099072  QUADIENT INC                         2,895.89CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099073  ROGER TAMEZ                          1,000.00CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099074  SERVICE UNIFORM RENTAL                 820.18CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099075  SHARON MCCORD                           25.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099076  SHARP ELECTRONICS                       24.30CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099077  SHERRY WATSON                          114.11CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099078  TAYLOR MADE HOSE INC                    79.53CR   POSTED    A    3/29/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099079  TCL ENTERPRISES, LLC               311,434.70CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099080  TIMOTHY CAMPONESCHI                  1,200.00CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099081  VALLANCE SECURITY SYSTEMS, INC          31.50CR   POSTED    A    3/30/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099082  VERMEER EQUIPMENT TX INC                52.24CR   POSTED    A    3/28/2023

     112010           3/23/2023 CHECK     099083  VOSS LIGHTING                          183.00CR   POSTED    A    4/03/2023

***  112010           3/24/2023 CHECK     099094  LEON VALLEY FD HOUSE FUND              210.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/24/2023 CHECK     099095  Leon Valley Professional Fire          360.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099096  ADVANCE AUTO PARTS INC                 335.62CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099097  AMBER SCHIEVELBEIN                      75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099098  ARDURRA GROUP                          550.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000
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 4/07/2023  7:08 AM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   7

COMPANY:  999 - Pooled Cash                                                               CHECK DATE:      3/01/2023 THRU  3/31/2023

ACCOUNT:  112010          Pooled Cash                                                     CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     Check                                                                           STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    A                                                                               AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099099  ARDURRA GROUP                          625.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099100  ARDURRA GROUP                          600.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099101  ARDURRA GROUP                       19,080.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099102  ARDURRA GROUP                       14,625.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099103  ARDURRA GROUP                          805.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099104  ARDURRA GROUP                        1,492.50CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099105  ASHRAF ISSA                              2.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099106  AT&T                                     1.13CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099107  AT&T UVERSE                            360.29CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099108  AUTOWORKS, INC.                        240.33CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099109  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099110  FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE                 824.44CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099111  BEXAR CO. ELECTIONS ADMIN            5,923.06CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099112  CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS HOLDING       1,476.15CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099113  CITY OF SAN ANTONIO                  5,292.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099114  CODE BLUE POLICE SUPPLY                 39.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099115  CORE & MAIN LP                       1,628.61CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099116  CITY PUBLIC SERVICE BOARD               16.78CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099117  CRAIG SPOONER                          400.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099118  CREDIT SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL I         736.58CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099119  DEWINNE EQUIPMENT CO, INC               40.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099120  GALLS, LLC                             104.40CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099121  GCAK, PC                               102.60CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099122  HELOTES ECHO                           125.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099123  J3 COMPANY LLC                      79,200.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099124  JACKLYN RIOS                            75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099125  JOSETTE VEIT                           200.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099126  JULIANNA AGUEROS                        75.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099127  LEON VALLEY WATER SYSTEM               154.99CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099128  LESLIE ANN KASSAHN                   2,400.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099129  LISA LUNA                              400.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099130  LUCY ABAJIAN                            48.48CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099131  NAPA SAN ANTONIO AUTO & TRUCK           61.96CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099132  NARDIS PUBLIC SAFETY                    34.99CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099133  NEW HORIZON PRINTING                   288.99CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099134  NINJAONE, LLC                        5,210.40CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099135  ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC          1,159.81CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099136  VOID CHECK                               0.00     POSTED    A    4/03/2023

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099137  ONERAIN INCORPORATED                   462.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099138  PABLOS COLLISION REPAIRS               309.51CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099139  PETROLEUM TRADERS                    2,786.22CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099140  POLLUTION CONTROL SERVICES             336.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099141  RIVER CITY BOLT & SCREW                 18.62CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099142  SAN ANTONIO WATER SYSTEM               422.14CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000
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 4/07/2023  7:08 AM                                CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER                                           PAGE:   8

COMPANY:  999 - Pooled Cash                                                               CHECK DATE:      3/01/2023 THRU  3/31/2023

ACCOUNT:  112010          Pooled Cash                                                     CLEAR DATE:      0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE:     Check                                                                           STATEMENT:       0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All                                                                             VOIDED DATE:     0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    A                                                                               AMOUNT:           0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

                                                                                          CHECK NUMBER:       000000 THRU     999999

     ACCOUNT          --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

 

CHECK:              ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099143  SAWS                               141,704.40CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099144  SHARP ELECTRONICS                      168.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099145  T-MOBILE USA                           600.92CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099146  TELLUS EQUIPMENT SOLUTIONS, LL          52.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099147  THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON            750.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099148  TIGER SANITATION                     1,910.39CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099149  TIMOTHY CAMPONESCHI                    500.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099150  UNITED STATES POSTAL SVC             2,500.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099151  US POSTAL SERVICE                      290.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

     112010           3/29/2023 CHECK     099152  VERMEER EQUIPMENT TX INC               133.94CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

 

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 112010                       CHECK           TOTAL:          1,183,948.05CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00

  TOTALS FOR Pooled Cash                          CHECK           TOTAL:          1,183,948.05CR

                                                  DEPOSIT         TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  INTEREST        TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  EFT             TOTAL:                  0.00

                                                  BANK-DRAFT      TOTAL:                  0.00
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City of Leon Valley
March Financial Report

City Council Meeting

April 18, 2023

Carol Goering
Finance Director
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General Fund
March

General Fund

FY 2023 FY 2023 FY 2022

REVENUE BUDGET

Ad Valorem 5,476,000$        5,030,537$        91.9% 4,823,632$        94.1%

Sales Taxes 3,719,631          1,256,972          33.8% 1,135,029          39.0%

Franchise Taxes 911,798             505,229             55.4% 341,878             38.6%

Licenses, Permits, Fees & Fines 1,576,080          466,982             29.6% 1,784,882          56.0%

Miscellaneous 650,516             269,026             41.4% 205,274             41.8%

Transfers In 2,080,594          1,889,208          90.8% 512,420             100.00%

Total Revenue 14,414,619$      9,417,955$        65.3% 8,803,115$        69.9%

EXPENDITURES

Municipal Court 419,050$           188,201$           44.9% 83,460$             19.9%

Finance 407,845             186,958             45.8% 85,180               20.9%

Council & Manager 1,329,819          629,274             47.3% 521,098             32.3%

Information Technology 315,183             139,112             44.1% -                     0.00%

Police 3,311,063          1,637,621          49.5% 1,235,053          36.9%

Traffic Safety Program -                         -                         -       190,886             69.2%

Red Light Cameras -                         -                         -       513,356             -35.4%

Impound Lot 113,594             63,717               56.1% 73,957               -64.4%

Fire 3,623,269          1,674,180          46.2% 1,553,920          42.7%

Public Works 2,232,693          945,813             42.4% 741,458             31.9%

Planning and Zoning 515,533             168,590             32.7% 158,055             30.7%

Economic Development 292,549             62,769               21.5% 120,331             -37.8%

Special Events 140,350             22,334               15.9% 16,456               9.5%

Parks & Recreation 281,400             40,334               14.3% 109,557             6.6%

Library 572,648             214,207             37.4% 208,428             32.4%

Transfers Out 721,884             721,884             100.0% -                     0.00%

Total Expenditures 14,276,880$      6,694,993$        46.9% 5,611,195$        39.8%

Y-T-D ACTUAL Y-T-D ACTUAL

   Target Percentage 50.00%
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Water & Sewer Fund
March

Water/Sewer/Storm Water Fund

FY 2023

REVENUE BUDGET

Water Sales 2,007,300$        888,881$           44.3% 864,731             43.0%

Sewer Sales 2,486,600          1,211,588          48.7% 1,160,788          48.3%

Storm Water 589,288             222,374             37.7% 192,839             46.3%

Connection & Platting -                         -                         -        -                     -       

Customer Fees 71,983               40,712               56.6% 40,674               56.3%

Tapping Fees -                         -                         -        -                     -       

Miscellaneous 6,200                 71,658               54.2% 1,731                 0.7%

Total Revenue 5,161,371$        2,435,213$        47.2% 2,260,763$        43.8%

EXPENDITURES

Business Office -$                   -$                   0.0% 442,964$           45.4%

Water System 1,002,017          503,432             50.2% 899,283             34.1%

Sewer System 2,204,520          911,590             41.4% 775,397             34.8%

Storm Water 822,246             39,344               4.8% 193,522             81.8%

Other Sources/Uses 2,269,467          2,269,467          100.0% -                     0.0%

Total Expenditures 6,298,250$        3,723,833$        59.1% 2,311,165$        30.4%

FY 2023 FY 2022

Y-T-D  ACTUAL Y-T-D ACTUAL

   Target Percentage 50.00%

March 2023
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Community Center Fund
March

Community Center Fund

FY 2023

REVENUE BUDGET

Hotel/Motel Taxes 70,000$             12,659$             18.1% 8,096$               11.6%

  RENTAL FEES

Community Center 50,000               19,259               38.5% 19,734               39.5%

Conference Center -                         7,480                 0.0% 7,538                 0.00%

Miscellaneous Revenue 100                    4,425                 425% 19                      19.0%

Transfers in 24,567               -                         0.0% -                         0.0%

Total Revenue 144,667$           43,823$             30.3% 35,386$             29.5%

EXPENDITURES

Community Center Operations 144,667$           68,280$             47.2% 48,873$             33.8%

Total Expenditures 144,667$           68,280$             47.2% 48,873$             0$        

Y-T-D ACTUAL

FY 2023 FY 2022

Y-T-D ACTUAL

   Target Percentage 50.00%
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Economic/Community Development
March

FY 2023

REVENUE Budget

Sales Tax Revenues 399,000$           138,353$           34.7% 105,975$           35.4%

Miscellaneous 5,500.00            7,381                 134.2% -                         0.00%

Total Revenues 404,500$           145,734$           36.0% 105,975$           16.3%

EXPENDITURES

Personnel 151,392$           46,267$             30.6% 92,031$             43.8%

Supplies 13,275               3,712                 28.0% 2,667                 24.9%

Contractual 127,882             12,790               10.0% 25,633               26.2%

Total Expenditures 292,549$           62,769$             21.5% 120,331$           37.8%

Y-T-D ACTUAL Y-T-D Actual

FY 2023 FY 2022

Economic/Community Development
   Target Percentage 50.00%
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Impound Lot
March

FY 2023

REVENUE Budget

Impound Lot Fees 60,000$             40,015$             66.7% 29,310$             13.6%

Auctions 71,080               23,569               33.2% 18,585               22.8%

Total Revenues 131,080$           63,584$             48.5% 47,895$             16.1%

EXPENDITURES

Personnel 102,194$           58,774$             57.5% 69,417$             66.5%

Supplies 1,900                 651                    34.2% 1,500                 78.9%

Contractual 9,500                 4,293                 45.2% 3,040                 35.8%

Capital -                     -                         0.0% -                         0.00%

Total Expenditures 113,594$           63,717$             56.1% 73,957$             64.4%

Y-T-D ACTUAL Y-T-D Actual

FY 2023 FY 2022

Impound Lot
   Target Percentage 50.00%
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Red Light Cameras (RLC)
March

FY 2023

REVENUE Budget

Red Light Camera Fines 2,234,341$        1,261,381$        56.5% 827,931$           44.5%

Late Fees/Court Costs 200,000             103,598             51.8% 93,578               62.4%

Miscellaneous 3,000                 28,145               938.2% -                         0.0%

Transfers in 3,007                 -                         0.0% -                         0.0%

Total Revenues 2,440,348$        1,393,124$        57.1% 921,509$           45.8%

EXPENDITURES

Red Light Cameras

Personnel 611,108$           308,474$           50.5% 227,892$           41.2%

Supplies 4,000                 250                    6.3% -                         0.0%

Contractual 901,000             348,625             38.7% 285,465             31.8%

Transfers 326,574.00        326,574             100.0% -                         0.0%

Total Tier One 1,842,682$        983,923$           53.4% 513,356$           35.4%

Traffic Safety

Personnel 275,892$           117,456$           42.6% 187,935$           68.1%

Supplies -                         1,455                 0.0% 2,850                 0.00%

Contractual -                         -                         0.0% 101                    0.00%

Transfers 126,000             126,000             100.0% -                         0.00%

Total Tier Two 401,892$           244,911$           60.9% 190,886$           69.2%

Red Light Cameras (RLC)
   Target Percentage 50.00%

FY 2023 FY 2022

Y-T-D ACTUAL Y-T-D Actual
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City of Leon Valley
American Rescue Plan

Overview

City Council Meeting

April  18, 2023

Crystal Caldera, PhD
City Manager
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Purpose

• To discuss and inform Council on changes to the American 
Rescue Plan (ARP) expenditures 
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Background

• The Council authorized certain expenditures of ARP 
funds based on previous recommendations

• Since that time, it has been discovered that ARP 
Funds can not be spent some items
• Skate Park
• COLA

• Additionally, the report that was filed in April 2022 
reported no expenditures, when some had been 
made
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Background

• As a result of a no expenditure report, ARP funds can 
no longer be used for the expenditures that 
happened and were not reported as of March 31, 
2022

• This changed the funds available to spent as of March 
29, 2023, less the expenditures in FY 2023 that 
occurred between the reporting period of April 1, 
2022 and March 31, 2023

• The transfer for the expenditures for FY 2022 has 
already occurred, however too much was transferred 
to the General and Water Funds for FY 2022
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Fund Balance Re-Cap

Reportable Unused

Fund Amount Expenditures Transfer

General Fund 512,420.00                    (155,517.36)      356,902.64 

Water Fund 230,000.00                    -                       230,000.00 

On 9/30/2022 $204,320 was transfer back to the ARP Fund from the Water Fund

only $25,680 now  needs to be transferred back for the Water Fund

*This is included in the 9/30 fund balance

*9/30/22 Fund Balance 2,519,238.21    

General FY 2022 Unused 356,902.64        

Water FY 2022 Unused 25,680.00          

2,901,820.85$  

FY 2023 expenditures as of 3/31/2023 (797,542.25)      

Interest Earned 39,314.47          

Fund Balance as of 3/29/2023 2,143,593.07$  

FY 2022 ARP Transfers Out
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Reportable Expenditures

Check Totals by

Vendor Description Date Check Amount Vendor

FY 2022

Civic plus Website 5/5/2022 96262 6,625.00      

Civic plus Website 5/26/2022 96435 350.00          

Civic plus Website 9/8/2022 97340 5,000.00      

11,975.00      

JustFOIA Open Records Request 7/29/2022 96995 750.00          

750.00            

Stryker sales Power Stretchers (2) 9/15/2022 97413 43,391.12    

Stryker sales Power Stretchers (1) 9/15/2022 97464 14,382.00    57,773.12      

Zoll Medical Corp Cardiac Monitor 6/26/2022 96796 70,022.24    70,022.24      

Metro Fire Disposal Supplies 8/25/2022 97246 9,999.00      

Metro Fire Disposal Supplies 8/25/2022 97246 4,998.00      

14,997.00      155,517.36 FY 2022

FY 2023

Civic plus Website 12/20/2022 98291 3,528.00      

Civic plus Website 1/9/2023 98384 896.25          

4,424.25        

Siddons Martin Emergency Fire Truck 11/15/2022 98052 793,118.00 

793,118.00    797,542.25 FY 2023

Total Civic Plus 16,399.25      

Total JustFoia 750.00            

Total Stryker Streatchers 57,773.12      

Total Zoll Medical 70,022.24      

Total Metro Fire 14,997.00      

Total Siddons 793,118.00    

953,059.61$ 

ARP Expenditure Report 4/1/2022 to 3/31/2023  
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Items to consider

• Well generator - $235,215
• Second Fire Truck - $1.4 Million
• Sewer Line Replacement supplemented with grant 

funds-$300,000
• AMI for Water meters - $500,000
• Ambulance - $300,000
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CITY OF LEON VALLEY 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 

Leon Valley City Council Chambers 
6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, TX 78238 

Tuesday, April 04, 2023 at 6:30 PM 
 

MINUTES 

The City of Leon Valley City Council Shall Hold an In-Person Meeting with A Quorum of 
Members of City Council to Be Physically Present in The Leon Valley City Council 
Chambers, 6400 El Verde Road, Leon Valley, Texas 78238. Some Members of City Council 
May Appear and Participate in The Meeting by Videoconference Pursuant to The 
Requirements Set Forth in The Texas Open Meetings Act.  
  
Citizens May E-Mail Public Comments To citizenstobeheard@leonvalleytexas.gov. All 
Other Citizen Participation May Be Provided In-Person at City Council Chambers.  

 

1. Call to Order; Determine a Quorum is Present, Pledge of Allegiance 

PRESENT 
Mayor Chris Riley 
Council Place 1 Benny Martinez 
Council Place 2 Josh Stevens 
Council Place 3 Jed Hefner 
Mayor Pro Tem, Council Place 4 Rey Orozco 
Council Place 5 Will Bradshaw 

Mayor Chris Riley called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM and announced that a quorum of 
City Council was present in Council Chambers. 

Mayor Riley asked Councilor Will Bradshaw to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.  

2. Citizens to be Heard 

Those who spoke at this time were: Tina Chasan (Leon Valley); Ralph Nicholson (Leon 
Valley); Margarita Bania Ruiz, owner of Cha Cha's New Gen Café; John Smith (Leon Valley); 
Jason Banis of Banis Towing; Pat Martinez (Leon Valley); and Dave Shippy, Vista Del Rey. 
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City Council Regular Meeting Minutes  April 04, 2023 

City of Leon Valley  Page 2 

3. Presentations 

1. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action to Authorize the City Manager to 
Enter into an Agreement with a selected Towing Company to provide Towing and 
Impound Services for Leon Valley - D. Gonzalez, Police Chief 

David Gonzalez, LVPD Chief presented the results of the recent Request for Proposals 
for Towing and Impound Services.  

A motion was made by Councilor Rey Orozco to approve as presented and allow the 
city manager to negotiate a contract with Banis Towing. The motion was seconded by 
Councilor Benny Martinez. 

Councilor Jed Hefner requested that Councilor Benny Martinez abstain due to Mrs. 
Martinez saying they "know the Banis people."  

Mayor Chris Riley asked Nicole Warren, City Attorney for her legal opinion. Mrs. Warren 
asked Councilor Martinez to explain his relationship with the Banis staff. Mrs. Warren 
replied that there did not seem to be any reason based on the explanation, for Councilor 
Martinez to abstain. 

Those who spoke on this item were: Pat Martinez (Leon Valley); Philip Campos (Leon 
Valley) 

Councilor Rey Orozco amended his motion by adding that the City Manager provide the 
information to the City Council before signing the contract. 

Voting Yea: Council Place 1 Martinez, Mayor Pro Tem, Council Place 4 Orozco 
Voting Nay: Council Place 2 Stevens, Council Place 3 Hefner, Council Place 5 Bradshaw 

2. Presentation, Discussion, and Direction to Consider Allocating Funds from the 
American Rescue Plan for the Purchase of Certain Park Amenities - M. Moritz, 
Public Works Director 

Crystal Caldera, City Manager informed the City Council that this item will not be 
presented this evening. 

4. Announcements by the Mayor and Council Members. At this time, reports about items 
of community interest, which no action will be taken may be given to the public as per 
Chapter 551.0415 of the Government Code, such as: expressions of thanks, congratulations 
or condolence, information regarding holiday schedules, reminders of social, ceremonial, or 
community events organized or sponsored by the governing body or that was or will be 
attended by a member of the Leon Valley City Council or a City official. 

Announcements were made by the Mayor and Members of City Council. 

5. City Manager's Report 

Crystal Caldera, City Manager reminded everyone that the City Manager's Report was 
printed and available on the table in the foyer, as well as posted on the website. City 
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Manager Caldera introduced Daniel Blystone as our new IT Manager; and reminded 
everyone to RSVP to Crystal Miranda, Community Relations Director; thanked everyone for 
helping with the Jazz Festival; and lastly informed everyone that the Fiesta Medals are in. 

1. Upcoming Important Events: 

Regular City Council Meeting, Tuesday, April 18, 2023, at 6:30 PM, in Council 
Chambers. 

Last day to register to vote in the May 06, 2023 Elections is April 06, 2023. 

Volunteer Appreciation Dinner, April 12, 2023, at 6:00 PM, at the Leon Valley 
Conference Center. 

Library Volunteer Appreciation Party, Wednesday, April 26, 2023, from 5:00 PM 
to 7:00 PM, at the Library. 

Picnic with the Mayor & City Council, Saturday, April 22, 2023, from 11:00 AM to 
1:00 PM, in the “grassy” area at the Conference Center. 

Early Voting at the Leon Valley Conference Center, 6421 Evers Road, Texas, 
78238, Monday, April 24, 2023 through Thursday, April 27, 2023 from 8:00 AM to 
6:00 PM; Friday, April 28, 2023 – Closed; Saturday, April 29, 2023 from 8:00 AM to 
8:00 PM; Sunday, April 30, 2023 - Closed; and Monday, May 01, 2023 and Tuesday, 
May 02, 2023 from 8:00 AM to 8:00 PM. 

Annual City-Wide Garage Sale, Saturday, May 20, 2023, from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM. 

Big Rig Petting Zoo, Monday, June 05, 2023, from 10:30 AM - 12:00 PM, at 
Raymond Rimkus Park. 

Miscellaneous other events and announcements. 

6. Consent Agenda 

Councilor Jed Hefner asked to pull Consent Agenda 6.3 for discussion; and to approve 
Consent Agenda items 6.1, 6.2, and 6.4 as presented. The motion was seconded by 
Councilor Will Bradshaw. 

Voting Yea: Council Place 1 Martinez, Council Place 2 Stevens, Council Place 3 Hefner, 
Mayor Pro Tem, Council Place 4 Orozco, Council Place 5 Bradshaw 

1. Discussion and Possible Action Approving of the Following City Council Minutes: 
a. 03-21-2023 Regular City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

2. Discussion and Possible Action Accepting of the Following Board/Commission 
Minutes: 
a. 02-09-2023 Library Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes 
b. 02-22-2023 Earthwise Living Committee Meeting Minutes 
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3. Discussion and Possible Action on a Resolution Appointing Members to the 
Bandera Road Site-Community Advisory Group, Board of Adjustment, Earthwise 
Living Committee, and Park Commission- Mayor Chris Riley 

4. Discussion and Possible Action on an Ordinance Amending the Leon Valley Code 
of Ordinances, Chapter 1 General Provisions, Article 1.09 – Parks and Recreation, 
Division 1 Generally, Sec. 1.09.036 - Pets and Other Animals, (e), to prohibit the 
feeding of deer in city-owned parks and drainageways (1st Read was Held on 03-
21-2023) - M. Moritz, Public Works Director 

Councilor Jed Hefner expressed his concerns with the amendments prohibiting the 
feeding of deer.  

Those who spoke on this item were: Casey Rowse (Leon Valley) 

A motion was made by Councilor Jed Hefner to table this item. Councilor Rey Orozco 
seconded the motion. 

Voting Yea: Council Place 1 Martinez, Council Place 2 Stevens, Council Place 3 Hefner, 
Mayor Pro Tem, Council Place 4 Orozco, Council Place 5 Bradshaw 

7. Regular Agenda 

1. Presentation, Discussion, and Possible Action to Expend Economic and 
Community Development Funds in the amount not to exceed $10,000 to Purchase 
a 15 Barrel Tank to Increase Operations to LongTab Brewing Company - R. 
Salinas, Director of Economic Development  

Roque Salinas, Economic Development Director presented an item seeking City Council 
consideration to expend EDC funds in the amount, not to exceed $10,000 to purchase 
a 15-barrel tank to increase operations to LongTab Brewing Company.  

A motion was made by Councilor Jed Hefner to approve the item as presented. The 
motion was seconded by Councilor Benny Martinez. 

Voting Yea: Council Place 1 Martinez, Council Place 2 Stevens, Council Place 3 Hefner, 
Mayor Pro Tem, Council Place 4 Orozco, Council Place 5 Bradshaw 

2. Presentation, Public Hearing, and Discussion to Consider Approval of an 
Ordinance Authorizing a Zoning Change From R-2 Two Family Dwelling to R-1 
Single Family Dwelling District on Two Lots, Being Lots 19 and 20, Blk 8, CB 
4432C, Being 0.266 and 0.2204 Acres of Land, in the Grass Valley Subdivision Unit 
#1, Located at 6602 & 6608 Peachtree (1st Read as Required by City Charter) - M. 
Teague, Planning and Zoning Director 

Mindy Teague, Planning & Zoning Director presented this item for City Council 
consideration of an ordinance authorizing a zoning change from R-2 Two Family 
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Dwelling to R-1 Single Family Dwelling District on two lots, being lots 19 and 20, Block 
8, CB 4432C, being 0.266 and 0.2204 acres of land, in the Grass Valley Subdivision 
Unit #1, located at 6602 & 6608 Peachtree. 

Mayor Chris Riley opened the Public Hearing at 8:29 PM. There being no comments, 
Mayor Riley closed the Public Hearing at 8:29 PM. 

City Council asked that this item be placed on the next Consent Agenda for second 
read.  

3. Discussion and Possible Action on An Ordinance to Amend the Leon Valley Code 
of Ordinances, Article 1.06 Boards, Commissions, and Committees and Add Sec. 
1.06.009  City of Leon Valley Economic and Community Development Policies and 
Guidelines for Funding (1st Read was Held 03-21-2023) – R. Salinas, Director of 
Economic Development 

Crystal Caldera, City Manager presented the item seeking City Council consideration 
and amending the Leon Valley Code of Ordinances, Article 1.06 Boards, Commissions, 
and Committees and adding Section 1.06.009 City of Leon Valley Economic and 
Community Development Policies and Guidelines for Funding. 

Roque Salinas, Economic Development Director was also present. 

Mayor Chris Riley read an email that was submitted by Evan Bohl (Leon Valley) 

A motion was made by Councilor Will Bradshaw to approve the item as presented. The 
motion was seconded by Councilor Rey Orozco. 

Voting Yea: Council Place 2 Stevens, Council Place 3 Hefner, Mayor Pro Tem, Council 
Place 4 Orozco, Council Place 5 Bradshaw 
Voting Nay: Council Place 1 Martinez 

4. Presentation, Discussion and Direction on a Possible Ordinance Prescribing 
Advisory Committee Procedures under the Open Meetings Act and providing a 
provision for committee member removal (1st Read as Required by City Charter) - 
Dr. Caldera, City Manager 

Crystal Caldera, City Manager presented an ordinance for City Council consideration 
prescribing Advisory Committee Procedures under the Texas Open Meetings Act and 
providing a provision for committee member removal. 

Councilor Benny Martinez asked City Manager Caldera to add that agendas are to be 
posted on the City website. 

This item will be brought back on the next Consent Agenda. 

Councilor Josh Stevens expressed his opposition to this proposed ordinance. 
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8. Citizens to be Heard 

None 

9. Requests from Members of City Council to Add Items to Future Agendas – Per Section 
3.10 (A) of the City of Leon Valley’s Code of Ordinances, at a meeting of City Council, 
a member of City Council may place an item on an agenda by making a motion to 
place the item on a future agenda and receiving a second. No discussion shall occur 
at the meeting regarding the placement of the item on a future agenda. 

 None 

10. Adjournment 

Mayor Riley announced that the meeting adjourned at 9:04 PM 

These minutes approved by the Leon Valley City Council on the 18th of April, 2023. 
 
         APPROVED 
 
 
        _______________________ 
         CHRIS RILEY 
               MAYOR 
 
 
 

ATTEST: _______________________________ 
                  SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
                            CITY SECRETARY 
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From:                                         Melinda Moritz
Sent:                                           Tuesday, April 11, 2023 10:12 AM
To:                                               Saundra Passailaigue
Subject:                                     FW: Park Commission
 
 
 
From: rchristensen@sbcglobal.net <rchristensen@sbcglobal.net> 

 Sent: Wednesday, April 5, 2023 4:25 PM
 To: spass@leonvalleytexas.gov

 Cc: Melinda Moritz <m.moritz@leonvalleytexas.gov>
 Subject: Park Commission

 
Saundra,
 
On March 23, 2023 the Leon Valley Park Commission voted to elevate Tom Benavides to regular
commissioner.
 
Should you require anything else, please let me know.
 
Roger Christensen
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RESOLUTION No.  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TX., CITY COUNCIL 
APPOINTING MEMBERS TO ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE, AND TO THE PARK COMMISSION. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS, THAT: 
  
The following individual is hereby appointed as member of the Economic And 
Community Development Advisory Committee with a term expiring May 31, 2024. 
 
                        Leslie Bacon Knopf 
 
The following individuals are hereby appointed as members of the Park Commission 
with terms expiring May 31, 2024. 
 

Thomas Benavides – Commissioner 
Joyce Trent – 1st Alternate 

   
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS: 
  
That the appointment of the aforementioned individual(s) to their perspective committee 
is effective immediately.  
 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley 
this the 18th day of April 2023.       
          APPROVED 
 
          
           ______________________ 
                             CHRIS RILEY 
                MAYOR 
 
Attest:  
 
 
____________________________ 
 

SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
                 City Secretary 
 
 
Approved as to Form:  
 
 
_________________________ 

NICOLE WARREN 
 City Attorney 
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MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

DATE: April 18, 2023  
 
TO: Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Mindy Teague, Planning and Zoning Director 
 
THROUGH: Crystal Caldera, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion to Consider Approval of an Ordinance authorizing a  zoning 
change from R-2 Two Family Dwelling to R-1 Single Family Dwelling District on two lots, 
being Lots 19 and 20, Blk 8, CB 4432C, being 0.2066 and 0.2204 acres of land, in the 
Grass Valley Subdivision Unit #1, located at 6602 and 6608 Peachtree  
 

PURPOSE 
 
A request has been received to rezone two lots, being Lots 19 and 20, Blk 8, CB 4432C, 
being 0.2066 and 0.2204 acres of land, in the Grass Valley Subdivision Unit #1, located 
at 6602 and 6608 Peachtree  
 
REQUEST: 
 

 Staff initiated zoning request 

 Cleaning up Zoning Map 

 To rezone approximately 0.427 acres of land on two lots in the Grass Valley 
Subdivision 

 From R-2 Two Family Dwelling to R-1 Single Family Dwelling 

 One developed lot located at 6602 and one vacant lot located at 6608 Peach Tree 
 
 

Notification 
 
Twelve (12) letters were sent to surrounding property owners. As of this writing, Staff has 
not received any letters either in favor or in opposition, and one has been returned 
undeliverable. 
 
SEE LEON VALLEY 
 
Social Equity - Approval of this request allows for the single-family dwelling use, which is 
consistent and compatible with existing surrounding uses. 
 
Economic Development – Rezoning will prevent the accidental sale of the property to 
someone wishing to construct a duplex 
  
Environmental Stewardship – Any structures built on this property would have to conform 
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to the 2021 International Energy Code. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
 
None 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS 
 
None – housekeeping item. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
At the March 28th 2023 Planning & Zoning meeting, the Commission recommended 
approval of this request. 
 
 
APPROVED: _______  _ DISAPPROVED:      
 
 
APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS: 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
                                                   
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 

220

{Section}.94.



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TX, CITY COUNCIL GRANTING A 
ZONE CHANGE FROM R-2 TWO FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT TO R-1 SINGLE 
FAMILY DWELLING DISTRICT ON TWO LOTS, BEING LOTS 19 AND 20, BLK 8, CB 
4432C, BEING 0.2066 AND 0.2204 ACRES OF LAND, IN THE GRASS VALLEY 
SUBDIVISION UNIT #1, LOCATED AT 6602 AND 6608 PEACH TREE; PROVIDING A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; NOTICE OF MEETING; SAVINGS 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS Chapter 211 of the Vernon’s Local Government Code empowers cities to 
enact zoning regulations and provide for their administration, enforcement, and 
amendment; and 
 
WHEREAS the City has previously deemed it necessary and desirable to adopt zoning 
regulations to provide for the orderly development of property within the City, to promote 
the public health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS the Leon Valley Code of Ordinances Chapter 15 Zoning constitutes the City’s 
Zoning regulations and requires the property to be zoned in accordance with proper 
designations as defined by the City; and  
 
WHEREAS the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Leon Valley provided 
adequate notice and held a public hearing in accordance with Chapter 15 of the Leon 
Valley Code of Ordinances; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Leon Valley has 
recommended granting a zone change from R-2 Two Family Dwelling District to R-1 
Single Family Dwelling District, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after proper notice and public hearing determined that the 
request is consistent and compatible with the surrounding zoning and with the City’s 
Future Land Use Plan, and 
 
WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Leon Valley now desires to grant the zone 
change, as requested at the subject location.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEON VALLEY, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. That lots 19 and 20, BLK 8, CB 4432C, being 0.2066 and 0.2204 acres of 
land, in the Grass Valley Subdivision unit #1, located at 6602 and 6608 Peachtree Street, 
are hereby rezoned from R-2 Two Family Dwelling District to R-1 Single Family Dwelling 
District. 
 
SECTION 2. REPEALER CLAUSE. The provisions of the Ordinance shall be cumulative 
of all other ordinances or parts of ordinances governing or regulating the same subject 
matter as that covered herein, provided, however, that all prior ordinances or parts of 
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ordinances inconsistent or in conflict with any of the provisions of this ordinance are 
hereby expressly repealed to the extent that such inconsistency is apparent by any other 
ordinance.  
 
SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. If any provision, section, sentence, clause, or 
phrase of this ordinance or application of the same to any person or set of circumstances 
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, void, invalid, or unenforceable, the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance or its application to other persons or sets of 
circumstances shall not be affected thereby, it being the intent of the Leon Valley City 
Council in adopting, and the Mayor in approving this Ordinance, that no portion thereof 
or provisions or regulation contained herein shall become inoperative or fall by reason of 
any unconstitutionally or invalidity of any portion, provision, or regulation. 
 
SECTION 4. SAVINGS CLAUSE. The repeal of any ordinance or part of ordinances 
effectuated by the enactment of this ordinance shall not be construed as abandoning any 
action now pending under or by virtue of such ordinance or as discontinuing, abating, 
modifying, or altering any penalty accruing or to accrue, or as affecting any rights of the 
City under any section or provisions of any ordinances at the time of passage of this 
ordinance. 
 
SECTION 5. NOTICE OF MEETING CLAUSE.  It is hereby officially found and 
determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was passed was open to the public 
and that public notice of the time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as 
required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. 
 
SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. This ordinance shall become effective on and after its 
passage, approval and publication as required by law. 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley 
this the 18th day of April 2023. 
       
        APPROVED 
          
        

    ______________________ 
                             CHRIS RILEY 
               MAYOR 
 
Attest: ____________________________ 
           SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
                       City Secretary 
 
 
Approved as to Form: ____________________________ 
                                           NICOLE WARREN 
                                                   City Attorney 
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Mindy Teague
Planning & Zoning Director

City Council Meeting
April 18, 2023

Rezoning Request PZ-2023-8
6602 & 6608 Peach Tree
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Summary
• Question

– Consider approval of an Ordinance granting a zone
change from R-2 Two-Family Dwelling District to R-1
Single Family Dwelling District on Lots 19 and 20, Blk
8, CB 4432C, being 0.2066 and 0.2204 acres of land, in
the Grass Valley Subdivision Unit #1

– Located at 6602 & 6608 Peachtree Street

• Options

1. Approval as requested

2. Denial
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Request

• Staff initiated rezoning request

– Cleaning up Zoning Map

• To rezone approximately 0.427 acres of land on two 
lots in Grass Valley Subdivision

• From R-2 Two Family Dwelling to R-1 Single Family 
Dwelling 

• One developed lot located at 6602 and one vacant 
lot located at 6608 Peach Tree
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Zoning Map

Sites
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BCAD Map

Properties
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Aerial View
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Background

• The lots are not large enough to accommodate a duplex, but 
do fit in the R-1 Single Family Dwelling District

• Existing conditions:
– Lot 19 has 81.24’ of frontage along a public road, is 120’ in depth, and 

has an area of 9,748.8 square feet 

– Lot 20 has 75’ of frontage along a public road, is 120’ in depth, and has 
an area of 9,000 square feet 

• Per the Zoning Code:
– R-2 Two Family Dwelling requires minimum frontage of 85’ along a 

public road, a depth of 120’, and a minimum area of 10,200 square 
feet

– R-1 Single Family Dwelling requires minimum frontage of 70’ along a 
public road, a depth of 120’, and a minimum area of 8400 square feet
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Master Plan

• Grass Valley area was annexed 1969 and platted during the 
late 1960’s and early 1970’s

• This area is substantially developed and contains paved 
streets,

• curbs, sidewalks, and street lighting

• Vacant areas are zoned R-1 Single Family (inaccurate)

• The land use for the Grass Valley Subdivision is an established 
neighborhood and should be maintained as a residential area

• (Single-Family) and R-2 (Two-Family) should be developed to 
maintain the existing neighborhood characteristics 
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Notification Process

• 12 Letters Sent

• 0 In Favor

• 0 In Opposition

• 0 Undeliverable
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Fiscal Impact

• None
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Recommendation

• At the March 28th 2023 Planning and Zoning 
Commission meeting, the Commissioners 
recommended approval of this request
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S.E.E. 
Statement

Social Equity:  Approval of this request 
allows for the single-family dwelling use, 
which is consistent and compatible with 
existing surrounding uses. 

Economic Development: Rezoning will allow 
for the development of the vacant lot, which 
will increase ad valorem taxes

Environmental Stewardship:  Any structures 
built on the vacant property must conform 
to the 2021 International Energy Code
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MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

DATE: April 18, 2023  
 
TO: Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Dr. Crystal Caldera, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation, Discussion and Direction on a Possible Ordinance 

Prescribing Advisory Committee Procedures under the Open Meetings Act 
and providing a provision for committee member removal  

 
PURPOSE 
 
To provide guidance to the advisory committees regarding the open meetings act 
requirements and to provide a provision to remove committee members for missing 
meetings. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None 
 

SEE LEON VALLEY 

Social Equity – N/A 

 
Economic Development – N/A 
 
Environmental Stewardship – N/A  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS 

N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Council ‘s Discretion 
 
 
ATTEST : 
 
 
____________________________ 

SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
City Secretary 
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ORDINANCE No.  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TX., 
PRESCRIBING ADVISORY COMMITTEE PROCEDURES UNDER THE OPEN 
MEETINGS ACT AND PROVIDING A PROVISION FOR COMMITTEE MEMBER 
REMOVAL 

 
WHEREAS, the ordinance provides guidance to the advisory committees regarding the 
open meetings act requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, it provides a provision to remove committee members for missing meetings; 
and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEON VALLEY, TEXAS: 
 

SECTION 1. That this Ordinance shall be cumulative of all provisions of the City of Leon 

Valley, Texas, except where provisions of this Ordinance are in direct conflict with the 

provisions of such Ordinance, in which event, conflicting provisions of such Ordinance 

are hereby repealed. 

 
SECTION 1. That it is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council of the City 
of Leon Valley that this Ordinance is not severable. 
 
SECTION 3. The Ordinance shall be effective upon passage and publication as required 
by law. 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley 
this the 18th day of April 2023. 
      
        APPROVED 
 
          
           ______________________ 
                             CHRIS RILEY 
                MAYOR 
  
 
Attest : 
 
 
____________________________ 
 

SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
              City Secretary 
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Approved as to Form: City Attorney 
 
 
_________________________ 

 City Attorney 
 

 

240

{Section}.96.



Ordinance Chapter 1, Sec. 1.04.003 Powers of the committee, adding a subsection prescribing 

committee procedures under the Open meetings act.   

Definitions 

1) Advisory Committee-The advisory committee has no executive or administrative powers or 

duties with respect to the operation of the Council, and all such powers and duties rest solely 

with the City Council. The following committees are listed as advisory committees: Bandera 

Road Ground Water Plume Superfund Site Community Advisory Ground, Citizens Police Advisory 

Committee, Earthwise Living Committee, Economic Community Development Advisory 

Committee, Library Board of Trustees, Park Commission, and Tree Advisory Board. 

 

2) Quorum – The majority of the appointed members. 

 

3) Walking Quorum - Occurs when members of a governmental body gather in number that do not 

physically constitute a quorum at any one time but who, through successive gatherings, discuss 

a public matter with a quorum of that body without notice to the public. 

 

4) Minutes – State the subject of each deliberation and indicate each vote, order, decision, or 

other action taken. 

Purpose - The purpose of an advisory committee is to make recommendations to the Council on 

programs, rules, and/or policies affecting their area of expertise.  

Procedure  

1) All meetings of governmental bodies must be open to the public. 

2) An advisory Committee shall give written notice of the date, time, place, and subject of each 

meeting. 

3) The notice of a meeting of a governmental body must be posted in a place readily accessible to 

the general public at all times for at least 72 hours before the scheduled time of the meeting. 

4) A municipal governmental body shall post notice of each meeting on a bulletin board at a place 

convenient to the public in the city hall and on the City’s website. 

5) Any action taken by the committee must be done at a meeting and voted on by a quorum of the 

members. Walking Quorums are prohibited.  

6) All committees are required to take minutes and make them available to the public as soon as 

practicable.  

7) It is recommended but not a requirement for members that participate on an advisory 

committee to take open meetings act and public information act training.  

Absences 

If a committee member is absent for (3) consecutive meetings, the Mayor or two councilmembers have 

the privilege to add the member to a City Council agenda for possible removal.  
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Advisory Committee Procedures 
under the Open Meetings Act 

Crystal Caldera, PhD

City Manager

City Council Meeting

April 4, 2023
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Summary

• Question
– Does the City Council want to adopt an ordinance prescribing advisory 

committee procedures under the Open meetings act and a rule for absentee 
members?  

• Options
– Adopt an ordinance 

– Allow advisory committees not to follow the open meeting act 
requirements

– Continue with long-standing practice

• Declaration
– The City Council’s Discretion 
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Purpose

• Is to provide guidance to the advisory committees 
regarding the open meetings act requirements and 
to provide a provision to remove committee 
members for missing meetings. 

245

{Section}.96.



Background

• It has been a long-standing practice that all 
committees, boards, or commissions follow the open 
meetings requirements

• At the December 6, 2022, City Council meeting the 
council voted to not require the members of advisory 
committees to take open meetings act training. 

• As part of the discussion staff needed clarification as 
to what parts of the Act the Council wanted the 
advisory committees to participate in
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Policy
Definitions

Advisory Committee - The advisory committee has no executive or administrative 

powers or duties with respect to the operation of the Council, and all such powers and 

duties rest solely with the City Council. The following committees are listed as advisory 

committees: Bandera Road Ground Water Plume Superfund Site Community Advisory 

Ground, Citizens Police Advisory Committee, Earthwise Living Committee, Economic 

Community Development Advisory Committee, Library Board of Trustees, Park 

Commission, and Tree Advisory Board.

Quorum – The majority of the appointed members.

Walking Quorum – Occurs when members of a governmental body gather in number 

that do not physically constitute a quorum at any one time but who, through 

successive gatherings, discuss a public matter with a quorum of that body without 

notice to the public.

Minutes – State the subject of each deliberation and indicate each vote, order, 

decision, or other action taken.
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Policy
Procedures 

1) All meetings of governmental bodies must be open to the public.

2) An advisory Committee shall give written notice of the date, time, place, and 

subject of each meeting.

3) The notice of a meeting of a governmental body must be posted in a place readily 

accessible to the general public at all times for at least 72 hours before the 

scheduled time of the meeting.

4) A municipal governmental body shall post notice of each meeting on a bulletin 

board at a place convenient to the public in the city hall and on the City’s website.

5) Any action taken by the committee must be done at a meeting and voted on by a 

quorum of the members. Walking Quorums are prohibited. 

6) All committees are required to take minutes and make them available to the public 

as soon as practicable. 

7) It is recommended but not a requirement for members that participate on an 

advisory committee to take open meetings act and Public Information Act training. 
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Policy

• If a committee member is absent for (3) consecutive 
meetings, the Mayor and or two councilmembers 
have the privilege to add the member to a City 
Council agenda for possible removal. 
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Fiscal Impact

• none
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Recommendation

• City Council’s Discretion
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RESOLUTION No. 23-01_R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY CITY COUNCIL AMENDING THE 
EMPLOYEE'S MISSION SQUARE 457(B) DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
RETIREMENT PLAN TO PERMIT LOANS  

 
457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan # 301977 
Name of Employer: City of Leon Valley, Texas 

Resolution of the above-named Employer (“Employer”) 
 
WHEREAS, the Employer has employees rendering valuable services; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Employer has established a retirement plan (the “Plan”) for such 
employees which serves the interest of the Employer by enabling it to provide 
reasonable retirement security for its employees, by providing increased flexibility in its 
personnel management system, and by assisting in the attraction and retention of 
competent personnel; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Employer has determined that permitting participants in the retirement 
plan to take loans from the Plan will serve these objectives; 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TEXAS: That the Plan will permit loans. 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley 
this the 18th day of April 2023.       
        APPROVED 
          
           ______________________ 
                           CHRIS RILEY 
                       MAYOR  
 
I, Saundra Passailaigue, City Secretary of the City of Leon Valley, Texas, do 
certify that the foregoing resolution, proposed by Crystal Caldera, City Manager, 
was duly passed and adopted by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley, 
Texas at a regular meeting thereof assembled this the 18th day of April, 2023, by 
the following vote: 
 
AYES: _____ 

NAYS: _____ 

ABSENT: _____ 

Attest: ____________________________ 
 

 SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
                              City Secretary 

 
 

Approved as to Form: _________________________ 

                      NICOLE WARREN 
                                City Attorney 
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MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

DATE: April 18, 2023  
 
TO: Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Melinda Moritz, Public Works Director 
 
THROUGH: Crystal Caldera, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation and Discussion to Consider Approval of an Ordinance 

Amending Ordinance 2022-51, Which Approved Various Budget 
Adjustments for Carry Over Projects, To Clearly Identify the Funding 
Sources (1st Read as Required by City Charter) 

 
SPONSOR(S):   N/A 
 
PURPOSE 
 
This M & C is a housekeeping item, to consider approval of an Ordinance amending 
approved Ordinance No. 2022-51, which authorized several budget adjustments to 
provide funds for projects that were not completed in the previous fiscal year. The 
Ordinance states where the funds would be placed, but does not clearly identify the 
source for such funding.  
 
The projects included in the carryover are: 
 
Hike & Bike Trail Segment 1 
Dump Truck 
Huebner Elevated Water Tank Rehabilitation 
Construction of well houses 
Seneca West Drainage Project 
 
The amending Ordinance with the attached Exhibit A designates which funding sources 
are being used to fund these projects.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None – the funding has already been allocated. 
 
SEE LEON VALLEY 
 
Social Equity – Transparency in city financial matter is important to all citizens, as it 
states what their money is being used for. 
 
Economic Development – The projects being completed may attract more residents 
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and business to the city, as they will improve the quality of life, abate erosion from 
stormwater runoff, assist the Public Works department in day to day operations, and 
assure a continuous supply of potable water. 
 
Environmental Stewardship – Erosion control provides for environmental stewardship 
of the floodway by improving the water quality.  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS 

 
None – housekeeping item only. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
APPROVED : _____________________    DISAPPROVED: ________________          
                         
 
APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS :  
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
ATTEST : 
 
 
____________________________ 

SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
City Secretary 
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AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEON VALLEY, TX, CITY COUNCIL AMENDING 
ORDINANCE 2022-51 TO CLEARLY IDENTIFY FUNDING SOURCES FOR CAPITAL 
PROJECTS THAT WERE CARRIED OVER FROM FISCAL YEAR 2021-22 TO FISCAL 
YEAR 2022-2023; PROVIDING FOR REPEALER, SEVERABILITY AND SAVING 
CLAUSES; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, several planned Capital Improvement projects that were approved by the 
City Council in FY 2021-2022 were delayed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Improvement projects funding ended on September 30, 2022; 
and  
  
WHEREAS, the City of Leon Valley had already passed their FY 2021-2022 Budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Council approved Ordinance 2022-51, which approved a budget 
adjustment for funding for the carry over projects and stated where the funding would be 
placed, but the Ordinance did not clearly identify the funding sources; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been determined that the Ordinance should have stated where the 
funds were to be taken from; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to amend Ordinance 2022-51 to clearly identify the funding 
source; and 
 
WHEREAS, Texas Local Government Code Chapter 102, Section 102.010 provides that 
a municipality is not prohibited from making changes to a budget for municipal purposes; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Leon Valley City Council now desires to amend Ordinance 2022-51 as 
stated in Exhibit A to clearly identify the funding source for these carryover projects; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEON VALLEY, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
SECTION 1. That Exhibit A attached hereto mandates the funding source for the 
purchase of a dump truck, well houses, and the Huebner Well generator, and for funding 
the Hike & Bike Trail Segment 1, the Seneca West Drainage Project, and the Huebner 
Elevated Tank Rehabilitation projects. 
 
SECTION 2. The financial allocations in this Ordinance are subject to approval by the 
Finance Director. The Finance Director may, subject to concurrence by the City Manager 
or the City Manager’s designee, correct allocations as necessary to carry out the purpose 
of this Ordinance. 
 
 
SECTION 3. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
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paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance are severable, and if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, or section of this Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional 
or invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality or invalidity shall 
not affect any other remaining phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph, or section of this 
Ordinance.  
 

SECTION 4. The repeal of any Ordinance or part of Ordinances effectuated by the 
enactment of this Ordinance shall not be construed as abandoning any action now 
pending under or by virtue of such Ordinance or as discontinuing, abating, modifying, or 
altering any penalty accruing or to accrue, or as affecting any rights of the municipality 
under any section or provisions at the time of passage of this Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 
publication as required by law. 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Leon Valley 

this the 2nd day of May, 2023.       

        APPROVED 

 

           ______________________  
                             CHRIS RILEY 
             MAYOR 
Attest: 

 
____________________________ 

SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
             City Secretary 
 

Approved as to Form: 

 
____________________________ 
NICOLE WARREN 
                  City Attorney 
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Transfers out 

to the Capital Fund

General Fund (100-5890-570.01 541,569                          

Water Fund (200-5999-470.26) 386,500                          

Stormwater (200-5999-470.28) 122,550                          

ARP Fund (199-5100-570.01) 204,320                          

Total Transfers in to the Capital Fund 1,254,939$                    

Revenue
Capital Fund

Transfers in

General Fund (851-45001) 541,569                          

Water (851-45003) 386,500                          

Stormwater  (851-45008) 122,550                          

APR (851-45008) 204,320                          

Total Transfers in to Capital 1,254,939$                    

Other Revenue to the Capital Fund

CDBG Reimbursement (851-42011) 1,346,000                       

TxDot Reimbursement (851-42010) 903,144                          

2,249,144$                    

Total Revenue Budget Adjustment to the Capital Fund 3,504,083$                      

Hike and Bike Trail (851-5023-580.26) 1,344,713                       

Public Works Dump Truck (581-5023-580.01) 100,000                          

Elevated Water Tank Rehab (851-5023-580.28) 374,500                          

Well Houses (851-5023-580.29) 12,000                            

Well Generator (851-5023-580.30) 204,320                          

Seneca West Drainage (851-5023-580.31) 1,468,550                       

Total Expenditures Budget Adjustments for the Capital Fund 3,504,083$                      

Capital Fund Expenditures

Other Funds Budget Adjustments 

Capital Fund Budget Adjustments

Exhibit A
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Approval of an Ordinance
Amending Ordinance 2022-51

Authorizing Budget Adjustments
Carry Over Capital Improvement Projects

Melinda Moritz, Director of Public Works

City Council Meeting

April 18, 2023
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Summary

• Question
– Consider approval of an Ordinance amending Ordinance 2022-51, which 

authorized budget adjustments  in order to identify their source of funding

– General Fund  - Huebner Creek Hike & Bike Trail Project

– Enterprise Fund  - Huebner Elevated Water Tank Rehabilitation, Seneca 
West Drainage Improvements, well houses, a dump truck, and Huebner 
Well Generator Project

– These Capital Improvement projects were approved by City Council and 
funded in FY 2021-2022, but were not completed in that fiscal year

• Options
– Recommendation: Approve the Amending Ordinance to identify the 

funding source for carryover Capital Improvement Projects

– Denial of the request
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Purpose
• Consider approval of an Ordinance amending 

Ordinance 2022-51, which authorized budget 
adjustments for the FY 2022-2023 budget year:

• General Fund
– Huebner Creek Hike & Bike Trail Project
– Dump truck

• Enterprise Fund
– Huebner Elevated Water Tank Rehabilitation Project
– Seneca West Drainage Improvements Project
– Huebner Well Generator Project
– Well houses

• These Capital Improvement projects were funded in FY 
2021-2022, but were not completed in that fiscal year
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Background

• In FY 2021-2022, the City approved funding for 
several Capital Improvement projects

• The projects could not be completed wholly within 
that Fiscal Year, so a carryover Ordinance was 
approved in October of 2022

• Ordinance 2022-51 stated where the funds would be 
placed, but didn’t identify their source

• This amendment states the source
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Recommendation

• It is recommended that City Council approve 
an Ordinance amending Ordinance 2022-51 to 
clearly identify the funding sources for each 
project
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S.E.E. Statement

• Social - Continuing to construct meaningful capital 
improvement projects improves everyone’s quality of 
life

• Economic - Improving our capital infrastructure 
protects our capital assets and may enhance our 
reputation as a forward-thinking city, which may 
entice businesses and residents

• Environmental - Several of these projects improve 
our environment by increasing the city’s walkability 
and reducing the effects of stormwater on 
downstream water bodies
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MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
          
                 
DATE:   April 18, 2023      
 
TO:   Mayor and Council 
 
FROM:  Lisa Hernandez, Human Resources Director 
 
THROUGH:   Crystal Caldera, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation & Selection - RFP for Insurance Agent of Record 
 
SPONSOR(S): N/A 
 
PURPOSE 
 
To select an Insurance Agent of Record from the Top Two Rated Firms upon Presentation and 
Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract for professional services with the selected 
Insurance Agent of Record for the City’s employee group insurance plans.  
 
The services of a professional insurance broker serving as the City’s Insurance Agent of Record, 
provides expertise in identifying the best group plans that meets the city’s needs, brings current 
knowledge of market trends, rates, and plan structures, and has the ability to present a larger 
client pool for negotiations.  
 
The committee was comprised of Assistant Police Chief Tacquard; Assistant Fire Chief 
Burnside, Assistant Public Works Director Dimaline, City Secretary Passailaigue, and Human 
Resources Director Hernandez. The committee evaluated each firm individually and completed 
a matrix using an average score calculation.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The Commissions paid to the Insurance Agent of Record have no direct fiscal impact on the 
city; the commissions are paid as a part of the health insurance premium fee structure.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Due to the 1-point differential, the Review Committee recommends final selection be at the 
discretion of City Council. 
 
    
 
APPROVED: _____________________    DISAPPROVED: ____________________                                   
 
 
APPROVED WITH THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS: 
_______________________________________________________________________ 

268

{Section}.102.



 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
 
_______________________________________________________________________ 
                
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
City Secretary 
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Request for Proposal
Insurance Agent of Record

Lisa Hernandez
Human Resources Director

City Council Meeting
April 18, 2023

270

{Section}.102.



Summary
• Question

– To select an Insurance Agent of Record from the top-rated Firms and
Authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services
contract with the selected Insurance Agent of Record for the City’s
employee group health insurance plan.

• Options
1. Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

2. McGriff Employee Benefit Solutions

• Declaration
– A selection of Insurance Agent of Record will authorize the Agent to

commence negotiations of employee’s group health insurance plans
and coverage options with carriers, and proposing best options to City.

271

{Section}.102.



Purpose

• HR Best Practice suggests solicitation of an RFP for Insurance 
Agent of Record to occur every three to five years.

• Seeking requests regularly ensures the city is acting fiscally 
responsible respective to the welfare of its employees and 
their families. 

• Seeking requests also allows the city to evaluate the 
qualifications and experiences of the submitting Agents to 
ensure their capabilities offered meet the city’s expectations.
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Background

• The City’s current Insurance Agent of Record contract was 
awarded to Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc. in July 2018.

• An RFP for Insurance Agent of Record was solicited for 30-
days, with a submittal deadline date of March 23, 2023.

• Four (4) Responses were received:
1. SWBC Employee Benefits Group

2. Walker Brokers

3. McGriff Employee Benefits Solutions

4. Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

• Review Committee evaluated Agent's qualifications.
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RFP Insurance Agent of Record
Review Committee

• Assistant Police Chief, Tacquard

• Assistant Fire Chief, Burnside

• Assistant Public Works Director, Dimaline

• City Secretary, Passailaigue

• Human Resource Director, Hernandez
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Scoring Criteria
Fulfillment of Submission Requirements

• Statement of Qualified Consultant Services

• Staff Availability

• Past & Present Client Contacts

• Completed Conflict of Interest Questionnaire

• Biography/Resumes of Persons Assigned to City

• Explanation of Compensation Proposal
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Scoring Criteria
Responses to Scope of Services

• Content Knowledge and Technical Approach
• Regulatory & Compliance: Affordable Cares Act (ACA), Health Information Privacy Rules 

(HIPAA), Continuation of Health Coverage (COBRA)

• Quality & Thoroughness of Services Proposed

• Qualifications & Experience of Firm & Assigned Representatives
• Years in Business and Experience Working with Municipalities

• Assigned Team Members qualifications & years with Firm

• Project Design
• Method of Open Enrollment, Price/Commission Basis, Location & Availability of Team

• Other Aspects Considered
• Employee Access Platforms/Portals

• Customer Support / Claims Assistance Operation

• Past and Present Reference Checks
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Average Scores
 RFP’s were 

rated 
individually.

 Total score 
was the 
average from 
all individual 
scores.

2023 Insurance Agent of Record

RFP Average Scores

SWBC 

Employee 

Benefits 

Consulting 

Group

Walker 

Brokers

McGriff 

Employee 

Benefit 

Solutions

Gallagher 

Benefit 

Services, 

Inc.

Understanding of the Scope of the Project - 30%

•  Content and Technical approach - 15

•  Information on ACA, HIPAA, and COBRA - 10

•  Any Additional services that benefit the City - 5

17.4 11.8 26.4 25.4

Quality and Adequacy of Response - 25%

•  Completeness of the RFP - did they answer everything - 10

•  Quality and Quantity of Services to be Rendered - 10

•  Thoroughness of the RFP - were they detailed in their response - 5

18.0 10.4 22.2 21.2

Qualifications in Providing Similar Services -15%

•  Qualifications of Personnel assigned to LV  - 10

•  Familiarity with working with municipal governments - 5
8.4 7.2 13.4 13.4

Experience of designated City Representation - 15%

•  Experience of Personnel Assigned to LV - 8

•  Experience of Firm - 7
9.6 5.4 12.6 12.4

Overall Project Design - 15%

•  Methodology - What is the approach to handling open enrollment - 6

•  Price  - what commission is being assessed - 6

•  Location of the firm - Are they local - 3

11.4 5.4 10.0 11.0

TOTAL (Possible 100 points) 64.8 40.2 84.6 83.4
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Fiscal Impact

• Commissions paid to the Insurance Agent of Record has 
no direct fiscal impact on the city, the commissions are 
paid as a part of the health insurance premium fee 
structure.

• Commissions can be paid based on Percentage of 
Premium or Price per Employee per Month.

• Gallagher: 4% on medical, or $30.26 PEPM; 10% on 
dental, vision, accident; 15% life/other

• McGriff: $30.00 PEPM on medical, 10% dental, vision, 
life; 15% other
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Recommendation

• Due to the 1-point differential in the scoring average, the 
selection of either Firm would satisfy.

• The Review Committee recommends a Presentation/Interview 
with the City Council from the top two Firms for Final 
Selection:

1. Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc.

2. McGriff Employee Benefit Solutions
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

City Of Leon Valley

Capabilities Presentation

Matt Stedman, April 18, 2023
1 280

{Section}.102.



©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Gallagher Snapshot

Independent, Passionate, Innovative

$6.9B
Revenue

39,000
Employees 

worldwide

850+
Serv ice 

offices

worldwide

Founded in:

1927
Public since:

1984

One of the world’s

Leading consulting 
firms

Fortune 500 

Company 

Public Sector Practice
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National Gallagher Team

24,000 
Advocates 

For You

33 
Employee 

Benefit Attorneys

62
Pharmacy 

Specialists

15
National 

Practice 

Actuaries

42
Communication 

Specialists

63
HR & Technology 

Consultants

33,000 

Advocates 

for You

75
Benefit 

Advocates

27
Wellness

Consultants
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Your Dedicated Gallagher Team

Compliance 

Consulting –

Ruben Reyes, JD, LLM

Pharmacy Benefit Management 

Consulting –

Matt Adams

Voluntary Benefits Consulting 

–

Walter Sprang

Communication 

Consulting –

Maddison Grigsby

Retirement Plan 

Consulting –

Scott Powers

Human Resources & 

Compensation Consulting –

Tammy McCarty

Absence & Productivity 

Consulting -

Andre Lewis

Executive Benefits Consulting –

Andy Kuchera

Physical & Emotional 

Wellbeing Consulting–

Sarah Green, M.A.

HR Technology 

Consulting–

Chris Baldwin

Financial Benefits Consulting –

Daniel Lees

Public Sector 

Director –

Betty Gwinn

SUBJECT MATTER EXPERTS

Matt Stedman
Area Vice President

Charles Coonrod
Area Vice President

James Wright
Area President

Trina Mayo-Day
Client Service Leader

Stacy Chavez
Sr. Client Manager

Amanda Abrego
Client Associate
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Marketing & Negotiation

Gallagher places well over $10 billion of 

premium per year in global insurance 

markets, giving us substantial clout and 

leverage with carriers. 

Gallagher knows the markets and 

their specific strengths and can 

evaluate carriers who have the right 

products for your individual needs.

Gallagher leverages our clout and our 

knowledge to the benefit of our clients, 

balancing vendor partnerships with the 

competitive landscape
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©2019 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 6
©2021 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

• Identifying financial objectives, goals and risk tolerance

• Forecasting total plan cost and offering alternate cost

savings measures

• Recommending competitive employee and employer
contribution strategies

• Developing reserves, COBRA premiums, maximum

exposure, and potential savings

• Comparing and evaluating managed care network

discounts

• Evaluating the cost-effectiveness of prescription drug
carve-out via a PBM

• Providing benchmark information to compare costs and

coverage across all lines

• Providing Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) calculations

• Preparing an annual certified IBNP projection

Two Layers of Expert Support 

Gallagher’s Underwriting/Actuarial team provides a variety of services to our clients, including but not limited to: 

Underwriting & 

Actuarial 
Services

Healthcare 

Analytics 
(HCA)

Data Analytics

Assist the City with fiscal budget and premium funding projections.
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Report Frequency Data Availability Delivery Date

Financial Monitoring 
Report 

Monthly
10th – 15th of the 
following month

20th – 25th of the 
following month

 Medical and Pharmacy Claims

 Stop Loss Reimbursements

 Employee and Employer Deductions

 Large Claimants

 Plan Expenses (administrative only fees,
stop loss premiums, etc.)

 Eligible Claims vs. Aggregate
Attachment Factor (if aggregate stop
loss is in place)

 Customizable Metrics

Sample Financial Monitoring Report 

Financial Reporting 

Financial Monitoring Reports are intended to provide a measure as to how the plan is tracking 
versus budget for Self Funded groups. This report can be provided as a comparison for Fully-
Insured vs. Self-funded for groups considering making the transition. Typically, financial 
monitoring reports track the following: 
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Renewal Projections 

 Claim Development

 Multi-Year Forecasts

Rate Development 

 Claim Development

 COBRA Rate Development

 Contribution | Cost Share Modeling

 Budget Estimation | Funding Adequacy

Plan Design Actuarial Modeling  

 Modify, Add, Remove, Replace Plan

Designs, Etc.

 Comparing the Actuarial Value of Plan

Offerings

 Plan Design Considerations

 Monte Carlo Simulations

Report Frequency Data Availability Delivery Date

Renewal Projection
Annual or Upon 

Request
150-180 days prior to

effective date
20th – 25th of the 
following month

1/1/2017 -

12/31/2017

1/1/2018 -

12/31/2018

1/1/2019 -

12/31/2019

1/1/2020 -

12/31/2020

Average Subscribers 515 439 439 439

Claim Payments $4,722,384 $4,265,081 $4,547,673 $4,850,377

Non-Claim Cost (Fixed 

Cost)
$836,687 $737,731 $833,450 $947,134

PPACA Fees $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Plan Cost $5,559,071 $5,002,812 $5,381,123 $5,797,511

Plan Cost PEPM $899.82 $949.66 $1,021.47 $1,100.51

Change From Current 

($)
-- -$556,259 -$177,948 $238,440

Change From Current 

(%)
-- -10.0% -3.2% 4.3%

Multi-Year Financial Forecast

Renewal Development 
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Contribution Modeling 

Gallagher’s interactive contribution model allows employers to consider multiple options when 
setting employee premium amounts. This model takes into consideration surcharges/credits 
where applicable and is customized to each clients’ needs. 
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Network Discount Analysis

Discount Data Warehouse

Gallagher Proprietary Network Tool
Claim Repricing Analysis, Discount Analysis, Disruption 

Analysis, Top Prov ider Analysis

Case Study

Organization with 3000 

employees. Conducted 

network evaluation and found 

discounts ranged from 48% to 

53%

Savings/Results

• Claim discount ranged from

48% to 53%

• Negotiated a minimum claim

discount of 51%

• Negotiated performance

guarantees and account

management guarantees

• Resulted in an annual fixed

cost reduction of 5.6% or $104

PEPY
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Benchmarking Capabilities

• Roundtables, seminars, peer-to-peer panels

• Largest U.S. benefits benchmarking survey

• National, regional, local

• Industry specific data

• Actionable insights
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Service Approach

Your assigned team of Benefit Advocates (BAs) is available to help your 

employees with a variety of day-to-day benefits issues, including claims 

questions, benefit program education, and more. 

The Gallagher BAC team consists of:

• 40 licensed Advocates with an

• Average of 16 years of experience, including

• 14 bilingual Spanish-speaking Advocates

• Available via a dedicated toll-free number and email address
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Targeted & Customized Employee 

Communications

Wallet Cards

Total Compensation 
Statements

Wellness Posters 
& Newsletters

Custom Web SiteMobile Applications

On-site Enrollment & 
Employee Assistance

Benefits Hotline
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Regulatory & Compliance Support

ASSISTANCE WITH 

DAY-TO-DAY 

QUESTIONS AND 

STRATEGIC 

CHALLENGES

DEDICATED TEAM 

OF EXPERIENCED 

EMPLOYEE 

BENEFITS 

ATTORNEYS 

LEGISLATIVE 

AND REGULATORY 

SUPPORT

COMPLIANCE 

ANNUAL PLANNING

GUIDE

COMPLIANCE TOOLS INCLUDE: CHECKLISTS, FAQS, DIRECTIONS NEWSLETTERS,  AND OTHER PUBLICATIONS 

Deep industry experience with the tools needed to understand

and navigate an increasingly complicated regulatory landscape

Over 30 dedicated compliance professionals, including 

over 20 attorneys
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Wellbeing

The WHOLE person comes to work every day...

each associate’s wellbeing influences    
individual and organizational performance

&

Gallagher’s Physical & Emotional Wellbeing Consulting team consists of a 

team of 30 dedicated professionals, providing consulting to clients of various 

sizes and various industries nationally. 

The City’s Wellbeing Consultant, Sarah Green, can provide first-hand local and 

regional insights is backed by a vast network of national expertise
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Pharmacy

Benefit 

Manager 

(PBM)

Contract 

Reviews

Request For 

Proposals 

(RFPs)

Audits Periodic Plan 

Financial 

Reports

Benefit Plan 

Designs (or 

Redesigns)

 Strategic Pharmacy Management

 Pharmacy Cost To Equal Hospital
Cost In Next 3 To 5 years

 Gallagher In-House Pharm-D
Pharmacists

 Specialty Rx Spend

 Major Discount Increases

 Major Rebate Increases

 Possible PBM Carve Out

Pharmacy

Benefit

Practice

Pharmacy Benefit Practice
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Long-Term Strategy Path

Fully Insured – Plan Design Changes
• Add H.S.A. programs
• Update plan designs to promote

consumer driven behavior
• Educate Employees on how to

utilize benefits to limit out of pocket
and claims costs (Ex. UR vs ER)

• Add/Enhance Wellness programs
for population health management

and shaping the culture
• Gather data analytics to create

actionable strategies

Fully Insured - CURRENT 
• Status Quo scenario
• Negotiate renewal using

projections, expected manual
rates, etc.

• Use market leverage
• Identify potential plan changes

• Employee contribution analysis
• Gather data analytics

Transition to Self-Funded
• Move self-funded
• Continue to Educate

Employees and Promote
Population Health

Management
• Continue to gather data

analytics for ongoing strategies
• Continue targeted messaging

campaigns

Captive
• Join stop loss captive
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Why Gallagher ?

 National Strength, Local Service

 Employee Direct Service Model

 Proactive Cost Control

 Comprehensive Compliance Support

 In-house Compliance, Pharmacists,

Underwriters & Wellness Consultants

 Complete Benefits Administration

 Best In Class Employee Communications

Gallagher’s long term partnership with the City of Leon Valley has been 

instrumental in helping to keeping rising healthcare costs in check.  

We are proud to have negotiated many low single digit renewals including 

multiple rate passes (0%) and even reductions in our history together.  

Together, we can continue to provide quality healthcare plans at affordable 

premiums in order to help the City meet short term and long term strategic goals.
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Thank You!

Matt Stedman

210-885-2709

Matt_Stedman@ajg.com
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©2020 ARTHUR J. GALLAGHER & CO. 

Disclaimer

• The intent of this analysis is to provide you with general information regarding the status of, and/or potential concerns related to, your
current employee benefits environment. It should not be construed as, nor is it intended to provide, legal advice. Laws may be complex
and subject to change. This information is based on current interpretation of the law and is not guaranteed. Questions regarding specific
issues should be addressed by legal counsel who specializes in this practice area.

• This analysis is for illustrative purposes only, and is not a proposal for coverage or a guarantee of future expenses, claims costs,
managed care savings, etc. There are many variables that can affect future health care costs including utilization patterns, catastrophic
claims, changes in plan design, health care trend increases, etc. This analysis does not amend, extend, or alter the coverage provided by
the actual insurance policies and contracts. See your policy or contact us for specific information or further details in this regard.

• Gallagher Benefit Services, Inc., has provided this timeline as a resource to help identify and clarify submission requirements and dates
for this project. Although the timeline was created to be as comprehensive as possible, it should not be assumed that the information is
all-inclusive and error-free, nor is the sequence of events outlined in exact chronological order. All information is provided for
informational and educational purposes only and is not intended to provide legal, investment, tax or accounting advice and should not be
relied upon in that regard. Your financial and tax situation may be unique and therefore you should independently consult your attorney
and accountant regarding any legal and tax implications.

• This analysis is an outline of the coverages proposed by the carriers based upon the information provided by your company. It does not
include all the terms, coverages, exclusions, limitations, and conditions of the actual contract language. See the policies and contracts for
actual language. This analysis is not a contract and offers no contractual obligation on behalf of GBS. Policy forms for your reference will
be made available upon request.
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McGriff.com

McGriff Employee Benefits

Presentation to Leon Valley City Council
For

Insurance Agent of Record 

April 18, 2023
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About McGriff
• Founded over 100 years ago – serving employers with Risk and 

Employee Benefits Consulting services

• Part of network of six complementary organizations that make up 
Truist Insurance Holdings; the 6th largest insurance broker in the U.S. 
and 7th largest in the world

• Market Presence, Public Entity Experience – premier relationships 
with major insurance companies and health services providers

• Commitment to the local communities we serve with more than 120 
locations across 22 states

$3.2Billion*
2022 Revenue

$45 Billion*
2021 Premium Volume

120+
Locations in the U.S.

10,500*
Teammates

160
Countries represented 
through global 
partnerships

*Truist Insurance Holdings
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The City’s Team

Nicolette Essary
Client Service 

Specialist

John Bass, CEBS
Vice President

Public Entity Practice

Alicia Domenech 
Account Manager

Jordan Nixon 
Account Manager

Financial Data Analyst

One Vision, Unlimited Possibilities, A Better Client Experience 

Scott Gibbs
Senior Vice President
Public Entity Practice 

Lead
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Partial Education/Public Entity Client List

4
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Your Challenges…..We’re Listening

5

Assist in Short and 
Long-Range Strategy 

Development

Competitive Purchasing 
Process

Evaluation and Analysis 
of Health Benefit 

Program

Ongoing Services Client Centric 
Account Management

Benefit Plan 
Compliance 
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Our Mission and Promise

6

To protect and improve the financial security and well-being of our clients and their 
employees while supporting our community and each other.

We promise to: 
• Listen first 
• Invest in our clients and employees 
• Deliver innovative solutions 

• Act with integrity 
• Do all that we say we will do 
• Champion certainty 
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Our Process: Client Experience Roadmap

7

This well-mapped course provides the framework for our reliable and proactive service model, 
one ingrained in our culture of accountability. Our consultants and account teams will rely on 
your Client Experience Roadmap as their servicing standard. And we’ll keep listening throughout 
our relationship, working together to refine your experience along the way.
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Our Capabilities

Ben Admin Technology

• General Consulting
• Payroll HRIS Integration
• Employee Self-Serve Election 

System
• Basic Data Management
• Employee Portal
• Enrollment & Eligibility
• Billing Reconciliation

Clinical Wellness

• Multi year wellness strategies and 
planning 

• Data and claims analysis 
• Integration with risk management
• Thought leadership and best 

practices 
• Vendor implementation and 

evaluation

Communications

• Employer-Specific Communication 
Strategy

• Integrated/Interactive Websites
• Fully-Branded Employer 

Campaigns, including wellness, 
open enrollment and onboarding

• Mobile App and Call Center

Financial Analytics

• In-House Actuaries & Underwriters
• Program Renewal Strategies
• Reporting and Projections
• Pricing Comparisons
• Benchmarking Services
• Regional & Industry Trends
• Data Warehouse 

Flexible Benefits & 
COBRA Administration

In-house
• FSA Administration
• COBRA Administration
• HSA Administration
• HRA Administration
• Transit and Dependent Care

HR Advisory

• HR Help Desk & Chat Tool
• Employment Laws & Regulation
• Templates: Forms, Notices & 

Checklists
• Discrimination Testing
• Living Employee Handbook Builder

Pharmacy Benefit 
Consulting

• PBM Technology Platform
• Complete Claims Re-pricing
• Contract Review
• Financial Negotiation
• Plan Audits
• Specialty Drug Management

Compliance

• Team of legally-trained 
professionals

• Compliance Help Desk
• Wrap Document Creation
• 5500 Creation & Filings
• Legislative Ruling Updates
• Ongoing Educational Presentations

Retirement Advisory 
Services

• Regional & Industry Trends and 
Traditional Retirement Benefit 
Plans Assistance

• Pension Risk Transfer
• Asset/Liability Modeling
• Forecasting and Cash Flow 

Planning

Stop Loss 
Administration

Voluntary Benefits 
Practice

Risk Mitigation

Account Management

• Benefit and Plan Consulting
• Program Review and Audit
• Short and Long-Term Strategy 

Planning
• Customized Client Roadmaps & 

Timelines
• Daily and Ongoing Account Service
• RFP Services & Marketing

Wellness Programs & 
Services

• Discounted biometrics & labs
• Improved modifiable risk factors
• Health education and coaching
• Wellness ecosystem optimization
• Measurable ROI
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Financial Analytics
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Insights & Analytics

10

Actuarial, underwriting and analytical expertise to help: 

• Manage costs

• Operation Efficiency 

• Risk Mitigation

• Employee Experience

Analytics
 Innovu Data Analytics 

Platform, Reporting and 
Training

 Predictive Modeling

 Wellness Program 
Analysis and Impact

 Network Augmentation 
Strategies

 Determine Appropriate 
Areas of Focus

 Targeting Disease 
Burdens

Actuarial

 Plan Design Analysis

 Multi-Year (3) Claim 
Experience Forecasting

 Plan Migration Analysis 
and Strategy

 Reserve (IBNR) Analysis

 Large Claim Analysis

 Provider Contract 
Analysis

Reporting

 Traditional 
Monthly/Quarterly 
Plan Performance 
Reports

 Large Claim analysis

 Benchmarking against 
our Book of Business

 Custom Cuts and 
Views for Leadership

 Demographic Analysis

 Dedicated Financial 
Analyst

Underwriting
 Plan Projections

 Mid-Year Projections

 Premium Development

 Funding Conversion 
Scenarios/Strategies

 Plan Design/Plan 
Shifting scenarios 

 Stop-Loss Deductible 
Analysis/Optimization

 Medical/Pharmacy 
Claim Analysis and 
Projections

 Training Courses
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Insights & Analytics

11

• Benchmark your plan experience against 
national trends
- Adjusted based on demographics and geography

• Longitudinal experience studies
• Reporting by division or plan

• Ability to drill down on:
- Overall utilization trends (IP, OP, ER, Rx)
- Gaps in care (individual and group level)
- Large claimant activity, including predicted cost
- Disease prevalence and trend
- Pharmacy utilization
- Much more...
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Insights & Analytics

12

• Reporting on what matters to your population, both financially and strategically
• Seamless budget reporting, available via online portal and analytics platform login
• Network analysis using actual claims and utilization from prior reporting period
• Cost analysis for specific procedures and facilities based on published Hospital & Payor Transparency machine 

readable files
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Compliance
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Compliance
Our Comprehensive Strategy to Compliance

14

Service & Resource Highlights
• Annual Reporting and Disclosure 

Guide

• Compliance Calendar

• ThinkHR Access

• ACA Look-back Measurement 
Method Template

• HIPAA Privacy and Security Toolkit

• Mergers & Acquisitions - Buyer’s 
Toolkit

• Model Notices Templates

• Wrap Plan Documents and SPDs

• Plan amendments and regulation 
monitoring

• Form 5500 filing preparation

• Section 125 Premium Only Plan 
documents

Expertise 
• Legally-trained ERISA and 

employee benefits professionals 
providing consultative and 
regulatory guidance on the full 
spectrum of benefit plan 
compliance obligations

• Dedicated Health Care Reform 
and ERISA Compliance Advisory 
Groups

General Assistance 
• Employee Benefit Compliance

Resource Center for questions 
regarding compliance issues

• Guidance on mandatory Health 
Care Reform reporting 
requirements

• Continuous update on new and 
changing government mandates 
and requirements

Documentation 
• Preparation of Form 5500 filings, ERISA Wrap Plans and Section 125 Cafeteria

Plan Documents
• Annual Participant Notices
• Checklists and white papers to assist with benefit plan compliance

Communication 
• Direct notification and education 

regarding legislative changes 
impacting benefit plans

• Monthly webinars addressing 
topics affecting employee benefits

Audit Preparation 
• DOL and HIPAA audit standards 

and plan documentation 
requirements

• Health Care Reform Audit and 
Compliance Checklist
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Compliance
Thought Leadership to Keep You in the Know 

15

• Weekly Benefits News Clips

• Monthly It Benefits You Newsletter

• Detailed Benefits Briefs on FAQs

• Regular Legislative Alerts on regulatory changes and 
compliance deadlines

• Timely Webinars on key legislation and compliance 
matters
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HR Advisory Services
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Education Preparation

On-Demand 
Support

Online 
Portal

Document 
Library

Toolkits

17

HR Advisory
McGriff offers comprehensive HR Consulting 
as well as assistance across a variety of 
knowledge-based platforms including several 
online resources.
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People risk is inevitable 
for an organization, and 
reducing it is no small 
feat given the array of 
potential risks, ever-
changing legislation and 
the need for high impact 
expertise in the moment.

Living Handbook
A customizable Living Handbook 
builder with federal and state-specific 
content and policy update alerts. 
Allows employers to create, maintain 
and manage their employee 
handbook with ease. 

Using our HR Platform’s Living 
Handbook saves:

• Attorney or consulting fees of 
$2,000+

• Outside consultant charges of 
hundreds of dollars per hour for 
handbook creation

• The risk of employment liability 
with clearly communicated 
regulatory compliant policies

• Saves additional translation fees 
that would cost thousands of 
dollars depending on the number 
of states.

Web-based Courses
We provide access to more than 250 online web-based courses to help 
ensure compliance, reduce risk and drive employee engagement. Assign 
employees courses from a broad menu of training solutions – available in 
both English and Spanish. Many courses satisfy certain OSHA and State 
Harassment Requirements.

250+

HR Advisory

Mineral (formally known as ThinkHR) — a robust 
resource with live advisors, reliable content and 
interactive technology solutions that provides an 
end-to-end People Risk Management solution.

18
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Communications
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Benefit Guides Posters / Flyers

Brochures

Postcards

Video Email / Web

20

Communications
We utilize a variety of media channels to 
reinforce messaging and maximize the value of 
your benefits plan. 
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Service & Resource Highlights

• Strategy and Communication 
Plan Development

• Campaign Project 
Management (Health Literacy)

• Benefits Brand Logo Creation

• Employee Surveys

• Creative and Graphic Design 
Services

• Custom “Brainshark” 
Presentations

• Messaging and Content 
Development

• Print and Fulfillment 
Coordination

• Production & Shipping of 
Materials Coordination

• Development Across Multiple 
Digital Media Platforms 
including videos, mobile 
applications, webinars, etc.

We create strategies that build awareness, 
educate employees and drive engagement.
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Why McGriff?

22

Our Strategy
• Align overall City 

objectives to your benefit 
program

• Implement best practices 
to drive maximal program 
performance

• Leverage all partners to 
drive long-term value 
with integrated system 
and focus

• Establish key 
measurement areas for 
success and hold parties 
accountable for results

Our Commitment
• We are dedicated to 

helping improve the 
health and wealth of 
the people, 
organizations and 
communities we serve

• We align all 
stakeholders to deliver 
innovative solutions.

• We listen, design, 
implement, and 
manage programs 
and services that 
meet your needs

Our Approach
• Establish 3-year strategy 

aligning all City’s 
stakeholders

• Understand claims profile 
and population health 
risk factors

• Establish migration 
strategy to align 
enrollment with risk 
factors

• Improve value for all key 
stakeholders and gain 
control of cost and risk
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Information within this document is confidential & proprietary.

©2021 McGriff Insurance Services, Inc. All rights reserved.

McGriff Insurance Services, Inc. is a subsidiary of Truist Insurance Holdings, Inc. 322
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MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

DATE: April 6,2023  
 
TO: Mayor and Council 
 
FROM: Roque Salinas, Director of Economic Development 
 
THROUGH:  Dr. Crystal Caldera, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action on a Resolution Authorizing 
the City Manager to enter into an Agreement between the City of Leon Valley and Leon 
Valley and Petland of Leon Valley, to Intake, House, and Adopt Dogs and Between the 
City of Leon Valley and My Pets Vet Hospital to Vet the Animals - R. Salinas, Director of 
Economic Development 
 
PURPOSE 
The City is currently experiencing a lack of space to house animals that are picked up by 
animal control. Petland is willing to help intake, house, and attempt to get small dogs 
(under 20lbs) adopted through their platform.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Will be dependent on the number of dogs sent to Petland.   
 

SEE LEON VALLEY 

Social Equity – N/A 

 
Economic Development – Collaborations with local businesses illustrate the 
commitment the city has to its business community. 
 
Environmental Stewardship – N/A  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS 

N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
At council discretion 
 
 
ATTEST : 
 
 
____________________________ 

SAUNDRA PASSAILAIGUE, TRMC 
City Secretary 
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RESOLUTION # 

1 

 

STATE OF TEXAS     §       MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

§                BETWEEN CITY OF LEON VALLEY  

   §        AND PETLAND LEON VALLEY. 

COUNTY OF BEXAR    §         
 

 

 This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter referred to as the "Agreement") is made 

and entered into by and between the CITY OF LEON VALLEY (“CoLV”) and Petland Leon 

Valley, acting by and through its representative (“Petland”) (CoLV and Petland collectively 

referred to herein as the “Parties”). 

 

 

WHEREAS, Petland is located at 7030 Bandera Rd, San Antonio, TX 78238. (the 

“Property”) in the exclusive manner specified herein; and 

 

 WHEREAS, Petland agrees to intake small dogs, at their discretion, from CoLV, and  

 

WHEREAS, Petland provides a minimum of 4 kennels for exclusive use by the City, for 

animals rescued by members of the Leon Valley Animal Control Department, and 

 

WHEREAS, City agrees to have the dog vetted as requested by Petland. 

  

  

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties hereto severally and collectively agree, and by the execution 

hereof are bound, to the mutual obligations herein contained and to the performance and 

accomplishment of the tasks hereinafter described: 
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RESOLUTION # 

2 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

1. Parties – This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter referred to as MOU) is created 

and entered by and between the City of Leon Valley, a Texas municipality (hereinafter 

referred to as the City), whose address is 6400 El Verde Rd., Leon Valley, Texas 78238, 

and Petland Leon Valley, whose address is 7030 Bandera Rd, San Antonio, TX 78238. 

 

2. Purpose – The purpose of this MOU is to establish the terms and conditions under which 

Petland will provide services for accepting for shelter, boarding and eventual adoption 

services for animals (domestic canines, rescued and/or taken into custody by members of 

the City of Leon Valley’s Animal Control Department. 

 

3. Term of MOU – Petland will provide shelter, boarding (4 kennels minimum) and adoptive 

services from the date this MOU is executed (hereinafter known as the effective date) by 

the duly authorized representatives of the parties to this MOU and shall remain in effect 

for three (3) years after the effective date. However, this MOU may be terminated by either 

party without cause after being in effect for six (6) months from the date of execution with 

30 days written notice by either party delivered by hand or by certified mail to the address 

listed above. 

 

4. Standard Operating Procedure - Whenever a canine is taken into custody, City staff will 

test the animal for Parvo. If the animal tests negative for Parvo it will be transported to 

Petland by a member of the City’s Animal Control Department.  

 

a. Petland staff will conduct an interview of the animal to determine if their behavior 

and demeanor is a good fit with Petland. Petland reserves the right to reject animals 

at their discretion.  

 

5. City Responsibilities- If Petland accepts the animal, the City shall continue to vigorously 

attempt to locate the animal’s owner for a minimum of three (3) days, with the goal of 

returning the animal to its owner. 

 

a. If after a minimum of three (3) days the City has not identified the owner of the 

animal, the City agrees to pick up the animal and have it vetted and pay for services 

as requested by Petland. The city will pay for vetting services directly with the 

serving Vet.   

i. Dog under 12 weeks of age 

1. DAPP 

2. Bordetella 

 

ii. Dog over 12 weeks of age 

1. DAPP 
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RESOLUTION # 

3 

 

2. Bordetella 

3. Rabies 

4. Lepto and 3 weeks later a lepto booster 

 

iii. Dogs with fleas should be treated with capstar 

 

6. Petland Responsibilities – Petland shall keep and provide a minimum of 4 kennels for 

exclusive use by the City, for animals rescued by members of the Leon Valley Animal 

Control Department.  

 

a) Petland agrees to intake small dogs (20 lbs. and under) 

 

b) Petland agrees to take possession of City animals and hold animals for three (3) 

days, while City staff attempts to find their owner.  

 

c) Petland agrees to take possession of City animals for a minimum of 120 days. After 

the minimum period, Petland can return the animal to the City. Petland reserves the 

right to maintain possession of animals passed the minimum period; however, 

Petland must provide notice to the City. If Petland opts to keep the animal past the 

minimum period, they must keep the animal for a minimum of 45 days. 

 

d) Petland agrees to provide indoor boarding, food, water, and adoptive services for 

domestic canines. 

 

e) Petland agrees to market the availability of City animals on all their platforms as 

they would for non-city animals.   

a. City Animals should, at minimum, have the following information posted: 

i. Presentable photo 

ii. Breed, if available, if not available then an acceptable title can be 

designated.  

iii. Color 

iv. Gender 

v. Reference ID  

vi. Location and contact information 

vii. Cost for adoption  

 

f) Petland agrees to provide links of posting to City Staff. City staff will further post 

the availability of the animals on City platforms. 

 

g) Petland agrees to charge a maximum of $250 per animal. All adoption fees 

collected will belong to Petland.   
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RESOLUTION # 

4 

 

7. General Provisions 

(a.) Amendments – Either party may request changes to this MOU. Any changes, 

modifications, revisions, or amendments to this MOU which are mutually agreed upon 

by and between the parties to this MOU shall be incorporated by written instrument, 

and effective when executed and signed by all parties to this MOU. 

 

(b.) Applicable Law – The construction, interpretation and enforcement of this MOU shall 

be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. The courts of the State of Texas shall 

have jurisdiction over any action arising out of this MOU and over the parties, and the 

venue shall be the District Court for the County of Bexar, State of Texas. 

 

(c.) Entirety of Agreement – This MOU represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, and 

agreements, whether written or oral. 

 

(d.) Severability – Should any portion of this MOU be judicially determined to be illegal 

or unenforceable, the remainder of the MOU shall continue in full force and effect, and 

either party may renegotiate the terms affected by the severance. 

 

(e.) Sovereign Immunity – The City does not waive its sovereign immunity by entering this 

MOU and shall fully retain all immunities and defenses provided by law with respect 

to any action based on or occurring because of this MOU. 

 

(f.) Third Party Beneficiary Rights – The parties do not intend to create in any other 

individual or entity the status of a third-party beneficiary, and this MOU shall not be 

construed to create such status. The rights, duties and obligations contained in this 

MOU shall operate only between the parties to this MOU and shall insure solely to the 

benefit of the parties to this MOU. The provisions of this MOU are intended only to 

assist the parties in determining and performing their obligations under this MOU. The 

parties to this MOU intend and expressly agree that only the parties signatory to this 

MOU shall have any legal or equitable right to seek to enforce this MOU, to seek any 

remedy arising out of a party’s performance or failure to perform any term or condition 

of this MOU, or to bring an action for the breach of this MOU. 

 

(g.) Signatures – In witness whereof, the parties to this MOU through their duly authorized 

representatives have executed this MOU on the days and dates set out below, and 

certify that they have read, understood, and agreed to the terms and conditions of this 

MOU as set forth herein. 
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RESOLUTION # 

5 

 

Signed and executed by both parties on this the ___ day of ____________ 2023. 

 

               

 

 City of Leon Valley, A Texas Municipality 

              

By:_______________________________ 

Crystal Caldera  -  City Manager 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

By:_________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

 

By:______________________________ 

  Laura Zamora -Petland Leon Valley 
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MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

1. Parties – This Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter referred to as MOU) is created 

and entered by and between the City of Leon Valley, a Texas municipality (hereinafter 

referred to as the City), whose address is 6400 El Verde Rd., Leon Valley, Texas 78238, 

and Petland Leon Valley, whose address is 7030 Bandera Rd, San Antonio, TX 78238. 

 

2. Purpose – The purpose of this MOU is to establish the terms and conditions under which 

Petland will provide services for accepting for shelter, boarding and eventual adoption 

services for animals (domestic canines, rescued and/or taken into custody by members of 

the City of Leon Valley’s Animal Control Department. 

 

3. Term of MOU – Petland will provide shelter, boarding (4 kennels minimum) and adoptive 

services from the date this MOU is executed (hereinafter known as the effective date) by 

the duly authorized representatives of the parties to this MOU and shall remain in effect 

for three (3) years after the effective date. However, this MOU may be terminated by either 

party without cause after being in effect for six (6) months from the date of execution with 

30 days written notice by either party delivered by hand or by certified mail to the address 

listed above. 

 

4. Standard Operating Procedure - Whenever a canine is taken into custody, City staff will 

test the animal for Parvo. If the animal tests negative for Parvo it will be transported to 

Petland by a member of the City’s Animal Control Department.  

 

a. Petland staff will conduct an interview of the animal to determine if their behavior 

and demeanor is a good fit with Petland. Petland reserves the right to reject animals 

at their discretion.  

 

5. City Responsibilities- If Petland accepts the animal, the City shall continue to vigorously 

attempt to locate the animal’s owner for a minimum of three (3) days, with the goal of 

returning the animal to its owner. 

 

a. If after a minimum of three (3) days the City has not identified the owner of the 

animal, the City agrees to pick up the animal and have it vetted and pay for services 

as requested by Petland. The city will pay for vetting services directly with the 

serving Vet.   

i. Dog under 12 weeks of age 

1. DAPP 

2. Bordetella 
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ii. Dog over 12 weeks of age 

1. DAPP 

2. Bordetella 

3. Rabies 

4. Lepto and 3 weeks later a lepto booster 

 

iii. Dogs with fleas should be treated with capstar 

 

6. Petland Responsibilities – Petland shall keep and provide a minimum of 4 kennels for 

exclusive use by the City, for animals rescued by members of the Leon Valley Animal 

Control Department.  

 

a) Petland agrees to intake small dogs (20 lbs. and under) 

 

b) Petland agrees to take possession of City animals and hold animals for three (3) 

days, while City staff attempts to find their owner.  

 

c) Petland agrees to take possession of City animals for a minimum of 120 days. After 

the minimum period, Petland can return the animal to the City. Petland reserves the 

right to maintain possession of animals passed the minimum period; however, 

Petland must provide notice to the City. If Petland opts to keep the animal past the 

minimum period, they must keep the animal for a minimum of 45 days. 

 

d) Petland agrees to provide indoor boarding, food, water, and adoptive services for 

domestic canines. 

 

e) Petland agrees to market the availability of City animals on all their platforms as 

they would for non-city animals.   

a. City Animals should, at minimum, have the following information posted: 

i. Presentable photo 

ii. Breed, if available, if not available then an acceptable title can be 

designated.  

iii. Color 

iv. Gender 

v. Reference ID  

vi. Location and contact information 

vii. Cost for adoption  

 

f) Petland agrees to provide links of posting to City Staff. City staff will further post 

the availability of the animals on City platforms. 

 

g) Petland agrees to charge a maximum of $250 per animal. All adoption fees 

collected will belong to Petland.   
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7. General Provisions 

(a.) Amendments – Either party may request changes to this MOU. Any changes, 

modifications, revisions, or amendments to this MOU which are mutually agreed upon 

by and between the parties to this MOU shall be incorporated by written instrument, 

and effective when executed and signed by all parties to this MOU. 

 

(b.) Applicable Law – The construction, interpretation and enforcement of this MOU shall 

be governed by the laws of the State of Texas. The courts of the State of Texas shall 

have jurisdiction over any action arising out of this MOU and over the parties, and the 

venue shall be the District Court for the County of Bexar, State of Texas. 

 

(c.) Entirety of Agreement – This MOU represents the entire and integrated agreement 

between the parties and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, and 

agreements, whether written or oral. 

 

(d.) Severability – Should any portion of this MOU be judicially determined to be illegal 

or unenforceable, the remainder of the MOU shall continue in full force and effect, and 

either party may renegotiate the terms affected by the severance. 

 

(e.) Sovereign Immunity – The City does not waive its sovereign immunity by entering this 

MOU and shall fully retain all immunities and defenses provided by law with respect 

to any action based on or occurring because of this MOU. 

 

(f.) Third Party Beneficiary Rights – The parties do not intend to create in any other 

individual or entity the status of a third-party beneficiary, and this MOU shall not be 

construed to create such status. The rights, duties and obligations contained in this 

MOU shall operate only between the parties to this MOU and shall insure solely to the 

benefit of the parties to this MOU. The provisions of this MOU are intended only to 

assist the parties in determining and performing their obligations under this MOU. The 

parties to this MOU intend and expressly agree that only the parties signatory to this 

MOU shall have any legal or equitable right to seek to enforce this MOU, to seek any 

remedy arising out of a party’s performance or failure to perform any term or condition 

of this MOU, or to bring an action for the breach of this MOU. 

 

(g.) Signatures – In witness whereof, the parties to this MOU through their duly authorized 

representatives have executed this MOU on the days and dates set out below, and 

certify that they have read, understood, and agreed to the terms and conditions of this 

MOU as set forth herein. 
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Signed and executed by both parties on this the ___ day of ____________ 2023. 

 

               City of Leon Valley, A Texas Municipality 

              

By:_______________________________ 

Crystal Caldera  -  City Manager 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

By:_________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

 

By:______________________________ 

  Laura Zamora -Petland Leon Valley 
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Petland Partnership

Roque Salinas

Economic Development Director

4/18/2023
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Summary

Summary:
Presentation, Discussion and Possible Action on a Resolution Authorizing the City 

Manager to enter into an Agreement between the City of Leon Valley and Leon Valley and 

Petland of Leon Valley, to Intake, House, and Adopt Dogs.

Options:

1. Approve

2. Denial
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Background

The City is currently experiencing a lack of space to house animals that are picked up

by animal control. Petland is willing to help intake, house, and attempt to get small

dogs (under 20lbs) adopted through their platform.
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Operating Procedure 

• Whenever a canine is taken into custody, City staff will test the animal for Parvo. If
the animal test negative for Parvo it will be transported to Petland by a member of
the City’s Animal Control Department. Petland staff will conduct an interview of
the animal to determine if their behavior and demeanor is a good fit with Petland.
Petland reserves the right to reject animal at their discretion.

• If Petland accepts the animal, the City shall continue to vigorously attempt to locate

the animal’s owner for a minimum of three (3) days, as required by state law, with

the goal of returning the animal to its owner.

• If after a minimum of three (3) days the City has not identified the owner of the

animal, the City agrees to pick up the animal and have it vetted and pay for services

as requested by Petland.
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List of Services 

Dog under 12 weeks of age

1. DAPP

2. Bordetella

Dog over 12 weeks of age

1. DAPP

2. Bordetella

3. Rabies

4. Lepto and 3 weeks later a lepto booster

Dogs with fleas should be treated with capstar

City will also spay and neuter dogs.
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Petland responablities

(a) Petland shall keep and provide a minimum of 4 kennels for exclusive use by the City, for animals rescued

by members of the Leon Valley Animal Control Department.

(b) Petland agrees to take possession of City animals for a minimum of 120 days. After the minimum period,

Petland can return the animal to the City. Petland reserves the right to maintain possession of animals

passed the minimum period; however, Petland must provide notice to the City. If Petland opts to keep the

animal past the minimum period, they must keep the animal for a minimum of 45 days.

(c) Petland agrees to provide indoor boarding and adoptive services for domestic canines.

(d) Petland agrees to market the availability of City animals on all their platforms as they would for non-city

animals.

a. City Animals should, at minimum, have the following information posted:

i. Presentable photo

ii. Breed, if available, if not available then an acceptable title can be designated.

iii. Color

iv. Gender

v. Reference ID

vi. Location and contact information

vii.Cost for adoption

(e) Petland agrees to provide links of posting to City Staff. City staff will further post the availability of the

animals on City platforms.

(f) Petland agrees to charge a maximum of $250 per animal. All adoption fees collected will belong to Petland.
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S.E.E. Statement

Social Equity: 

 N/A

Economic Development: 

Collaborations with local businesses illustrate the 
commitment the city has to it’s business 
community. 

Environmental Stewardship: 

 N/A
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Recommendation

At council discretion 
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OUTSTANDING CITY COUNCIL ITEMS 

• A policy on open meetings act in regards to how it applies to advisory 

committees 

o 1/17/2023 – Moved by Mayor 

o 2/7/2023 – Moved by Mayor 

o 2/21/2023 – Moved by Mayor 

o 3/7/2023- The meeting agenda too full moved by City Manager 

o 3/21/2023- The meeting agenda too full moved by City Manager 

o 4/4/2023 – Placed on the agenda 

o 4/18/2023 – Will be placed on consent 

• Presentation on VIA ridership and MTA .005 of sales tax 

o 2/7/2023 – Mayor would like VIA present moved to 2/21/2023 

o 2/21/2023 – Placed on the agenda – The council requested more 

information to return to the council by April 

o 4/18/2023 – Item placed on the Agenda 

• Sustainability Overlay 

o 5/2/2023 

• Stray Animal Ordinance  

o Currently being reviewed by City Attorney – we can not require private 

industry to take in and adopt our stray animals 

o Looking at a possible interlocal agreement.  

• Public Private Partnership with local petshops for pet adoption options 

o 2/21/2023 City Council wished to proceed with the Partnership 

o 3/21/2023 will return with an official MOU – postponed due to being held 

up with Petland legal 

o 4/18/2023 – Placed on the Agenda as a resolution 

• Establish Neighborhood boundaries 

o Council has opted not to Update Master Plan 

o P & Z Director investigating a university conducting the plan 

• Neighborhood/citizen survey 

• Review of the personnel manual 

• Capital Plans 

o 5/16/2023 

• Review of the Water rates  

o 5/2/2023 

• Legal review of the Sign Code 

o Councilor Orozco and Bradshaw will work on this item 

• Looking at an amendment to Section 15.02 Appendix C (I), D Structural 

Nonconformity to add a matching percentage from Economic Community 

Development funds 

o After the sustainability review  

• Four-way stop at Forest Meadow and Evers  
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o To be evaluated upon the development of the Evers property 

• LVHS request for ARP funds 

o Reviewing MOU on 11/1/2022, 12/6/2022 

• Short Term Rental 

o 3/7/2023 

o Short Term rentals have appeared on the following agendas: 

▪ 1/12/2021- Tabled 

▪ 1/19/2021-Discussed 

▪ 4/6/2021-Discussed 

▪ 4/20/2021- Discussed 

▪ 8/3/2021-Tabled 

▪ 8/17/2021-Discussed 

▪ 8/16/2022-Tabled 

▪ 9/6/2022- Discussed 

▪ 1/17/2023- Discussed 

▪ 3/7/2023 – Item added by Councilor Stevens and Orozco  

• Council decided to have the city attorney draft an ordinance 

based on the information provided by Councilor Stevens 

• Seneca West R6 Zone change 

o 3/7/2023 

▪ Council requested some prices to replat as larger lots, not  in favor 

of R6 

▪ Staff will be getting prices to plat larger lots and bring them back to 

the council 

• 5616 Bandera road, also known as Comfort Cafe 

▪ 3/21/2023 Public Hearing to remedy 

• Council decided to demo the property. Scheduled for May 1, 

2023 demo 

• Towing Contract 

o 04/04/2023 – Council Would like additional information 

o 5/2/2023 – will be back with additional information  

• Regulations regarding front yard fences 

o Date to be determined 

• Health Inspector contract 

o Date to be determined 

• Building Official contract 

o Date to be determined 

ITEMS ARE STILL IN THE PIPELINE BUT HAVE BEEN ADDRESSED  

• John Marshall Traffic Plan – CR, JH 

o Discussed at the following Council meeting 

o 12/14/2022 Next steps  
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o NISD engineers are still working on the plan, collecting traffic counts, and 

coordinating with CoSA Traffic Department 

o Once complete, additional meetings will be held with the City to determine 

the feasibility and appropriateness 

o Once plans are final, the proposal will be presented to City Council for 

approval 

o John Marshal Update on 3/15 based on 2/14 meeting 

o The City received feedback on possible neighborhood suggestions on 

5/09/2022. Joint meeting to be determined.  

o Heard by City Council to possible street closures on 8/23/20 Engineers will 

develop a report and PD and Fire will review 

o Taking to Council on 10/3/2022 

o 2/7/2023 council will review speed pads and school zone 

▪ Council decided to move forward with the speed pads and wait on 

the school zone. The Delinators will also be left alone 

• Flooding 

o Was addressed at the following Council Meetings 

▪ 08/03/2021 – Flood Damage Prevention Ord. # 21-034 

▪ 11/2/2021 – To discuss Flood Mitigation Strategies 

▪ 12/07/2021 – Short Term options to address flooding 

o Budget Adjustment – For Funding floodway Monitoring and Software 

Upgrades 

▪ Upcoming Council presentation 1/18/2022 

o Budget Adjustment – for Creek Cleanup 

▪ Staff is proposing $150,000 in ARP funds. Upcoming Council 

meeting TBD 

o Segment one of Huebner creek will be presented to the council on 

4/19/2022 

▪ Council decided to look at the 50 ‘ wide, protected little league, the 

study will be brought back to the council before we agree to do it.  

o Budget adjustment for creek cleanup 

▪ 6/7/2022 

o Budget adjustment for flood gates and notification system 

▪ 6/7/2022 postponed 

• Huebner Creek Channel improvement presentation 9/20/2022 

o Council direction to bring back budget adjustment on $633,000 

▪ First Read 10/3/2022 

▪ Second Read 10/18/2022  

• Fourth of July Presentation  

o City Council 3/15 

o Council provided direction 

o The next update will be on 6/7/2022 

o Recap August 2, 2022, and August 16, 2022 
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o Recap and Direction October 4, 2022  

o Review 11/15/2022 

▪ Time will remain the same and have a headliner that is well known 

• Presentation and discussion on the status of implementation of TPCA best 

practices for law enforcement policies, including the mandatory provision 

of mental health PTO in accordance with Texas legislative changes - JS, 

RO 

o Discussed at the following Council meeting 

▪ 6/1/2021 

o Update in the CM report 10/26/2021:  

▪ We released the initial 6 policies (6.1 - Use of Force, 6.3 - Non-

lethal, Less than lethal weapons, 6.4 - Officer Involved Shooting, 

7.15 - Vehicle Pursuits, 7.40 Investigations, 8.6 Active Shooter) in 

July and August. With the distribution, we included a record of 

receipt and pertinent training. 

▪ Since the initial release, we have now distributed 4 more policies 

(3.2 - Field Training Program, 3.2.1 - Field Training Program 

Operations Manual, 4.6 -  Off-duty Employment, 5.4 - Body Worn 

Camera)  and again, with the distribution, we have included a 

record of receipt and pertinent training. 

▪ Currently in the process of the last review before we release 8 other 

policies. 

o Mental Health quarantine Policies Section 614.015 of the Tx Gov't Code 

have been updated and can be found here: 

https://cms3.revize.com/revize/leonvalleynew/departments/human_resour

ces/procedural_directives.php#revize_document_center_rz4176 

o Distributed a Property and Evidence packaging manual that is used along 

with 12.1 Property and Evidence Management. 10.1 Prisoner Processing 

and 11.1 Municipal Court are in the final draft and edit stage and will be 

distributed both in the near future. 

o Citizens or Media Recording of Police Incidents 2/1/2022 

o Evidence and Property 2/1/2022 

o Body Worn Cameras 9/3/2022 

o Differential Police Response (CFS Report Program) 9/6/2022 

o Rules of Conduct 9/15/2022 

o Mission, Values, Written Directives 12/27/2022 

o Law Enforcement Role and Authority 12/27/2022 

o Field Interviews, Stop and Frisk 12/27/2022 

o Arrests With and Without Warrants 12/27/2022 

o Eyewitness Identifications 12/27/2022 

• Red-light cameras First Available Contract end term is May 2037 

o City Council adopted a Resolution declaring the intent to phase out 

redlight cameras 4/6/2021 – Resolution # 21-009R 
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o The RLC Contract would be difficult to terminate without financial 

obligation from the City 

o City Council supports HB 1209 and physically delivers letters in support to 

Cortez, Biederman, Canales, Menendez 

o Funds – Eligible projects – CR 

▪ Will be discussed at the Town Hall Meeting on January 22, 2022 

o Discussed at the retreat council has decided not to spend funds until we 

know what the legislature is doing 

o Resolution supporting SB 446-2/21/2023 

• Tiger brush and bulk issues- Contract ends January 1, 2025 

o Discussed at the following City Council Meetings 

▪ 02/22/2021 

• Council addressed complaints and Tiger sanitation 

responded 

▪ 09/7/2021   

• Considered a resolution on how to handle bulk pick-up. 

Resolution # 21-031-R, the direction was given to CM to 

come back with a plan.  

• Considered and Ordinance Amending the Ord 14.02 Solid 

Waste First reading.  

▪ 11/2/2021 

▪ Considered and Ordinance Amending the Ord 14.02 Solid Waste 

Second Reading Passes Ord. # 21-053.   

▪ 1/11/2022 

▪ Council considered two options to handle the overflow of Brush. 

The Council decided to have PW pick up the overage after Tiger 

sanitation picked up their 8 CY. 

▪ There were 11 homes with oversized brush the City had the item 

picked on 3/4/22-3/8/22 

o 05/17/2022 Council meeting discussing rate increase.  

▪ Council allowed the 2.5% increase for July and another in January 

but did not approve the 7.5 % increase 

▪ Council was willing to renegotiate terms 

o On 8/23/2022 council decided to leave terms as is 

• Opioid Litigation 

o Item Was Addressed in Executives session on: 

▪ 6/15/2021 

▪ 09/7/2021 

▪ 9/21/2021 

o Council Addressed this item at the following Council meeting 

▪ 11/16/2021 

• Council Passed a resolution # 21-04 agreeing to participate 

in a settlement agreement with opioid manufacturer Johnson 
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& Johnson. The other is three major pharmaceutical 

distributors: AmerisourceBergen, Cardinal Health, and 

McKesson and is estimated to receive $28,389 

o The City still has an Agreement with Phipps, Ortiz and Talafuse for any 

remaining ongoing litigation 

• Comprehensive Master Plan 

o Was addressed at the following Council meetings: 

▪ 2/2/2021 

▪ 3/23/2021 

▪ 06/1/2021 

o This item was discussed during the budget process and ultimately, the 

Council decided not to expend the funds on this project at this time.  

o Will be discussed under the Townhall meeting update to the council on 

4/19/2022 

▪ Council would like us to use our future land use map 

• Sewer Service Charge Adjustments 

o Council meeting 2/15/22 

o Impact Fees Removed 

o Sewer Charges will be brought back at a later time.  

• Over 65 Tax Exemption 

o Council Mtg. 3/1/22 

▪ Councilor Orozco will get with the Finance Director to see if this 

item will come back on a later date 

▪ 2/21/2023 The Council looked at a 5% exemption for everyone. 

This will come back in April 

• Apartments Finley And Sierra Royale, Forest Oaks, Vista Del Rey- BM 

o Update on one of the Apartment Complexes at the CC mtg 3/15 

▪ Presentation was given on Vista Del Rey 

▪ Next apartment review is on 5/3/2022 

• Staff received legal advice in the executive session 

▪ Executive session 8/2/2022 

• Council decided to file a Chapter 54 lawsuit against Vista del 

Rey, filed on 8/5/2022 

• TRO was granted on 8/8/2022 

• Administrative warrant executed on 8/17/2022 

• Temporary Injunction was granted on 8/22/2022 

o They have 6 months to comply. 

• 8/31/2022 Vista got new attorneys 

• 9/9/2022 Vista filed a motion to dissolve the temporary 

injunction 

• C of Os issued Shed, Maintenance Shop, Laundry 1-3, 

Vista, Gym 
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• 9/19/2022 hearing set and canceled 

▪ Executive Session 9/20/2022 

• Presentation, discussion, and possible action on fluoride survey results – 

JS  

o CC Mtg. 3/1/2022 Postponed 

o Moved to 4/5/22  

o Presentation on given to the council and the community on the benefits, 

no direction was provided to staff 

• American Rescue Plan funds 

o 8/17/2021 City Council meeting. Council agreed to budget in FY 2022 for 

the following 

▪ 911 Mass text - $5,900 

▪ PPE and Decontamination Supplies -$10,000 

▪ Disposal Supplies and Medication - $45,000 

▪ 2 power stretchers – $60,000 

▪ 12 LEAD Cardiac monitor - $70,000 

▪ Library Hot Spots – $5,220 

▪ Huebner Well Generator -$230,000 

o 11/16/2021 Budget Adjustment ord. # 21-060 

▪ AV equipment – Council Chambers -$41,000 

▪ PD AC Repair - $10,000 

▪ Website upgrades - $40,000 

▪ Premium Pay for Essential Workers -$150,000 

▪ Citizen Utility Asst. -$50,000 

▪ Library AC repair -$25,000 

o For FY 23 Budget 

▪ Fire Truck-$400,000 

▪ Shadow Mist Skate Park -$70,000 

o This item was heard at the Town Hall Meeting on 3/26/2022 

▪ Citizen input will be presented at the 4/19/22 CC Mtg 

o At the 4/19/2022 council Meeting council decided to use $400,000 to 

purchase a fire truck 

o Finance Director gave a presentation on 10/18/2022 council meeting 

• AV equipment for the Conference Center -Budget Adjustment from ARP 

Funds 

o Council meeting 2/1/22 first read  

o Item amended to get the direction of the scope of work 

o Will bring the item back after the BID process 

o Discuss alternatives 5/3/2022 

COMPLETED 

• Presentation and discussion on the hiring process for Directors 

o 1/17/2022 presented and passed unanimously  
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• Substandard Building Regulations 

o 1/17/2023 first read 

o 2/7/2023 second read passed unanimously  

• City Manager Evaluation 

o 2/7/2023 

• A scope of duties for the Earthwise living committee 

o 1/17/2023 -The committee had additional comments moved to the next 

meeting 

o 2/7/2023 – The next Earthwise meeting is on 2/1. It was to close to the 

agenda preparation process being postponed until 2/21/2023 

o 2/23/2023- Placed on the Agenda – Passed on consent unanimously 

• Blood Drive and PTO Policy 

o 3/7/2023 – Passed unanimously  

• Lyft Program 

o 2/21/2023 – City Council wished to proceed with the partnership 

o 3/7/2023 – Will be on the agenda with an ordinance for a first read. 

o 3/21/2023 -  Will be on the agenda with an ordinance for a second read. 

▪ Approved unamiously  

• Discussion and possible action on amending BOA variance criterion by 

Texas Legislative changes 

o 2/28/2023 – Went to the planning and zoning commission, which 

recommended approval 

o 3/7/2023 – Will be on for the first read 

o 3/21/2023 – Will be on for the second read 

▪ Passed unanimously 

•  
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